
           

REGULAR MEETING & WORK SESSION
OF THE CITY COUNCIL

August 11, 2020

ADDISON TOWN HALL

5300 BELT LINE RD., DALLAS, TX 75254
5:30 PM EXECUTIVE SESSION, WORK SESSION

& REGULAR MEETING
 

Notice is hereby given that the Addison City Council, using electronic medium, will
conduct its REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING on Tuesday, August 11, 2020. No
meeting will be conducted at Town Hall. A temporary suspension of the Open Meetings
Act to allow telephone or videoconference public meetings has been granted by Governor
Greg Abbott. These actions are being taken to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 by
avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting and in accordance with Section
418.016 of the Texas Government Code. Telephonic or videoconferencing capabilities will
be utilized to allow individuals to address the Council. Email comments may also be
submitted to iparker@addisontx.gov by 3:00 pm the day of the meeting. Members of the
public are entitled to participate remotely via Toll-Free Dial-in Number: 877.853.5247;
Meeting ID: 409.327.0683 Participant ID: #. For more detailed instructions on how to
participate in this meeting visit our Agenda Page. The meeting will be live streamed on
Addison's website at www.addisontexas.net.
           

Call Meeting to Order 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 



EXECUTIVE SESSION

Closed (Executive) Session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney
on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly
conflicts with Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to:
  

A special election to consider Charter amendments
 

Reconvene in to Regular Session: In accordance with Texas Government Code,
Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider
action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session. 

 

WORK SESSION
 

1. Present and Discuss Any Action Necessary or New Information Regarding
the COVID-19 Pandemic.

 

2. Present and Discuss the Town of Addison Facility, Residential Refuse and
Recycling Services, and Bulk Trash and Unbundled Brush Collection
Request for Proposals.

 

3. Present and Discuss Public Safety Concerns within the Oaks North
Neighborhood.   

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Announcements and Acknowledgments Regarding Town and Council Events
and Activities 

Discussion of Meetings / Events 

 

Public Comment
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter,
including items on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the
agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be heard when the specific hearing
starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required



starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required
by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and
submit it to a staff member prior to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The
Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not listed on the
agenda.  The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda.
 

Consent Agenda
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City
Council and will be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If
individual consideration of an item is requested, it will be pulled from the Consent
Agenda and discussed separately.
 

4. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the June 15, 2020 Special
Meeting and the July 14, 2020 Regular Meeting.

 

Regular Items
 

5. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 5100 Belt Line Road Suite 796,
Which Property is Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development, Through
Ordinances O12-002 and O20-08, by Approving a Special Use Permit for a
New Restaurant With the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for on Premises
Consumptions Only. Case 1815-SUP/Pie Tap.

 

6. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action Related to a Special Election to
Consider Charter Amendments; Including Potential Action to Adopt an
Ordinance Ordering the Special Election for the November 2020 Uniform
Election Date.    

 

7. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the
Issuance of Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020.

 

8. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the
Issuance of Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Taxable Series 2020.

 

9. Present, Discuss and Consider Action on Change Order #2 to the Contract



9. Present, Discuss and Consider Action on Change Order #2 to the Contract
with JC Commercial, Inc. for Costs Related to Unforeseen Site Conditions
for the United States Customs and Border Protection Facility at Addison
Airport and Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Change Order  in an
Amount Not to Exceed $141,881.10. 

 

10. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve a Ground
Lease Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Mercury Air Center -
Addison, Inc, (Doing Business As Atlantic Aviation) in the Proximity of 4400
Glenn Curtiss Drive and Authorize the City Manager to Execute the
Agreement.

 

11. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on the Second Reading of an Ordinance
of the Town of Addison, Texas Granting to Oncor Electric Delivery
Company LLC, Its Successors and Assigns, an Electric Power Franchise.

 

Adjourn Meeting 

 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed to
the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on the
agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code,
Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for the
City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property); §551.074
(personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076 (deployment, or
specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices); and
§551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held on such matters
will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the conclusion of the
Executive Session.
 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH
DISABILITIES.  PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7090 AT LEAST 48 HOURS IN
ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE. 

POSTED BY:     ________________________________
                           Irma G. Parker, City Secretary
DATE POSTED: ________________________________
TIME POSTED:  ________________________________
DATE REMOVED FROM BULLETIN BOARD:  __________________________
REMOVED BY:  ________________________________



   

Council Meeting 1.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Any Action Necessary or New Information Regarding the
COVID-19 Pandemic.

BACKGROUND:
In December 2019, a novel (new) coronavirus known as SARS-CoV-2 ('the virus") was
first detected and subsequently began causing outbreaks of the coronavirus disease
COVID-19 that spread globally.  The virus is easily transmitted through person to person
contact, especially in group settings.  As a result, the Federal Government, State of Texas,
Dallas County, and the Town of Addison issued a series of declarations and orders to
take measures to slow the spread of the virus and protect the ability of public and private
health care providers to handle the influx of potential new patients and safeguard public
health and safety.  

The President of the United States issued a Proclamation Declaring a National
Emergency Concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) on March 13, 2020.
The Texas Governor followed with a State of Disaster Declaration for the State of Texas
on March 13, 2020.

Between March 23 and April 21, 2020, a series of orders from the Dallas County Judge
were issued pertaining to the closure of nonessential businesses, mask and social
distancing requirements, and shelter-in-place orders to prevent the spread of the virus.

On April 23, 2020: 
The Dallas County Judge issued a revised order to be consistent with the Governor's
Order, which removed elective surgery language, updates language on religious and
worship services, and requires schools to be closed for the remainder of the
2019-2020 school year. 

Between April 27, 2020  and June 3, 2020 the Governor of Texas began to issue several
Executive Orders to begin safely opening Texas businesses. Executive Order No. GA 18
prompted the strategic reopening of services, which specified retail services that are not
"essential services" that could be provided through pickup or delivery. It also allowed the
reopening of dine-in restaurant services, for restaurants that operate at up to 25 percent of
the total listed occupancy of the restaurant. Movie theaters, museums, and libraries
were also allowed to reopen with similar restrictions. This order was followed by several
others targeted at incrementally opening nonessential businesses. 



On June 16, 2020:  
Governor Greg Abbott and Executive Vice Chancellor for Health Affairs of the
University of Texas (UT) System John Zerwas, MD, provided an update on Texas'
hospital capacity. The Governor noted that despite an uptick in positive cases, there
continues to be abundant hospital capacity. He also urged all Texans to continue to
do their part to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 and look out for the health of
themselves and those around them.

On June 23, 2020:  
Governor Abbott issued a proclamation expanding the ability of mayors and county
judges to impose restrictions on outdoor gatherings of over 100 people.

On June 25, 2020:   
Governor Greg Abbott issued an Executive Order to ensure hospital bed availability
for COVID-19 patients by suspending elective surgeries at hospitals in Bexar,
Dallas, Harris, and Travis counties.

On June 26, 2020: 
Governor Abbott issued a new Executive Order limiting certain businesses and
services. This order closed bars at noon on Friday, June 26 and reduced restaurant
capacity to 50% on Monday, June 29.

On July 2, 2020: 
Governor Abbott issued an Executive Order requiring all Texans to wear a face
covering over the nose and mouth in public spaces in counties with 20 or more
positive COVID-19 cases, with few exceptions.

The Town has taken the following actions:
  

The closure of all Town facilities for public access has been extended. 
All in-person Addison Athletic Club camps and classes have been canceled.
The Addison Athletic Club is open with modifications to adhere to State and County
orders. Third-party outside exercise programs are being held virtually at the
discretion of the vendor.
The Addison Conference and Theatre Centre (ACTC) will remain closed. 
Special Events: The May Addison After Dark Event Series has been canceled and
replaced with Addison Weekend Drive-ins.
Parks and Public Works crews are continuing their work to maintain the Town’s
assets.
The Town of Addison has taken (and will continue to take) actions to prevent the
spread of the virus. Everyone is encouraged to follow Social Distancing
recommendations.

For more information on the previous updates from the Town related to the COVID-19
pandemic, please visit the Town’s website www.AddisonTexas.net/covid19.  



RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required. 

Attachments
Social Distancing Recommendations 
Minimum Standard Health Protocols 
State of Texas Executive Order No. GA 29 Effective July 2, 2020 



 



 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 



July 2, 2020

The Honorable Ruth R. Hughs
Secretary of State
State Capitol Room 1E.8

GOVERNOR GREG ABBOTT

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARy OF STATE

2:3O O’CLOcc

Secretary of State

Austin, Texas 78701

Dear Secretary Hughs:

Pursuant to his powers as Governor of the State of Texas, Greg Abbott has issued the following:

Executive Order No. GA-29 relating to the use of face coverings during the
COVID- 19 disaster.

The original executive order is attached to this letter of transmittal.

tly submitted,

lerk to the Governor

GSD/gsd

Attachment

POST OFFICE Box 12428 AUSTIN, TEXAS 78711 512-463-2000 (VOICE) DIAL 7-1-1 FoR RELAY SERVICES



xrrufhir rtrr

BY THE
GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF TEXAS

Executive Department
Austin, Texas
July 2, 2020

EXECUTIVE ORDER
GA29

Relating to the use offace coverings during the COVID-19 disaster.

WHEREAS, I, Greg Abbott, Governor of Texas, issued a disaster proclamation on March
13, 2020, certifying under Section 4 18.014 of the Texas Government Code that the novel
coronavirus (COVIP- 19) poses an imminent threat of disaster for all counties in the
State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, in each subsequent month effective through today, I have renewed the
disaster declaration for all Texas counties; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of the Texas Department of State Health Services
(DSHS), Dr. John Hellerstedt, has determined that COVID- 19 continues to represent a
public health disaster within the meaning of Chapter 81 of the Texas Health and Safety
Code; and

WHEREAS, I have issued executive orders and suspensions of Texas laws in response to
COVIP-19, aimed at using the least restrictive means available to protect the health and
safety of Texans and ensure an effective response to this disaster; and

WHEREAS, as Texas reopens in the midst of COVID-19, increased spread is to be
expected, and the key to controlling the spread and keeping Texans safe is for all people
to consistently follow good hygiene and social-distancing practices; and

WHEREAS, due to recent substantial increases in COVID-19 positive cases, and
increases in the COVID-19 positivity rate and hospitalizations resulting from COVID
19, further measures are needed to achieve the least restrictive means for reducing the
growing spread of COVTD-19, and to avoid a need for more extreme measures; and

WHEREAS, I have joined the medical experts in consistently encouraging people to use
face coverings, and health authorities have repeatedly emphasized that wearing face
coverings is one of the most important and effective tools for reducing the spread of
COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, given the current status of COVD-19 in Texas, requiring the use of face
coverings is a targeted response that can combat the threat to public health using the
least restrictive means, and if people follow this requirement, more extreme measures
may be avoided; and

WHEREAS, wearing a face covering is important not only to protect oneself, but also to
avoid unknowingly harming fellow Texans, especially given that many people who go
into public may have COVID-19 without knowing it because they have no symptoms; and

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE
2’ op- O’CLOCK

JUL 022020



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-29
July 2, 2020 Page 2

WHEREAS, the “governor is responsible for meeting ... the dangers to the state and
people presented by disasters” under Section 418.011 of the Texas Government Code,
and the legislature has given the governor broad authority to fulfill that responsibility;
and

WHEREAS, failure to comply with any executive order issued during the COVID-19
disaster is an offense punishable under Section 418. 173 by fine;

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Greg Abbott, Governor of Texas, by virtue of the power and
authority vested in me by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, do hereby order
the following on a statewide basis effective at 12:0 1 p.m. on July 3, 2020:

Every person in Texas shall wear a face covering over the nose and mouth when
inside a commercial entity or other building or space open to the public, or when
in an outdoor public space, wherever it is not feasible to maintain six feet of social
distancing from another person not in the same household; provided, however,
that this face-covering requirement does not apply to the Miowing:

1. any person younger than 10 years of age;

2. any person with a medical condition or disability that prevents wearing a
face covering;

3. any person while the person is consuming food or drink, or is seated at a
restaurant to eat or drink;

4. any person while the person is (a) exercising outdoors or engaging in
physical activity outdoors, and (b) maintaining a safe distance from other
people not in the same household;

5. any person while the person is driving alone or with passengers who are
part of the same household as the driver;

6. any person obtaining a service that requires temporary removal of the face
covering for security surveillance, screening, or a need for specific access
to the face, such as while visiting a bank or while obtaining a personal-
care service involving the face, but only to the extent necessary for the
temporary removal;

7. any person while the person is in a swimming pool, lake, or similar body
of water;

8. any person who is voting, assisting a voter, serving as a poli watcher, or
actively administering an election, but wearing a face covering is strongly
encouraged;

9. any person who is actively providing or obtaining access to religious
worship, but wearing a face covering is strongly encouraged;

10. any person while the person is giving a speech for a broadcast or to an
audience; or

11. any person in a county (a) that meets the requisite criteria proilajcI OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

2: f0’CLOCK

JUL 0 2 2020



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-29
July 2, 2020 Page 3

the Texas Division of Emergency Management (TDEM) regarding
minimal cases of COVID-19, and (b) whose county judge has
affirmatively opted-out of this face-covering requirement by filing with
TDEM the required face-covering attestation form—provided, however,
that wearing a face covering is highly recommended, and every county is
strongly encouraged to follow these face-covering standards.

Not excepted from this face-covering requirement is any person attending a
protest or demonstration involving more than 10 people and who is not practicing
safe social distancing of six feet from other people not in the same household.

TDEM shall maintain on its website a list of counties that are not subject to this
face-covering requirement pursuant to paragraph number 11. The list can be
found at: www.tdem.texas.gov/ga29.

Following a verbal or written warning for a first-time violator of this face-
covering requirement, a person’s second violation shall be punishable by a fine
not to exceed $250. Each subsequent violation shall be punishable by a fine not to
exceed $250 per violation.

Local law enforcement and other local officials, as appropriate, can and should
enforce this executive order, Executive Order GA-28, and other effective
executive orders, as well as local restrictions that are consistent with this
executive order and other effective executive orders. But no law enforcement or
other official may detain, arrest, or confine in jail any person for a violation of this
executive order or for related non-violent, non-felony offenses that are predicated
on a violation of this executive order; provided, however, that any official with
authority to enforce this executive order may act to enforce trespassing laws and
remove violators at the request of a business establishment or other property
owner.

This executive order hereby prohibits confinement in jail as a penalty for the
violation of any face-covering order by any jurisdiction.

Executive Order GA-2$ is hereby amended to delete from paragraph number 15
the phrase: “, but no jurisdiction can impose a civil or criminal penalty for failure
to wear a face covering.”

The governor may by proclamation amend this executive order or add to the list of
people to whom this face-covering requirement does not apply.

This executive order does not supersede Executive Orders GA-b, GA-13, GA-17, GA
19, GA-24, GA-25, GA-27, or GA-28 as amended. This executive order shall remain in
effect and in full force until modified, amended, rescinded, or superseded by the
governor.

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARy OF STATE

o i-IO’CLOCX

JUL 022020



Governor Greg Abbott Executive Order GA-29
July 2, 2020

Given under my hand this the 2nd
day of July, 2020.

Page 4

I1UTH R. HUGHS
Secretary of State

FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

O’CLOCK

GREG
Governor

OTT

ATTEST BY:

JUL 02 2020



   

Council Meeting 2.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Pillars: Gold Standard in Customer Service
Milestones: Promote and protect the Addison Way

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss the Town of Addison Facility, Residential Refuse and Recycling
Services, and Bulk Trash and Unbundled Brush Collection Request for Proposals.

BACKGROUND:
The current contract between the Town of Addison and Community Waste Disposal
(CWD) for residential refuse and recycling services expires on October 31, 2020. To
ensure that Addison residents are receiving the best service, at the direction of the City
Council, staff issued Request for Proposals (RFP) #20-155 on June 8, 2020.
Additionally, the Town’s facilities contract expired and was in need to be renewed and
was included in the RFP.
 
Four proposals were received and evaluated. One bid was not scored as the proposal was
determined to be non-conforming.

  
Vendor Name Evaluation Score

Community Waste Disposal 94
Republic 82
Frontier 81

*Waste Management submitted a proposal that was non-conforming because they did not
include residential services or recycling for Town facilities.
 
The selection committee evaluated the proposals based on the following criteria:
Experience and Past Performance, Price Proposal, Pre-Proposal meeting attendance, and
Customer Service and Quality Assurance. Based on those criteria, CWD was selected by
the committee for award of RFP #20-155. Town staff recommends that a contract be
awarded to CWD for a five-year term beginning November 1, 2020. The contract can be
extended for additional five-year terms with Council's approval if CWD's performance is
found to be satisfactory.
 
CWD will provide collection and removal services of solid waste and recyclable



materials for single-family residential units within the corporate limits of Addison. They
will furnish all personnel, labor, equipment, trucks, and all other items necessary to
provide these services. Residents will still be able to dispose of their solid waste in
one-way plastic garbage bags; no trash receptacle is required. CWD will provide each
resident with a choice of a 64-gallon recycle cart or an 18-gallon recycle bin that will
need to be placed at the curb on the day of collection. Collection days will remain
Mondays and Thursdays.
 
Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) was removed from their scope and the service will
be provided by Town staff.
 
The current monthly charge per home for refuse and recycling:  $11.78. Total proposed
monthly charge per home for refuse and recycling:  $12.56
 
At the May 12, 2020 Council Meeting, Council directed staff to request pricing for bulk
and unbundled brush collection as part of the RFP process. CWD submitted an annual
price of $107,040 for this service. This service is currently being performed by street
maintenance staff at an estimated annual cost of $172,000.
 
Staff seeks direction from council for the proposed bulk trash and unbundled brush
collection proposal. 
1. Streets crew continues to collect bulk/brush.
2. Town hires 2 additional full time employees to collect bulk/brush.
3. Town contracts with CWD to collect bulk/brush. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Presentation - Refuse and Recycling Request for Proposals 2020 



1

Residential Refuse and 
Recycling



History

Current Contract
• Current Contract is with Community Waste Disposal 

(CWD) executed in November 2015
• 5-year term with optional 5-year renewal periods
• May 12, 2020 staff sought direction from Council to 

renew the contract with CWD or to advertise a 
Request for Proposals (RFP)

• Council direction was to seek proposals

2



Request for Proposals (RFP)
RFP Information
• RFP 20-155 was issued June 8, 2020 and included:

‒ Trash Only
‒ Trash and Recycling
‒ Bulk / Unbundled Brush (Alternate)
‒ Town Facility Collections
‒ Five-year base term with possible additional five-year 

terms at the Town’s sole option
• Pre-Proposal Conference was conducted on June 18, 2020
• Proposals were received and opened on July 7, 2020 from 

four vendors:
‒ Waste Management
‒ Frontier Waste Solutions
‒ Republic Services
‒ Community Waste Disposal (CWD)

3



Evaluation Process and Scoring
Evaluation Criteria 
• Price: 45%
• Experience and Past Performance: 25%
• Customer Service/Quality Assurance: 25%
• Pre-Proposal Meeting Attendance: 5%

Selection committee consisted of seven Town staff members

• Scoring Summary

*Waste Management’s Proposal was found as non-conforming to the RFP

4

Vendor Name Total

CWD 94

Republic 82

Frontier 81



Cost Summaries
• Cost Summary

• Current Residential Rate for Refuse and Recycling is $11.78
• Current Price for Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) $.73
• Combined Total of $12.51
• HHW was Removed From Scope of Service

Vendor Name

Residential 
Refuse and 
Recycling 
(monthly)

Bulk Trash & 
Unbundled 

Brush 
(monthly)

Bulk Trash & 
Unbundled 

Brush 
(annual)

Total Monthly 
Cost to 

Resident with 
Bulk/Brush

Town Facility 
Refuse and 
Recycling 
(annual)

CWD $12.56 $4.46 $107,040 $17.02 $66,850 

Republic $18.96 $5.75 $138,000 $24.71 $74,798 

Frontier $17.44 $8.50 $204,000 $25.94 $66,428 

5



Committee’s Selected Provider
Community Waste Disposal (CWD)
• Scored 94 on evaluation
• Refuse and Recycling combined

‒ $301,440 annually ($12.56 monthly)
• Refuse individually

‒ $262,320 annually ($10.93 monthly)
• Bulk Trash and Unbundled Brush – Alternate Bid

‒ $107,040 annually ($4.46 monthly)
• Town Facility Refuse and Recycling

‒ $66,428 annually

• CWD proposed annual increase based on Consumer 
Price Index (CPI), natural gas spot price, and landfill 
costs

• CWD agreed to CPI adjustment that includes language 
in the contract that allows CWD to request an increase 
due to unexpected cost increases 6



Customer Service

Online Service Form
• Residents will have the ability to submit online service request 

forms via the CWD or Town website

Mobile App Available for Residents
• Locate Town specific service information
• Submit service requests (with pictures)
• Residents receive emailed confirmation with reference number
• Pay your bill, report a missed service, and receive weather and 

service alerts

7



Town Owned Facility Services
Facility refuse removal and recycling services at Town facilities
• Town Hall, Service Center, Finance Building, etc.
• Contractor will provide and replace containers
• Estimated annual cost of $66,428.21
• Current annual cost is $48,380.70

8



CWD Proposed Cost Breakdown

• CWD Cost Breakdown – Current vs. Proposal Rates

Service Current 
Residential Rate

Proposed 
Residential Rate Difference

Refuse $ 8.48 $ 9.04 $ 0.56

Recycling $ 3.30 $ 3.52 $ 0.22

HHW $ 0.73 $ 0.00 $ -0.73

Total $ 12.51 $ 12.56 $ 0.05

9



Rate Comparison

$21.00 

$15.59 
$13.68 

$15.00 

$28.61 

$12.56 

$20.62 

$13.66 

$17.18 
$15.19 

$13.75 

$24.42 

$15.36 

Richardson Allen Plano * Frisco University
Park

Addison
Proposed

Carrollton Lewisville Coppell Grapevine Flower
Mound

Irving McKinney

$17.43
AVERAGE

COMPARISON CITIES

*Plano is an average of different costs for different cart sizes 
Farmers Branch does not charge a fee for trash and recycling

10



Residential Services
Refuse
• Curbside collection to each residence twice weekly 
• Curbside, alleyway, or trash closet as appropriate
• All bundled waste and brush
• On-line tracking service required for missed pickups; 

same day pickup if possible

Recycling
• Curbside collection to each residence once a week (to 

coincide with one of the refuse collection days)
• Provide both 64-gallon cart and 18-gallon bin; 

Residents choice
• On-line tracking service required for missed pickups; 

same day pickup if possible
11



Bulk Trash & Unbundled Brush - Alternate

Cost
• $107,040 annually

Scheduled Pickups
• CWD will perform a clean sweep of the Town 

collecting up to 15 cubic yards (per resident) of bulk 
and brush one day a week – no call in required

On Call Pickups
• CWD will run a brush truck in the Town every week, 

collecting up to 15 cubic yards (per resident) of bulk 
and brush from residents that call in

12



Bulk and Unbundled Brush Options
Town’s Options 
Current Operations
• Performed by Street Maintenance Personnel
• Comprises 60% of crew workload
• Estimated annual cost of $172,000

Hire Additional Town Staff
• Require funding two new full-time positions
• $45,000 in equipment costs, $120,000 in 

personnel costs
• Total of $165,000 in FY 2021

Outsource to CWD
• $107,040 annual cost

Pros and Cons
Current Operations
• Addison Way of service
• Not an efficient use of Town resources
• No additional cost

Hire Additional Town Staff
• Addison Way of service
• Increase in cost to the Town
• Dedicated team for pickups
• More efficient use of resources

Outsource to CWD
• Slightly lower level of service
• Increase in cost
• More efficient use of resources

13



Bulk and Brush Collection Cost Breakdown

Options Monthly per Residence Annually

Town Current Estimated $ 7.17 $172,000

Town Projected with 2 FTE’s $ 5.00 $120,000

CWD Proposed $4.46 $107,040

14



Council Direction

• Staff is seeking direction from Council on the bulk and unbundled brush options

• Staff will incorporate this direction and develop the contract to bring forward for 
Council approval

15



Questions? 

16



   

Council Meeting 3.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Police
Pillars: Gold Standard in Public Safety
Milestones: Maximize use of cutting edge technology to enhance public safety

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present and Discuss Public Safety Concerns within the Oaks North Neighborhood.   

BACKGROUND:
This items was placed on the agenda at the request of Mayor Chow and Council Member
Paul Walden.  Three members of the public commented during the July 14, 2020 Council
Meeting and expressed a desire for improvements in the Oaks North Neighborhood such
as additional LED lighting, signage to prevent cut through traffic, tree trimming to
enhance visibility and expanded camera coverage.  The Oaks North Homeowners
Association recently requested the Town install additional street lighting, optical
cameras, and signage alerting persons entering the area of camera usage within their
neighborhood and adjoining Celestial Park. 

Staff will provide an overview of the statistical information regarding crime in the
neighborhood and assist Council in discussing the requested changes. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Presentation - Oaks North Public Safety 



Oaks North 
Neighborhood Public 
Safety Discussion

Addison Police Department

Police Chief Paul Spencer
Presented to Addison City Council on August 11, 2020

1



Oaks North Neighborhood: Overview

• Calls for service:
• Self-initiated activity:
• Total offense reports written:

108
721

3

7/1/19 – 7/1/20

2



Oaks North Neighborhood: Calls for Service

“Other” calls for service include:
• Patrol General
• Theft
• Assist Fire Department
• Criminal Mischief
• Disturbance Noise

7/1/19 – 7/1/20

“Contact Complainant” is a 
general catch-all for citizen 
inquiries, complaints, and 
questions about various 
types of law.

3



Oaks North Neighborhood: Self-Initiated Activity

7/1/19 – 7/1/20

“Other” markouts include:
• Patrol General
• Theft
• Assist Fire Department
• Criminal Mischief
• Disturbance Noise

“Patrol General” is a markout 
where an officer is looking 
closer at a house or business, a 
person or group of people, or 
checking on a location of 
interest.

“Patrol Directed” refers to a 
mandatory directive for officers to 
check on a house or business at least 
twice a day for two weeks.  These can 
be submitted by residents going on 
vacation or detectives working a case.

4



Oaks North Neighborhood: Major Crimes

1/1/00 – 7/1/20

5



Oaks North Neighborhood: Theft of Motor Vehicles

1/1/00 – 7/1/20

6



Oaks North Neighborhood: Robberies

1/1/00 – 7/1/20

7



Oaks North Neighborhood: Burglary of Residences

1/1/00 – 7/1/20

8



Oaks North Neighborhood: Burglary of Vehicles

1/1/00 – 7/1/20

9



Crime Prevention: Police Efforts

Crime prevention efforts by the Addison Police Department:

• License Plate Recognition and Optical Camera program.
• Home security analysis program.
• Community outreach seminars. 
• Neighborhood and HOA crime meetings.

Daily patrol officer activities:

• Driving, walking, and riding our parks and trails.
• Vacation watches and directed patrols.
• Suspicious activity markouts on vehicles and people.
• Property checks on open doors and windows, fresh 

damage, and malfunctioning city equipment.
• Crime risk cards for vehicles left open, unlocked, or with 

valuables visible.

10



Crime prevention is a partnership with our community.

• The Addison Police Department is committed to 
preserving order and protecting lives and property.

• Addison’s strong sense of community comes from 
building trust and relationships.

• We are striving to strengthen trust by building a 
partnership between the police and the 
community.

Crime Prevention: Community Policing

11



Crime Prevention: Community Policing

Prevention is the best way to reduce the chances of theft.

Taking care of your vehicle at home:
• Close garage doors and any gates.
• Remove garage door openers from vehicles parked outside.
• Roll up car windows, take your keys with you, and lock the doors.

Remove commonly targeted items in your vehicle while out and about:
• Any empty or full backpacks, bags, or boxes.
• Items stored under seats or in visible lock boxes.
• Purses, wallets, or bags left on the seat or floor—even for a moment!

Safety tips for your home and neighborhood:
• Light up the entrance to your home and your driveway.
• Consider installing exterior cameras and joining a video sharing website

with your neighbors.

12



When to call Addison PD:

• Strange or unfamiliar people walking, biking, or 
driving in the neighborhood, especially at night.

• People peering into houses or windows.

• Solicitor concerns, questionable contractors, 
found property, or suspected property damage.

• With any other questions—we are always 
available to discuss your concerns and work 
towards a solution.

Crime Prevention: Suspicious Activity

13



Crime Prevention: Oaks North Neighborhood

Oaks North HOA suggestions:

• Additional cameras

• Enhanced lighting

• Additional signage

Staff seeks Council direction on these suggestions.

14



Crime Prevention: Oaks North Neighborhood

Community Partnership:

• Crime prevention is a partnership between 
the community and the Addison Police 
Department.

• We look forward to working together to keep 
Addison a safe community.

15



   

Council Meeting 4.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Action to Approve the Minutes from the June 15, 2020 Special Meeting and
the July 14, 2020 Regular Meeting.

BACKGROUND:
The minutes for the June 15, 2020 Special Meeting and July 14, 2020 Regular Meeting
have been prepared for consideration.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes - June 15, 2020 Regular Meeting 
Minutes - July 14, 2020 Regular Meeting 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 15, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 1 of 3  

D RA F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY 

COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION AND SPECIAL MEETING  

 

June 15, 2020 
 

Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 
6:00 p.m. Work Session & Regular Meeting 

 
 

Present: Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Lori Ward; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore 
Guillermo Quintanilla; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Ivan 
Hughes; Council Member Paul Walden; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 

 

 
SPECIAL MEETING & WORK SESSION 

 

 
Call Meeting to Order:  Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 

 
Present and Discuss the Town's Strategic Plan and Goal Setting for Fiscal Year 2021. 
 
The City Council has been committed to an ongoing program of developing a Strategic Plan and 
Goal Setting to plan for future growth and improved services to the citizens of the Town.  Specific 
measurable goals, priorities and implementation known as Pillars and Milestones were developed 
but revisited each year and as factors change, plans are then adjusted.  This process has been 
facilitated by SGR Government Resources.    The review process included dividing the City 
Council into small groups to discuss whether each pillar was still relevant, determine whether 
progress is still being made on each milestone with adjustments or amendments made as needed.  
Recommendations were discussed by the entire Council with the following updates suggested. 
 
Pillar One: Entrepreneurship and Business Hub 

• Milestone 1: Economic Development focus on attracting and retaining entrepreneurship 
and targeted industry sectors (Information Technology, Financial Services, 
Engineering/Research/Development Services, Consulting Services, and Creative 
Services). 

• Milestone 2: Review Town Ordinances and regulations to modernize them and facilitate 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 15, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 2 of 3  

redevelopment. 
• Milestone 3: Create a specific channel for two-way communication with the business 

community. 
 
Council noted that the City has done a good job of communicating with our businesses in the wake 
of the COVID-19 Pandemic.  All the milestones were considered to still be relevant. No 
recommended changes.   
 
 
Pillar Two: Excellence in Asset Management 

• Milestone: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset 
Management Policy, utilizing information systems. 
 

Council consensus was that a lot of progress had been made on this pillar. Since the Asset 
Management Plan has begun with a policy approved and program implemented this milestone be 
amended to reflect progress made by addition of “in accordance with the Asset Management 
Policy, utilizing information systems” as noted above. 
 
 
Pillar Three: Excellence in Transportation Systems 

• Milestone 1: Promote Silver Line Development. 
• Milestone 2: Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in acceptable 

condition and well- maintained. 
 
No suggested updates were presented.  A request was made to provide updates to airport and Silver 
Line development initiatives.   
 
 
Pillar Four: Gold Standard in Customer Service 

• Milestone: Promote and protect Addison Way. 
 
No suggestions or amendments were made.  The Council believed that much progress was being 
made on this pillar and the milestone. Continued progress in improving the speed of responsiveness 
was requested. 
 
 
Pillar Five: Gold Standard in Financial Health 

• Milestone: Continue development and implementation of Long-Term Financial Plan. 
 
No suggestions or amendments were made.  The Council believed that much progress was being 
made on this pillar and the milestone. 
 
Pillar Six: Gold Standard in Public Safety 

• Milestone: Maximize use of cutting-edge technology to enhance public safety. 
 
No suggestions or amendments were made.  The Council believed that much progress was being 



Town of Addison, Texas 
June 15, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 3 of 3  

made on this pillar and the milestone; however, there is a perception in some neighborhoods that 
they are not as safe as they were in the past. 
 
 
Pillar Seven: Optimize Addison Brand 

• Milestone: Define and promote Addison Identity. 
 
No suggestions or amendments were made.  The Council believed that much progress was being 
made on this pillar and the milestone 
 
 
Adjourn Meeting 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
            
             
       __________________________________ 
       Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 1 of 11 
 

D R A F T 
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE 

ADDISON CITY COUNCIL 
WORK SESSION & REGULAR SESSION 

 
July 14, 2020 

 
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254 

5:30 p.m. Executive Session, Work Session & Regular Meeting 
 

The Addison City Council, using electronic medium, conducted its Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
on Tuesday, July 14, 2020. The meeting was not conducted at Town Hall. A temporary suspension 
of the Open Meetings Act to allow telephone or videoconference public meetings has been granted 
by Governor Greg Abbott. Members of the public were entitled to participate; detailed instructions 
were provided, and the meeting was live streamed on Addison’s website at www.addisontexas.net. 

 
Present: Mayor Joe Chow; Mayor Pro Tempore Lori Ward; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore 

Guillermo Quintanilla; Council Member Tom Braun; Council Member Ivan 
Hughes; Council Member Paul Walden; Council Member Marlin Willesen. 

 
Mayor Chow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order:    Mayor Chow called the meeting to order. 

 
2. Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to: 

• Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its 
attorney pertaining to: 

o Bigelow Arizona TX-344, Limited Partnership D/B/A Suites of America 
and/or Budget Suites of America v. Town of Addison, Cause No. DC-19-
09630, 191st Judicial District, Dallas County District Court. 

 
Mayor Chow closed the Open Session to convene the City Council into Closed Executive Session 
at 5:45 p.m. 
 
3. RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas Government 

Code,  Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider 
action, if any, on matters discussed in Executive Session. 

 
Mayor Chow reconvened the City Council into Open Session at 6:00 p.m.  There was no action 
taken as a result of Executive Session. 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 2 of 11 
 

 
 WORK SESSION

 
 
4. Present and Discuss Any Action Necessary or New Information Regarding the 

COVID-19 Pandemic.    
 
City Manager Wes Pierson advised that on July 2nd Governor Abbott issued an Executive Order 
requiring all Texans to wear a face covering over the nose and mouth in public spaces in counties 
with 20 or more positive COVID-19 cases, with few exceptions.  Mr. Pierson advised that the 
Governor also issued a Proclamation giving mayors and county judges the ability to impose 
restrictions on some outdoor gatherings of over ten people, and making it mandatory that people 
cannot be in groups of more than ten and that social distancing is required.  
 
Mr. Pierson said that on June 26th Governor Abbott issued an Executive Order limiting certain 
businesses and services as part of an effort to contain the spread of the virus.  This order closed 
bars at noon on June 26th and reduced restaurant capacity from the previously allowed 75 percent 
to 50 percent effective June 29th.  Take-out and delivery are still allowable.  Mr. Pierson reviewed 
the established measures all residents should take to help reduce the spread of COVID-19.   
 
Mr. Pierson reviewed that the closure of Town facilities for public access has been extended except 
by appointment.  The Addison Athletic Club is open at 25 percent capacity including the swimming 
pool.  Council Member Willesen inquired when the pool might begin to have Sunday operating 
hours.  Mr. Pierson responded that the Town has not been able to hire the normal number of 
lifeguards. Staff researched pool usage and found that the two lowest usage days are Sunday and 
Monday so those are the days Staff decided to close the pool.  Council Member Hughes asked if 
that was the reason non-member guests are not allowed to use the pool at this time.  Mr. Pierson 
responded that the lifeguards also must clean the pool area and it would be difficult to handle all 
their duties if there was more than 25 percent capacity. Mayor Chow added that he is okay with 
allowing only 25 percent capacity at the pool. 
 

 
 
5. Present and Discuss Updated Projections of the Potential Financial Impacts to the 

Town of Addison Due to the Economic Disruption Related to the COVID-19 
Pandemic. 

 
Chief Financial Officer Steven Glickman presented this item.  He reviewed that on April 14th staff 
provided a presentation to Council regarding the potential financial impacts COVID-19 may have 
for the Town for Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021.  He advised this presentation updates the previous 
revenue and expenditure assumptions.  Mr. Glickman reviewed that the primary concerns for the 
Town include sales taxes, mixed beverage taxes, hotel occupancy taxes and for the Airport, fuel 
flowage fees and rental income.  He noted the historical effect of other crisis’ on sales tax and 
other revenues.  
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 3 of 11 
 

Mr. Glickman provided Staff’s initial assumptions for the potential revenue impacts for fiscal year 
2021 including a possible 10 percent decrease in sales taxes, a 25 percent decrease in hotel 
occupancy taxes, and 4.5 percent loss in Airport rental revenue.  A 29 percent decrease in fuel 
flowage fees is anticipated.  There is no significant impact in the Utility Fund.  An overall recovery 
could take 18-36 months. 
 
Mr. Glickman provided an analysis for the General Fund, the Airport Fund, Hotel Fund, Utility 
Fund that included the Original Budget for 2019-2020, the April estimate, the July revised estimate 
and a 2020-2021 Planning estimate.  The analysis provided details of revenue sources, ending fund 
balances and any surplus or shortages anticipated. 
 
Mr. Glickman advised that a reduction in expenditures, including salaries and supplies, have 
helped to mitigate impacts to fund balances.  He noted that a TxDOT land reimbursement offset 
some revenue losses for the Airport. 
 
Mayor Chow inquired what the hotel occupancy rate has been.  Mr. Glickman responded it is 
approximately 34 percent and sometimes as much as 50 percent.  There was a brief discussion 
regarding property tax assumptions.  Mr. Glickman noted that the certified tax role will be 
available on July 24th.   
 
Mayor Chow remarked that this report is more positive for the Town than what was anticipated in 
April.

 
 
6. Present and Discuss Public Nuisance Concerns Along the White Rock Creek Park 

Trail. 
 

Chief of Police Paul Spencer presented this item. He advised that due to some residents’ perceived 
safety and nuisance concerns related to the White Rock Creek Park Trail specifically near the Belt 
Line Road bridge he, along with Parks and Recreation Director Janna Tidwell and Director of 
Public Works and Engineering Shannon Hicks, visited the area.  Specific concerns include a 
homeless persons’ encampment under the bridge, as well as trash and sanitation issues.  Chief 
Spencer added that the area directly underneath the bridge is within the Dallas city limits.  This 
prohibits the Town of Addison from enforcing public nuisance ordinances.  He advised that the 
City of Dallas has been moderately responsive when contacted about trash removal and 
encampments.   
 
Chief Spencer presented some possible options the Town might consider.  Option 1 included 
adding trail and under bridge lighting, adding optical cameras along the pathway, and removal of 
vegetation to improve visibility and reduce seclusion. Option 2 included planting a type of 
screening shrubs underneath the bridge that would discourage people from climbing through them.  
Option 3 would be to install a physical barrier, such as a fence.  Pros and cons for each option were 
discussed. 
 
Council Member Willesen suggested a wrought iron fence might be installed on the Addison side 
of the property.  Discussion followed as to possible flooding that occurs in this area and how a 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 4 of 11 
 

fence might impede the flow of water.  There was also a discussion of adding riprap underneath 
the bridge, making it more uncomfortable for campers.  Mayor Chow mentioned past discussions 
regarding interlocal agreements with the City of Dallas for Addison to be responsible for a portion 
of Belt Line Road.  Except for Council Member Willesen who prefers wrought iron fencing, 
Council members spoke in favor of obtaining cost estimates for lighting and cameras (Option 1), 
noting these would provide a perception of safety. Council Member Walden added that cameras 
would also provide an investigative tool in the event a crime occurs in that area.  

 
 
7. Present and Discuss Proposed Updates to the Town's Naming and Recognition and 

Public Art Policies. 
 
Director of Parks and Recreation Janna Tidwell presented this item. She provided a historical 
overview of the current Naming and Recognition Policy and discussed Staff’s review of the policy 
and areas that Staff recommended be addressed. 
 
Ms. Tidwell advised that the proposed updated policy has been reorganized and includes 
recommended policy changes regarding Naming Criteria, Guidelines, and Process.  Proposed new 
sections for naming recognition and recognition of donations not associated with naming are 
included.  She noted that the section for removal of a name is included with no changes.  Council 
Member Willesen reviewed some additional types of recognitions that Ms. Tidwell may want to 
consider.   
 
Ms. Tidwell also presented information about the Town’s Public Art Policy discussed 
recommended changes to this policy as well.  Ms. Tidwell stated that the proposed changes had 
been reviewed by The Addison Arbor Foundation.  
 
Council Member Hughes suggested that existing policies for specific facilities, such as the Spruill 
Dog Park and the Water Tower Theatre be referenced within these updated policies.  Ms. Tidwell 
advised after being updated with Council’s suggestions, the policies will be presented for Council 
consideration at a future meeting. 

 
 
8. Present and Discuss the Timing for Rescheduling the Special Charter Amendment 

Election Originally Planned for May 2, 2020. 
 
Director of Development Services Charles Goff presented this item. He reviewed that earlier this 
year the Council called a Special Charter Amendment Election to be held on May 2, 2020.  Due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic Governor Greg Abbott issued a proclamation allowing political 
subdivisions to move scheduled May elections to November 3, 2020. In April, the City Council 
voted to postpone the election without specifying a new date.  
 
Mr. Goff provided information to the Council regarding having the election on November 3rd and 
presented the possible option of waiting until May 1, 2021.  He reviewed pros and cons of both 
options; however, it was noted that there is some uncertainty on procedural steps to be taken. 
Attorney Brenda McDonald advised she will work with the City Secretary to determine exactly 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 5 of 11 
 

what the Town’s options are.  Council discussed the factors involved with having the election on 
either of the proposed dates. The final consensus was for the City Attorney to make a request to 
the Governor to wait until May 2021 to have the election, but if that permission is not granted, the 
election will be held on November 3, 2020.  City Manager Pierson advised the matter will be back 
on the August 11th agenda for a final decision. 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council Events and Activities-  
Discussion of Events/Meetings 
Public Comment:  The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any matter, including items 
on the agenda, except public hearings that are included on the agenda. Comments related to public hearings will be 
heard when the specific hearing starts. Citizen comments are limited to three (3) minutes, unless otherwise required 
by law. To address the Council, please fill out a City Council Appearance Card and submit it to a staff member prior 
to the Public Comment item on the agenda. The Council is not permitted to take any action or discuss any item not 
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a future agenda. 
 
City Secretary Irma Parker advised that three citizens wished to address the City Council, one via 
email and two via telephone, all Oaks North Subdivision residents who expressed concern about 
the Subdivision’s safety, security and policing concerns/issues.   

• Email:  Jim Robinson, 14795 Buckingham Court; 
• Via Telephone:   

o Bob Heckman, 14776 Maiden Court; and 
o Kathleen Weeks, 14766 Maiden Court. 

 
Mayor Chow directed Staff to place the Oaks North Subdivision concerns addressed tonight to the 
August 11th work session agenda for further discussion. 

 
Consent Agenda:  All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is requested, it will 
be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 

 
9. Consider Action to Approve the Minutes for the June 23, 2020 Work Session and 

Regular Meeting.  
 

10. Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve Acceptance of an Airport Improvement 
Program (AIP) Grant Offer from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) 
in the Amount of $1,475,000 for Changing the Runway Designation from 15/33 to 
16/34 and Applying Surface Preservation Treatments to the Runway, Taxiway Alpha, 
and the Asphalt Connecting Taxiways Charlie, Delta, Echo, Foxtrot, Golf, Hotel, and 
Juliet; Designating TxDOT its Agent for Receiving and Disbursing Funds; 
Acknowledging that Addison will be Responsible for a Potential Estimated 
Contribution and to Authorize the City Manager to Execute all Necessary Documents 
to Accept the Grant from TxDOT. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 6 of 11 
 

11.      Consider Action to Approve a Resolution Accepting a Donation Deed from Urban 
Intownhomes, Inc. for Property Located Adjacent to the Addison Grove 
Development. 

 
12. Consider Action to Approve a Resolution to Adopt the Town of Addison's Strategic 

Pillars and Milestones for Fiscal Year 2021. 
 

13. Consider Action to Approve Change Order #2 to the Contract with JC Commercial, 
Inc. for Costs Related to Unforeseen Site Conditions for the United States Customs 
and Border Protection Facility at Addison Airport and Authorize the City Manager 
to Execute the Change Order in an Amount Not to Exceed $141,881.10. 

 
Mayor Chow asked if there were any requests to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for 
separate discussion.  Council Member Quintanilla requested to remove Item 13. 

 
MOTION:   Council Member Braun moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 8-12 as submitted.  
Mayor Pro Tempore Ward seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

****** Consent Item 13 ****** 
 
Council Member Quintanilla referenced a Council question submitted and responded to by staff 
concerning the need for steel rail supports around the elevator that were not included in the original 
design. He stated that he would like to understand how and when the deficiency had been 
identified, and how to ensure that something like this does not happen again.  City Manager Pierson 
read staff’s response.  He asked Airport Director Joel Jenkinson to elaborate on the issue.  Mr. 
Jenkinson advised that in 2019 when the contractor submitted plans for the elevator, it was for a 
different elevator than was specified in the design documents.  The structural engineer on the job 
noted that additional steel rail supports are needed due to the use of a different elevator.  Council 
Member Braun expressed his concerns about this situation and made a motion to postpone this 
item for more information. 
 
MOTION:  Council Member Braun moved to Postpone this item to the August 11, 2020 Council 
meeting.  Mayor Pro Tempore Ward seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
Resolution No. R20-051:  Approve Acceptance Airport Improvement Program Grant 
Resolution No. R20-052:  Accept Donation Deed, Urban Intownhomes, Inc. 
Resolution No. R20-053:  Adopt Strategic Pillars and Milestones FY2021 

 
 

Regular Items 
 

 
14. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 

Amending Article XIX. UC Urban Center District Regulations by Revising Section 
2.C. Conditional Uses. Case 1802-Z/Town of Addison. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 7 of 11 
 

Charles Goff, Director of Development Services presented this item.  He advised this will amend 
the Urban Center District Regulations by adding overnight pet boarding with a special use permit 
regardless of the size of the property.  Mr. Goff advised that the ordinance for pet boarding 
currently requires five acres of property, noting that it was written several years ago when outdoor 
pet boarding was the standard.   
 
Mayor Chow opened and closed the Public Hearing with no one wishing to speak.  
 
MOTION:  Council Member Willesen moved to approve this item.  Council Member Hughes 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ordinance No. O20-32: Amend Article XIX. UC Urban Center District Regulations 

 
 
15. Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 

Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 15530 Quorum Drive, Which Property 
is Currently Zoned Urban Center, UC, by Approving a Special Use Permit for 
Overnight Pet Boarding. Case 1803-SUP/Pappy’s Pet Lodge.  

 
Charles Goff, Director of Development Services presented this item and provided the location.  He 
advised that Pappy’s Pet Lodge has been operating as a pet daycare and grooming facility since 
2014.  They would like to add overnight pet boarding to their operations.  There would be no 
structural or floor plan changes. Additional stacked kennels would be added to the existing daycare 
room. 
 
Mayor Chow opened and closed the Public Hearing with no one wishing to speak.  
 
MOTION:  Council Member Willesen moved to approve this item.  Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore 
Quintanilla seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ordinance No. O20-33: Zoning Change 15530 Quorum Drive SUP Pappy’s Pet Lodge 

 
 
16.   Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 

Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 3765 Belt Line Rd, Which Property is 
Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development, Through Ordinance O92-037, by 
Approving a Special Use Permit for a New Restaurant. Case 1813-SUP/Duck Donuts. 

 
Charles Goff, Director of Development Services presented this item.  He advised that Duck Donuts 
has been operating at this location in the Addison Plaza Shopping Center since 2019 as a takeout 
retailer.  They would now like to add tables and chairs so that customers can consume food on the 
premises.  This would change the use from retail to restaurant, requiring a special use permit. Mr. 
Goff added there is sufficient on-site parking. 
 
Mayor Chow opened and closed the Public Hearing with no one wishing to speak.  
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 8 of 11 
 

MOTION:  Council Member Hughes moved to approve this item.  Council Member Willesen 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ordinance No. O20-34: Zoning Change 3765 Belt Line Rd. SUP Duck Donuts 

 
 

 
17.    Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance 

Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 5290 Belt Line Road, Suite 105, Which 
Property is Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development, Through Ordinance O19-22, 
by Approving a Special Use Permit for a New Restaurant with the Sale of Alcoholic 
Beverages for on Premises Consumption Only. Case 1814-SUP/Mendocino Farms. 

 
Charles Goff, Director of Development Services presented this item. He provided the location for 
this proposed restaurant, noting it has 3,795 square feet including an outdoor patio area. The 
restaurant is considered a fast-casual sandwich shop with a focus on healthy foods. Mr. Goff 
advised there is sufficient parking on-site. Mr. Goff stated that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission voted on June 16, 2020 to recommend approval of a special use permit for a new 
restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages with the condition that the applicant shall not use 
any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic beverages in any exterior signage. 
 
Mayor Chow opened the Public Hearing. Chris Konecny, Mendocino Farms’ Director of 
Construction and Design advised that this is an upscale fast-casual restaurant that will serve chef 
inspired sandwiches and salads and will be take-out friendly scheduled for an early 2021 opening. 
With no other comments, Mayor Chow closed the Public Hearing.  
 
MOTION:  Council Member Walden moved to approve this item.  Council Member Willesen 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ordinance No. O20-35  Zoning Change 5290 Belt Line Rd. SUP Mendocino Farms 

 
 
18.  Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution Approving an Amendment to 
 License Agreement, Between the Town of Addison and Oncor Delivery Company, 
 LLC to Establish Standards for Construction of Improvements and Installation of 
 Landscaping in the Redding Trail License Area, and Authorize the City Manager to 
 Execute the Amendment. 
 
Janna Tidwell, Director of Parks and Recreation presented this item.  She reviewed that in January 
2020 Oncor Delivery Company presented plans to replace transmission towers along their 
easement located in the Redding Trail and Redding Trail Dog Park corridor.  The Town and Oncor 
currently have license agreements regarding use of the property. Additionally, there is a Hike, Bike 
and Trail Guidelines document dated 2014 that includes specific height requirements for 
ornamental trees and does not allow for other amenities that currently exist in the corridor.  Oncor 
agreed to work with Addison on removal and replacement of trees and other landscaping, and the 
overall recovery of the area following the tower replacement.  Ms. Tidwell reviewed the details of 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 9 of 11 
 

each party’s responsibility as stated in the Amendment.  She added that she and Oncor 
representative Kita Hobbs have personally walked the corridor and have identified the trees that 
will be removed, and a Tree Survey was prepared.  Council Member Willesen inquired about an 
art sculpture on the property. Ms. Tidwell advised that it will remain in place.   
 
Ms. Tidwell advised that the license agreement for the Redding Trail Dog Park will be revised to 
allow the Trail to extend and connect to the future Midway Trail.  She advised that staff is in the 
process of preparing the required construction documents for the extension that Oncor will review 
for approval.  This item will come to Council later.  She noted that during this project the dog park 
will have a portion that will remain open for use except during removal of the towers in that area. 
 
In addition to the agreed to items, Ms. Tidwell advised that Oncor identified two Live Oak trees 
located in the median on Belt Line Road under the transmission lines.  Trees are not allowed 
directly below the lines so during this project Oncor will have these trees removed as well.  Ms. 
Tidwell advised staff is researching whether the trees can be relocated. 
 
Ms. Tidwell reviewed the schedule for this project that will begin July 15 with vegetation removal 
and be completed by the end of November 2020. 

 
MOTION:  Council Member Willesen moved to approve this item.  Mayor Pro-Tempore Ward 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Resolution No. R20-054:  Amend Oncor License Agreement Redding Trail 

 
 
19.  Present, Discuss and Consider Action on a Resolution Directing the City Manager to 

Calculate the Voter-Approval Tax Rate of the Town of Addison in the Manner 
Provided for a Special Taxing Unit as Authorized by the Texas Tax Code Section 
26.04(C-1). 

 
Chief Financial Officer Steven Glickman presented this item.  He reviewed that Senate Bill 2 (S.B. 
2), the Texas Property Tax Reform and Transparency Act of 2019, lowered the amount an adopted 
tax rate can increase.  Prior to this tax bill, any rate adopted that exceeded an 8 percent increase 
over the prior year's rate, would trigger the ability of the citizens to petition for an election to "roll 
back" the tax rate. S.B. 2 has lowered this triggered rate from 8 percent to 3.5 percent and requires 
a city to hold an automatic election (Texas Tax Code 26.07). 
 
Mr. Glickman advised that an exception to the lowered 3.5 percent voter-approval tax rate and the 
automatic election is offered when a city is located in an area declared a disaster area during the 
current tax year by the Governor or by the President of the United States (Texas Tax Code 26.04(C-
1). This exception was met on March 13, 2020 when President Trump declared a national 
emergency and when Governor Abbott declared a state of emergency for every county in Texas 
the same day.  Approval of this resolution gives the Town the ability to calculate the voter-approval 
rate in the manner provided for a special taxing unit, which sets the voter-approval tax rate at 8 
percent instead of 3.5%.  It was stated that while this provides the Town with the option to exceed 
the typical 3.5% voter-approval tax rate, it does not require the Council to adopt a higher tax rate.  



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 10 of 11 
 

It was noted that this action allows the Town flexibility when determining the budget needed for 
future fiscal years. 
 
Mr. Glickman advised that the designated officer may continue calculating the voter-approval tax 
rate for the Town of Addison in the manner provided until the earlier of the following:  
 

1. The second tax year in which the total taxable value of the taxable property as shown 
on the appraisal roll for the Town of Addison exceeds the total taxable value of the 
taxable property on January 1 of the tax year in which the disaster occurred; or  

2. The third tax year after the tax year in which the disaster occurred. 
 
Mr. Glickman explained that if this resolution is adopted, the 8 percent may be “banked” and what 
is not used the first year may be used in the following two years to calculate the tax rate. 
 
In response to a question from Council Member Hughes, Mr. Glickman reviewed that if there is 
no resolution, the timeline for scheduling the public hearings, advertisement for budget and tax 
rate hearings and adoption of both would need to occur by August 17th.  If an election is required, 
it would be called for the November 3rd general election date.  
 
MOTION:  Council Member Walden moved to approve this item.  Deputy Mayor Pro-Tempore 
Quintanilla seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Resolution No. R20-055: Direct City Manager to Calculate Voter-Approval Tax Rate 

 
 
20. Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on CARES Act Programs. 
 
Bill Hawley, Assistant to the City Manager, presented this item.  He reviewed that during the June 
9, 2020 meeting, staff briefed Council on the ability to participate in a CARES Act reimbursement 
program in an amount of approximately $900,000 through an interlocal agreement (ILA) with 
Dallas County. Council approved this ILA and directed staff to pursue three potential programs.  
Staff developed the three programs and Dallas County approve them as follows: 
 
Public Health and Compliance Program (Town Reimbursement Program): This program will 
reimburse the Town for COVID-19 expenses such as personal protective equipment (masks, 
gloves, etc.), public space disinfection, and enhanced telework capabilities.  Staff recommends 
approval of the Public Health and Compliance Program in an amount of $115,000.   
 
Resident Assistance Program:  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, local non-profits have 
experienced an increase in demand for services from Addison residents. Mr. Hawley reviewed that 
Metrocrest Services CEO Tracy Eubanks stated that Addison families visited the Food Pantry 189 
times in April. Their rent assistance program served 22 Addison families in April. In response, 
Council approved emergency funding to Metrocrest Services on May 15, 2020 in the amount of 
$85,000. 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
July 14, 2020 City Council Meeting Minutes    Page 11 of 11 
 

While other non-profit partners may be eligible to receive funding for aiding Addison residents, 
Metrocrest Services' ongoing rent, food, and utility assistance programs align well with CARES 
Act requirements from the United States Treasury Department and Dallas County.  Metrocrest 
Services provided an estimate of the cost associated with providing these services to Addison 
residents for the remainder of calendar year 2020.  These figures were utilized to develop the 
Resident Assistance Program in an amount of $285,000.  This includes reimbursement to the Town 
for the initial $85,000 to Metrocrest Services and an additional $200,000 to Metrocrest Services 
for rent, food and utility assistance services for Addison residents.   
 
Addison CARES Lease/Mortgage Assistance Grant Program:  The Addison Economic 
Development and Tourism Department developed this business assistance to establish a fund in 
the amount of $500,000 to be used to award eligible businesses 75% of their gross lease or 
mortgage payments for two months for a maximum grant award of up to $10,000 per company.  
In response to Council Member Willesen’s question, Economic Development Director Orlando 
Campos explained that an eligible business would have fewer than 50 employees prior to March 
1st, and now must be employing at least 15 percent of those employees.  Additionally, an eligible 
business must have been in Addison as of September 1, 2019 and that the business did not receive 
any previous government funding through the Payroll Protection or a Small Business Association 
loans.  Mayor Chow expressed his concern on how the Town can verify whether a small business 
received other funding.  Mr. Campos advised that through a survey he learned that some businesses 
that could have applied for the funding did not because they had concerns about being able to repay 
a loan. He added that the United States Treasury is publishing a list of businesses that have already 
received some type of funding.  Council Member Hughes inquired whether funding could be 
reallocated in the event it is not needed in a program.  Mr. Hawley advised yes that Dallas County 
needs to approve a reallocation. 
 
MOTION:  Mayor Pro Tempore Ward moved to approve this item.  Council Member Hughes 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Adjourn Meeting 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Chow adjourned the meeting. 
      
   TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
          
      
   __________________________________ 
   Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Irma G. Parker, City Secretary 
 



   

Council Meeting 5.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold a Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance
Changing the Zoning on Property Located at 5100 Belt Line Road Suite 796, Which
Property is Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development, Through Ordinances
O12-002 and O20-08, by Approving a Special Use Permit for a New Restaurant
With the Sale of Alcoholic Beverages for on Premises Consumptions Only. Case
1815-SUP/Pie Tap.

BACKGROUND:
COMMISSION FINDINGS:

The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting virtually in regular session on
July 21, 2020, voted to recommend approval of a Special Use Permit for a new restaurant
with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only subject to the
following condition:  

The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic
beverages in any exterior signage. 

Voting Aye:  Catalani, Craig, DeFrancisco, Meleky, Resnik, Souers, Wheeler
Voting Nay:  none
Absent:        none
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none.

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on this case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Pie Tap 1815 SUP 
1815-SUP Staff Report 
1815-SUP Plans 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 1 of 6 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE TO GRANT A SPECIAL USE 
PERMIT FOR A RESTAURANT AND FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES FOR ON-PREMISE CONSUMPTION FOR PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 5100 BELT LINE ROAD, SUITE 796; PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO 
EXCEED TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED 
EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; 
SAVINGS, NO SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 5100 Belt Line Road, Suite 796, is zoned PD, Planned 
Development, through Ordinance Numbers O12-002 and O20-08; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on July 21, 2020 the Planning & Zoning 
Commission considered and made recommendations on a request for a Special Use Permit for a 
restaurant and a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises 
consumption (Case No.1815-SUP); and 
 
 WHEREAS, this change of zoning is in accordance with the adopted Comprehensive Plan 
of the Town of Addison, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 
information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 
amendment promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 
correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 
 
 SECTION 2.   That a Special Use Permit authorizing a restaurant and authorizing the sale 
of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only, on the property located at 5100 Belt 
Line Road, Suite 796, is hereby granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

(a) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, said Property shall be improved in 
accordance with the site plan, floor plan, and building elevations, which are attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 
(b) The Special Use Permit granted herein for a restaurant with the sale of alcoholic 

beverages for on-premises consumption only shall be limited to that particular area 
designated on the final site plan as encompassing a total area not to exceed 3,669 square 
feet. 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 2 of 6 

(c) No signs advertising sale of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted other than those 
authorized under the Liquor Control Act of the State of Texas, and any sign ordinance 
of the Town of Addison, Texas. 

 
(d) The sale of alcoholic beverages under this Special Use Permit shall be permitted in 

restaurants. Restaurants are hereby defined as establishments which receive at least sixty 
percent (60%) of their gross revenues from the sale of food. 

 
(e) Said establishment shall make available to the city or its agents, during reasonable hours 

its bookkeeping records for inspection, if required, by the city to ensure that the 
conditions of subparagraph (d) above are being met. 

 
(f) Any use of property considered as a nonconforming use under the Comprehensive 

Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Addison shall not be permitted to receive a license or 
permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 
(g) If the property for which this Special Use Permit is granted is not used for the purposes 

for which said permits were granted within one (1) year after the adoption of this 
ordinance, the City Council may authorize hearings to be held for the purpose of 
considering a change of zoning and repeal of the Special Use Permits granted herein. 

 
(h) If a license or permit to sell alcoholic beverages on property covered by this Special Use 

Permit is revoked, terminated or cancelled by proper authorities, the City Council may 
authorize hearings to be held for the purpose of considering a change of zoning repeal 
of the Special Use Permits granted herein. 

 
(i) The establishment shall not use the term “bar”, “tavern”, or any other terms or graphic 

depictions that relate to the sale of alcoholic beverages on any signs visible from the 
exterior of the premises. 

 
 SECTION 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 
of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 
in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 
Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 
 
 SECTION 4.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered 
in its entirety, as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or 
unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not 
have adopted said ordinance if any part or portion of said ordinance should be held to be 
unconstitutional or void. 
 
 SECTION 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict 
with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 3 of 6 

 SECTION 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 
approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 11TH day of August 2020. 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 4 of 6 

 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 5 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No.           Page 6 of 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1815-SUP 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1815-SUP/Pie Tap. Public hearing, discussion, and take action 
on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on property located 
at 5100 Belt Line Road Suite 796, which property is currently zoned PD, Planned 
Development, through Ordinances O12-002 and O20-08, by approving a Special Use 
Permit for a new restaurant with the sale of alcoholic beverages for on premises 
consumptions only. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

  
 

City of Dallas 



 

 

 

 

 

July 15, 2020 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1815-SUP/Pie Tap 

LOCATION:      5100 Belt Line Road Suite 796 

REQUEST: Approval of a Special Use Permit for a 
restaurant with the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premises consumption 
only in order to permit a new restaurant with 
an expanded patio. 

 
APPLICANT:  Alex Urrunaga, Plan B Group 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: This suite is located within Village on the Parkway property, currently zoned PD, 
Planned Development, through Ordinances O12-002 and O20-08. The suite is a vacant 
restaurant previously occupied by La Comida, which was operating under a Special Use Permit 
(SUP) obtained in 2003.  
 
The proposed new restaurant concept is called Pie Tap, which prides itself on “honest, artisan, 
and house-crafted” food and drink, with focus on food without artificial ingredients, preservatives, 
fillers or additives. Pie Tap menu offers house-crafted pizzas, sandwiches, salads, and rotisserie 
chicken and their locations are intended to provide a comfortable space with familiar vibes, as 
well as a shift in typical pizza house design, where the operation from raw to finished moves to 
the front of the house for everyone to see. There are currently three locations in the DFW 
Metroplex, two in Downtown Dallas and one in Plano. Founded by Rich Hicks, the Pie Tap brand 
is affiliated with such other ventures as Tin Star, MOOYAH, and Ojos Locos Sports Cantina.  
 
The applicant is proposing to relocate the bar area, which triggers the requirement for a new SUP. 
 
Proposed Plan:  The applicant is proposing to open a 3,669 square-foot restaurant, inclusive of a 
323 square foot patio area, which will include major interior renovations, including bar relocation, 
and exterior improvements. The floor plans shows a large open concept dining area, seating 131 
inside and 14 outside on the patio, with a dining counter facing the pizza production area, and a 
bar. The applicant is proposing a wood pergola for the patio area, increased storefront glazing on 
both sides, and new metal awnings.  
 



2 
 

 

Parking: This Planned Development district allows most uses to be parked at a ratio of 1 space 
per 225 square feet. This property requires 2,052 parking spaces and currently provides 2,262 
parking spaces.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS 
 
Pie Tap is a local and unique concept that will make a great addition to the variety of the existing 
food establishment choices in this area. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the request, subject to the following condition: 
 

• The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic 
beverages in any exterior signage. 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1815-SUP/Pie Tap 
 
July 21, 2020 
 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on July 21, 2020, 
voted to recommend approval of a Special Use Permit for a new restaurant with the sale of 
alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only subject to the following condition: 
 

• The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic 
beverages in any exterior signage. 
 

Voting Aye:  Catalani, Craig, DeFrancisco, Meleky, Resnik, Souers, Wheeler 
Voting Nay:  none 
Absent:        none 
 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:  
 
For:    none 
On: none 
Against:  none 



SUP AREA

FIRE

RISER

FDC.

KNOX BOX

GREASE

TRAPS

C

L

C

L

C

L

ADJACENT

TENANT

X

XXXXXX

X

X

X
XX

XX

HT=18.0±

HT=22.2±

C

O

N

C

R

E

T

E

 

W

A

L

L

 

(

T

Y

P

.

)

ONE STORY STUCCO

CONCRETE

PLANTER (TYP.)

INLET

INLET

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F

L

F

L

F

L

FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL FL

F

L

F

L

F

L

F

L

F

L

F

L

F

L

F

L

F

L

FLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFLFL

F

L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F

L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F

L

F

L

F
L

F
L

F
L

F
L

24' F.L.E.

VOL. 2001019, PG. 914

D.R.D.C.T.

STEPS

O

H

E

AutoCAD SHX Text
796

AutoCAD SHX Text
3,669 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: ANY REVISIONS TO THIS PLAN WILL REQUIRE TOWN APPROVAL AND WILL REQUIRE REVISIONS TO ANY CORRESPONDING PLANS TO AVOID CONFLICTS BETWEEN PLANS.  OPEN STORAGE WHERE PERMITTED, SHALL BE SCREENED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ZONING ORDINANCE BUILDINGS WITH AN AGGREGATE SUM OF 5,000 SQUARE FEET OR GREATER ON A LOT SHALL HAVE AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLERS INSTALLED THROUGHOUT ALL STRUCTURES. ALTERNATIVE FIRE PROTECTION MEASURES MAY BE APPROVED BY THE FIRE DEPARTMENT.   ALL SIGNAGE IS SUBJECT TO TOWN APPROVAL ALL FENCES AND RETAINING WALLS SHALL BE SHOWN ON THE SITE PLAN AND ARE SUBJECT TO BUILDING INSPECTION DIVISION APPROVAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
796 3669 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
776

AutoCAD SHX Text
764

AutoCAD SHX Text
795

AutoCAD SHX Text
704

AutoCAD SHX Text
700

AutoCAD SHX Text
708

AutoCAD SHX Text
712

AutoCAD SHX Text
716

AutoCAD SHX Text
728

AutoCAD SHX Text
752B

AutoCAD SHX Text
748

AutoCAD SHX Text
740

AutoCAD SHX Text
752

AutoCAD SHX Text
820

AutoCAD SHX Text
816

AutoCAD SHX Text
806

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
802 

AutoCAD SHX Text
820

AutoCAD SHX Text
882

AutoCAD SHX Text
872

AutoCAD SHX Text
870

AutoCAD SHX Text
832

AutoCAD SHX Text
836

AutoCAD SHX Text
840

AutoCAD SHX Text
852

AutoCAD SHX Text
610

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
544

AutoCAD SHX Text
540

AutoCAD SHX Text
534

AutoCAD SHX Text
532

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
510

AutoCAD SHX Text
504

AutoCAD SHX Text
502

AutoCAD SHX Text
410

AutoCAD SHX Text
430

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
408

AutoCAD SHX Text
406

AutoCAD SHX Text
404

AutoCAD SHX Text
402

AutoCAD SHX Text
208 (AMC THEATRE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
216

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PD PARKING REQUIREMENTS: 1 SPACE/225 SF OF AREA - ALL USES EXCEPT THEATER THEATER THEATER REQUIREMENTS: 1 SPACE/3 SEATS TOTAL BUILDING AREA INCLUDING GARAGE 626, 741 SF 626, 741 SF GROSS LEASABLE AREA (GLA) TOTAL  409,011 SF 409,011 SF GLA UNDER PD      365,306 SF 365,306 SF GLA THEATER       43,705 SF 43,705 SF PD: 1 SPACE/250 SF OF AREA REGARDLESS OF USE, (EXCLUDING THEATER) PARKING REQUIRED W/ PATIO:   1,624 SPACES 1,624 SPACES THEATER PARKING 1 SPACE/3 SEATS THEATER SEAT COUNT     1,282 SEATS 1,282 SEATS PARKING REQUIRED       428 SPACES   428 SPACES TOTAL PROJECT PARKING TABULATIONS: REQUIRED: PD USES 1/225:      1,624 SPACES 1,624 SPACES THEATER          428 SPACES     428 SPACES  428 SPACES TOTAL REQUIRED:      2,052 SPACES 2,052 SPACES EXISTING:  SURFACE        1,640 SPACES 1,640 SPACES GARAGE            622 SPACES        622 SPACES     622 SPACES   622 SPACES TOTAL PROVIDED:      2,262 SPACES 2,262 SPACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5100 BELT LINE RD. SUITE 796 ADDISON TX, 75254

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIE TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.18.2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE FOR SUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING HISTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FIRM PLAN B GROUP INC 3710 COMMERCE ST.  SUITE 130 DALLAS,TX 75226 WWW.PLANBGROUP.NET 214.522.0006

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER PIE TAP ADDISON LLC 6010 W SPRING CREEK PKWY, PLANO TX 75024 949-887-0608

AutoCAD SHX Text
 PROJECT # 1815-SUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY OWNER VILLAGE ON THE PARKWAY 5100 BELTLINE RD. DALLAS, TX 75254 CONTACT: SUSAN STEELHAMMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A004

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:1/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION KEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:  1/128" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION



E
1

TO GO

TV

SEATING COUNTS
INTERIOR :

BAR 09

DINING 113

COUNTER   09

SUBTOTAL: 131

EXTERIOR:

PATIO 14

TOTAL 145

1'-6"

TV

3'-0 1/8"
4'-0"

4'-0"

U
N

D
E
R

 C
O

U
N

T
E
R

 S
E
R

V
.

S
T

A
T

IO
N

3'-0 1/8"

HOST/DINING

1932 SF

KITCHEN

430SF

WIC

WOMEN'S RR

116 SF

MEN'S RR

69 SF

BAR

333 SF

PATIO

323 SF

MAIN

ENTRY

AREA

DINING 1932 SF

BAR 333 SF

OPEN KITCHEN 466 SF

KITCHEN 430 SF

RESTROOM 185 SF

TOTAL INTERIOR 3346 SF

PATIO 323 SF

TOTAL 3669SF

2
9
'-
7
 1

/2
"

4
'-
0
"

4
'-
4
 1

/2
"

53'-1 5/8"

7'-10 7/8"
3'-2 3/8"

VIF

2'-9 7/8"
7'-1 1/8"

VIF
2'-4 3/4"

14'-10"

VIF 4'-7 3/8"
6'-2"

VIF

7
'-
1
0
 1

/4
"

2
4
'-
0
"

V
IF

4'-1 1/4"

3'-0"4'-0"27'-0 1/8"7'-4 1/4"

9'-6 1/2"

3'-4 1/4"

12'-8 1/2" 12'-8 1/2" 12'-8 1/2"

8
'-
4
 1

/2
"

6
'-
0
"

HOSTESS

STAND/WAITING

AREA

OPEN KITCHEN SEATING AREA

OPEN

KITCHEN

466 SF

5' 10' 20'0

5
1
0
0
 B

E
L
T

 L
IN

E
 R

D
.

S
U

IT
E
 7

9
6

A
D

D
IS

O
N

 T
X

, 7
5
2
5
4

P
IE

 T
A

P

06.18.2020

IS
S
U

E
 F

O
R

 S
U

P

DRAWING HISTORY

DESIGN FIRM

PLAN B GROUP INC

3710 COMMERCE ST.

SUITE 130

DALLAS,TX

75226

WWW.PLANBGROUP.NET

214.522.0006

OWNER

PIE TAP ADDISON LLC

6010 W SPRING CREEK PKWY,

PLANO TX 75024

949-887-0608

 PROJECT # 1815-SUP

PROPERTY OWNER

VILLAGE ON THE PARKWAY

5100 BELTLINE RD.

DALLAS, TX 75254

CONTACT: SUSAN STEELHAMMER

FLOOR PLAN

A101

01 FLOOR PLAN
SCALE:1/4"=1'-0"

http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
AutoCAD SHX Text
H

http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
AutoCAD SHX Text
C

http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=B-0655-BSTP&R=TS&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=B-0655-BSTP.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=9-OP-20&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=service_mopsinks.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=7-PS-90&R=AD&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=hs_pedestal_base.pdf
AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

http://www.kclcad.com/emailstaging.asp?M=HL662-1STD&R=HC&TID=&VC=13&AL=True&VER=4:9:65&P=F40034.pdf


AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPERED GLASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DOOR TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LEVEL 19'-8  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DOOR TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MT-06

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CLAY ROOF TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR  LEVEL 0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-05

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING DOOR TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT TENANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MT-07

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING METAL PANELS TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PT-05

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LEVEL 19'-8  "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOR  LEVEL 0'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIALS CALCULATION NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL ELEVATION SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITH APPLIED FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL (%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO(PT-05) EXISTING TO REPAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1535 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
984 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
64 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT GLASS/PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1535 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
282 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
18 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY ROOF/EXISTING TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1535 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
233 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL AWNINGS/PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1535 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
70 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD/PROPOSED PATIO PERGOLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1535 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENTRYWAY METAL/EXISTING TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1535 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
55 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIALS CALCULATION WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITH APPLIED FINISH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL (%)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO(PT-05) EXISTING TO REPAINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
815 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
422 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
52 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOREFRONT GLASS/PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
815 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
132 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
20%

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY ROOF/EXISTING TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
815 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
123 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15%

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL AWNINGS/PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
815 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
120 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD/PROPOSED PATIO PERGOLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
815 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
17 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 %

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: THIS FACADE PLAN IS FOR CONCEPTUAL PURPOSES ONLY.  ALL BUILDING PLANS REQUIRE REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES. ALL MECHANICAL UNITS SHALL BE SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW AS REQUIRED BY THE ZONING ORDINANCE WHEN PERMITTED, EXPOSED UTILITY BOXES AND CONDUITS SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE BUILDING ALL SIGNAGE AREAS AND LOCATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES ROOF ACCESS SHALL BE PROVIDED INTERNALLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED BY CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5100 BELT LINE RD. SUITE 796 ADDISON TX, 75254

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIE TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
06.18.2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE FOR SUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING HISTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN FIRM PLAN B GROUP INC 3710 COMMERCE ST.  SUITE 130 DALLAS,TX 75226 WWW.PLANBGROUP.NET 214.522.0006

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER PIE TAP ADDISON LLC 6010 W SPRING CREEK PKWY, PLANO TX 75024 949-887-0608

AutoCAD SHX Text
 PROJECT # 1815-SUP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY OWNER VILLAGE ON THE PARKWAY 5100 BELTLINE RD. DALLAS, TX 75254 CONTACT: SUSAN STEELHAMMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:1/4"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT.  ELEVATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A301



   

Council Meeting 6.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action Related to a Special Election to Consider
Charter Amendments; Including Potential Action to Adopt an Ordinance Ordering
the Special Election for the November 2020 Uniform Election Date.    

BACKGROUND:
The City Council adopted Ordinance O20-04 on February 13, 2020 ordering that a
Special Election be held on May 2, 2020 for the purpose of considering twenty-six (26)
propositions to amend the Town's Home Rule Charter. In March, Governor Greg Abbott
issued a Proclamation in response to the COVID-19 pandemic allowing political
subdivisions within Texas to move general and special elections scheduled in May to
November 3, 2020. In response to the Governor's Proclamation, the Addison City
Council voted to postpone the Special Election to a date to be determined.

At the meeting on July 14, 2020, the City Council discussed options for holding the
election on either November 3, 2020 or May 1, 2021. There was discussion about
whether or not the Town is required to hold the election on November 3, 2020 or if the
Special Election could wait until May 2021. Council directed staff to clarify options and
seek the Governor's input in when the election could be held. Staff has sent a letter to the
Governor's office and expects to be able to share their response at the Council Meeting.

During this item, Council will continue the discussion. If the consensus among the City
Council is to hold the election on November 3, 2020, then the attached ordinance should
be approved formally calling the Special Election.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council.

Attachments
Letter - Request to Hold a Special Election in May 2021 
Ordinance - Ordering a Special Election for November 2020 
Exhibit A - Notice of Special Election 











 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 1 of 12 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  O20-  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS, ORDERING A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMEBER 3, 
2020, FOR THE PURPOSE OF VOTING ON THE ADOPTION OR REJECTION OF 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE EXISTING HOME RULE CHARTER OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AS AMENDED; DESIGNATING THE PLACES AT 
WHICH SAID ELECTION IS TO BE HELD; APPOINTING THE EARLY 
VOTING CLERK; PROVIDING FOR POSTING AND PUBLICATION OF 
NOTICE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas, in the exercise of the 

discretion vested in it by the Constitution and laws of this State, and in accordance with the 
provisions of Chapter 9 of the Texas Local Government Code and having received the report of 
the Charter Commission has determined to submit for adoption or rejection, amendments to 
Addison’s existing Home Rule Charter; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town of Addison at the Regular Meeting of 
February 13, 2020 passed Ordinance No. O20-04, ordering that a Special Election be held on 
May 2, 2020, a uniform election date per Texas law, for the purpose of amending the Home 
Rule Charter with twenty-six (26) Propositions; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the Governor of Texas certified that the novel 
coronavirus (COVID-19) poses an imminent threat of disaster and declared a state of 
disaster for all counties in Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 18, 2020, the Governor of Texas issued a Proclamation to 
suspend various statutes to allow political subdivisions of the state that would otherwise hold 
elections on May 2, 2020, to move their general and special elections for 2020 to the next 
uniform election date, occurring on November 3, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Texas Secretary of State has issued, pursuant to the Proclamation of 
March 18, 2020, Election Advisory No. 2020-12, to provide guidance to local political 
subdivisions regarding issues raised by the Proclamation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 14, 2020, the Town of Addison City Council adopted Ordinance 
No. O20-11 amending Ordinance No. 020-04 postponing the May 2, 2020 Special Charter 
Amendment Election.  The General Election was cancelled as all candidates were unopposed 
and therefore declared election; and 
  

WHEREAS, on July 27, 2020, the Governor of Texas issued a Proclamation to 
suspend various statutes ordering early voting by personal appearance to begin on Tuesday, 
October 13, 2020 and shall continue through the fourth day before election day and allow a 
voter to deliver a marked ballot in person to the early voting clerk’s office prior to and 
including on election day.   
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 2 of 12 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby found 
and declared to be true and correct.  
 
SECTION 2. A special election is hereby ordered to be held on the 3rd day of November 2020, 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., for adoption or rejection, of proposed amendments 
to the Home Rule Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas. Said election shall be held by the Dallas 
County Elections Administrator pursuant to a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Elections 
Services, with respect to such Special Election as approved by the Town and the Dallas County 
Elections Administrator. 

 
SECTION 3. The Election Day polling place where qualified voters shall cast ballots at such 
location in the Town of Addison, Texas, Special Election are as follows: 
 

Fire Station 1:  4798 Airport Parkway, Addison, TX 75001-3364 
Fire Station 2:  3950 Beltway Drive, Addison, TX 75001-4407 

 
Election polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on the date of the election.  
 
SECTION 4. PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENTS 

 
• Proposition A. Amending various section of the Charter to provide clarification by changing 

“qualified voter” to “registered voter” because “qualified voter” is defined as a “registered 
voter” in the Texas Election Code. 
 

• Proposition B.  Amending various sections of the Charter to remove specific state law 
references and instead require that the City Council shall act in accordance with state law. 

• Proposition C.   Amending the title of Section 5.19 “Power to correct errors” to “Power to 
cancel taxes” to clarify what that section actually addresses. 
 

• Proposition D.  Amending Section 2.10 “Meetings of the City Council” to allow special 
meetings of the City Council to be called by three (3) councilmembers instead of four (4) as 
currently stated. 
 

• Proposition E.  Amending Section 2.10 “Meetings of the City Council” of the Charter of the 
Town of Addison, Texas, to allow special meetings of the City Council to be called by the City 
Manager. 

 
If Propositions D and E are approved, Section 2.10 would read as follows: 

 
Section 2.10. - Meetings of the City Council.  
The City Council shall hold at least one or more regular meeting in each month at a time to be fixed by 
it for such regular meetings and may hold as many additional meetings during the month as may be 
necessary for the transaction of the business of the Town and its citizens. Except as allowed by state 
law, all meetings of the City Council shall be open to the public and shall be held and notice given in 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 3 of 12 
 

accordance with applicable provisions of State law. Meetings shall be held at the Town Hall, except 
that the City Council may designate another place for such meetings and shall take such action as is 
reasonable and necessary to accommodate the public. Special meetings of the Council may be called 
by the Mayor or three (3) Council members or the City Manager, giving written notice of such meetings 
to the City Secretary, who shall notify each member of the Council and the City Manager of the time 
and place of each meeting and the purpose for which it was called. 

 
• Proposition F.  Amending the title of Section 11.23 “Rearrangement and numbering” to “Non-

substantive changes” and amending Section 11.23 to provide ongoing authority for the city 
council, by ordinance, to make non-substantive changes for clarity, change terms of gender to 
gender-neutral terms and removing Section 11.18 “Gender clause.” 

 
If Proposition F is approved, Section 11.23 would read as follows: 

 
Section 11.23. – Non-substantive changes.  
The City Council shall have the power, by ordinance, to: 

(a) renumber and rearrange all articles, sections, and paragraphs of the Charter, or any 
amendments thereto, as it shall deem appropriate; but, without changing the meaning or effect 
or any part hereof;  

(b) change references to state law included in this charter to reflect a recodification or 
renumbering of such laws by the Texas legislature, (but without changing the meaning or effect 
of any part hereof);  

(c) make non-substantive changes as needed for clarity; and 
(d) change words of gender to gender-neutral terms. 

 
Upon the passage of any ordinance authorized in this section, a copy thereof, certified by the City 
Secretary, shall be forwarded to the Secretary of State. 
 
Words of a singular number shall be held to include the plural and vice-versa, unless the context 
requires otherwise.  
 

• Proposition G.   Amending the title of Section 5.31 “General powers” to “General powers of 
taxation” to avoid confusion regarding the Town’s ability to levy taxes as authorized by state 
law and make clear it is not intended as a general grant of powers to the City Council. 

 
If Proposition G is approved, Section 5.31 would read as follows: 

 
Section 5.31. – General powers of taxation.  
Unless otherwise provided by this Charter and by Ordinances passed hereunder, all property in the 
Town liable for taxation shall be assessed in accordance with the laws of the state insofar as applicable. 
In addition to the powers herein conferred with reference to the assessment and collection of taxes, the 
Town of Addison shall have and may exercise all powers and authority not prohibited by the laws of 
the State of Texas. 
 

• Proposition H.  Deleting Section 11.15 “Publicity of records” because the availability of 
records to the public is already governed by the Texas Public Information Act.  
 

• Proposition I.  Amending the Charter to remove outdated forms of petitions and simply require 
that all petitions conform with the requirements of state law.  
 

• Proposition J.  Amending the Charter to require that persons who sign a petition for candidacy 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 4 of 12 
 

for office or a ballot measure must include either their date of birth or voter registration number 
as required by the Texas Election Code. 

 
This would apply to Section 8.03 – Nominations, Section 9.01. – Initiative, Section 
9.05. – Referendum, and Section 10.02. – Petitions for recall. 

 
• Proposition K.   Amending Section 8.03 “Nominations” to provide that an individual may 

become a candidate for Mayor or City Council by petition only and remove the option for self-
nomination. 
 

• Proposition L.  Amending Section 8.03 “Nominations” to increase to 25, the minimum 
number of signatures for a petition to place a candidate in nomination for a City Council office 
in accordance with state law. 
 

• Proposition M.  Amending Section 8.03 “Nominations” to increase to 50, the maximum 
number of signatures for a petition to place a candidate in nomination for a City Council office. 
 
If Propositions K, L and M are approved, Section 8.03 would read as follows: 

 
Section 8.03. – Nominations. 
Any person having the qualifications required by this Charter and state law may be placed in nomination 
by a petition signed by at least twenty-five (25) and not more than fifty (50) registered voters, who shall 
be designated as their sponsors.  No voter shall sign more than one petition, and should a voter do so, 
their signature shall be void except as to the petition first signed.  With each signature shall be stated 
the place of residence of the signer, giving the street, number or other description sufficient to identify 
it and the signer’s date of birth or voter registration number. 
 
 Persons who desire to be candidates, or petitioners placing a name in nomination, must file with the 
City Secretary during the dates and by the deadlines set forth in state law. 
 

• Proposition N.  Deleting Section 11.24 “Town depository” because the selection and 
designation of a depository for the Town is exclusively governed by state law. 
 

• Proposition O.  Amending Section 2.08(f) “Powers of the City Council” to require members 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Zoning Adjustment to be residents and 
registered voters of the Town. 

 
• Proposition P.  Amending Section 2.08(f) “Powers of the City Council” to state that no one 

may serve concurrently on the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of Zoning 
Adjustment. 

 
If Propositions O and P are approved, Section 2.08(f) would read as follows: 

 
Section 2.08. – Powers of the City Council. 
All powers of the Town and the determination of all matters of policy shall be vested in the City Council. 
Without limitation of the foregoing and among the other powers that may be exercised by the City 
Council, the following are hereby enumerated for greater certainty: 
… 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 5 of 12 
 

f.  Appoint members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of Zoning Adjustment who 
shall be residents and registered voters of the Town. No one may serve concurrently on both boards;  

 
• Proposition Q.  Amending Section 7.04 “Planning and Zoning Commission” to change 

references to “City Zoning Commission” and “City Planning Commission” to the “Planning 
and Zoning Commission.” 

 
If Proposition Q is approved, Section 7.04 would read as follows: 

 
Section 7.04 – Planning and Zoning Commission. 
The City Council shall have the power and authority to appoint a Planning and Zoning Commission, in 
accordance with state law; and the City Council and the Town of Addison shall have the rights, 
privileges, powers, and authority, given, permitted and granted under state law, relative to zoning and 
planning in, for, and of, municipalities, and their environs. 

 
• Proposition R.  Amending the title of Section 5.11 “Bonds, warrants and other evidences of 

indebtedness” to read “Bonds, warrants and other debt matters.” 
 

• Proposition S.  Amending Section 5.11(1) “Bonds, warrants and other debt matters” to clarify 
that the Town is authorized to issue debt for economic development purposes. 

 
If Propositions R and S are approved, Section 5.11(1) would read as follows: 

 
Section 5.11. - Bonds, warrants and other debt matters. 
1. Power to issue. In keeping with the Constitution of the State of Texas, and not contrary thereto, the 

Town of Addison, shall have the right to issue all tax bonds, revenue bonds, funding and refunding 
bonds, time warrants and other evidences of indebtedness for any public purpose, so long as not 
prohibited by state law, including but not limited to, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness to 
promote or finance economic development within the City. 

• Proposition T. Amending Section 2.04 “Compensation” to remove the requirement that the 
City Council approve at a public meeting, any reimbursements to councilmembers for actual 
expenses incurred in the performance of official duties.  

 If Proposition T is approved, Section 2.04 would read as follows: 

Section 2.04. – Compensation. 
Compensation of members of the City Council shall be determined by the Council by ordinance, but no 
increase in such compensation shall take effect until commencement of the terms of Mayor and/or 
Council members elected at the next regular election. Members of the City Council shall also be entitled 
to reimbursement for actual expenses incurred in the performance of official duties. 

 
• Proposition U.  Amending Section 7.03 “Master plan” to change the wording “official 

master plan” to the “Comprehensive Plan.” and amending Section 7.03 to state that the 
City Council may amend the Comprehensive Plan by majority vote of the City Council 
members present at a Council meeting. 

 
If Proposition U is approved, Section 7.03 would read as follows: 

 
Section 7.03. – Comprehensive plan. 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 6 of 12 
 

a. The official Comprehensive Plan of the Town shall be used as a guide by the City Council 
and the city Planning and Zoning Commission for development of the Town with respect to 
land use, thoroughfares and streets, buffer zones, parks, and other matters affecting 
development. 

b. The Comprehensive Plan may be amended by majority vote of those members of the Council 
that are present at a council meeting, and such amendments shall be entered therein and 
shall become part thereof and of the official records of the Town. 

 
• Proposition V.  Amending Section 11.26 “Disaster clause” to remove the references to the 

“local Chamber of Commerce” and “Board of Trustees of the local school district” and instead 
direct that the Dallas County Judge appoint a commission, which shall include all surviving 
members of the City Council, in the event of a disaster when a quorum of the City Council 
cannot be assembled because of death or injury. 

 
If Proposition V is approved, Section 11.26 would read as follows: 

 
Section 11.26. – Disaster Clause. 
In case of disaster when a legal quorum of the elected City Council cannot otherwise be assembled due 
to multiple deaths or injuries, the surviving members of the City Council or highest surviving City 
official, if no elected official remains, must within twenty-four (24) hours of such disaster, request the 
County Judge of Dallas County to appoint a five member commission, which shall include all surviving 
elected City officials, to govern the City, respond to the emergency and within fifteen (15) days of such 
disaster call a City election to be held as soon as practicable, or as provided in the Texas Election Code, 
for election of a required quorum, if for good reasons it is known that a quorum of the present City 
Council will never again meet. 

 
• Proposition W.  Amending Section 2.17 “Induction of Council into office” to clarify that the 

first meeting of the City Council following an election of members of the City Council shall 
be the meeting to canvass the election as provided by state law and the first order of business 
shall be to canvass the election, declare the results and seat the newly elected members.  

 
 If Proposition W is approved, Section 2.17 will read as follows: 

 
Section 2.17. – Induction of Council into office. 
The first meeting of the City Council following an election for one or more council offices, shall be to 
canvass the results of the election in accordance with state law. At such meeting, the first order of 
business shall be the canvassing of returns, declaring the results and the seating of such newly elected 
members of the Council following their oath of office. 

 
• Proposition X. Amending Section 8.06 “Conducting and canvassing elections” to clarify that 

the first meeting of the City Council following a municipal election shall be the meeting to 
canvass the election and declare the results as provided by state law. 

 
       If Proposition X, is approved, Section 8.06 will read as follows: 

 
Section 8.06. – Conducting and canvassing elections. 
Returns of all municipal elections shall be made by the election officers to the Council at the first City 
Council meeting following the election, which shall be the meeting to canvass the election and declare 
the results in accordance with state law. 

 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 7 of 12 
 

• Proposition Y.  Deleting Section 11.27 “When provisions take effect” because it only applied 
to the initial Home Rule Charter election in 1979 and is now unnecessary. 

 
• Proposition Z.  Deleting Section 11.30 “Ordinance, rules and regulations validated” because 

it only applied to the initial Home Rule Charter election in 1979 and is now unnecessary. 
 
 
SECTION 5.  BALLOT PROPOSITIONS 
 
The official ballots to be used in this special election shall comply with the applicable provisions 
of the Texas Election Code, shall state each proposed amendment separately and distinctly so 
that the voters shall pass upon each amendment separately and apart from another so that each 
voter may vote “For” or “Against” any amendment or amendments without voting “For” or 
“Against” all such amendments.  Any non-substantive changes that need to be made for the ballot 
are hereby approved.  A summary of the Propositions shall be set forth on said ballots in 
substantially the following form and language: 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON – SPECIAL ELECTION 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION A 
Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to provide clarification 
by changing “qualified voter” to “registered voter” because “qualified voter” is defined 
as a “registered voter” in the Texas Election Code? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
 TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION B 

Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended in various sections to 
remove specific state law references and instead require that the City Council shall act 
in accordance with state law? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION C 

Shall Section 5.19 “Power to correct errors” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be renamed to “Power to cancel taxes” to clarify what that section actually 
addresses? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION D 

Shall Section 2.10 “Meetings of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to allow special meetings of the City Council to be called by three (3) 
councilmembers instead of four (4) as currently stated?  

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION E 

Shall Section 2.10 “Meetings of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be amended to allow special meetings of the City Council to be called 
by the City Manager? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 8 of 12 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION F 
Shall Section 11.23 “Rearrangement and numbering” of the Charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be renamed to “Non-substantive changes” and amended to provide 
ongoing authority for the city council, by ordinance, to make non-substantive changes for 
clarity, change terms of gender to gender-neutral terms and remove Section 11.18 
“Gender clause?” 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION G 

Shall Section 5.31 “General powers” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
renamed to “General powers of taxation” to avoid confusion regarding the Town’s 
ability to levy taxes as authorized by state law and make clear it is not intended as a 
general grant of powers to the City Council? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION H 

Shall Section 11.15 “Publicity of records” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, 
be deleted because the availability of records to the public is already governed by the 
Texas Public Information Act?  

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION I 

Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to remove outdated forms 
of petitions and simply require that all petitions conform with the requirements of state 
law? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION J 

Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to require that persons who 
sign a petition for candidacy for office or a ballot measure must include either their date 
of birth or voter registration number, as required by the Texas Election Code? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION K 

Shall Section 8.03 “Nominations” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to provide that an individual may become a candidate for Mayor or City Council 
by petition only and remove the option for self-nomination? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION L 

Shall Section 8.03 “Nominations” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to increase to 25, the minimum number of signatures for a petition to place a 
candidate in nomination for a City Council office in accordance with state law? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION M 

Shall Section 8.03 “Nominations” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to increase to 50, the maximum number of signatures for a petition to place a 
candidate in nomination for a City Council office? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION N 

Shall Section 11.24 “Town depository” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
deleted because the selection and designation of a depository for the Town is exclusively 
governed by state law? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 9 of 12 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION O 

Shall Section 2.08(f) “Powers of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to require members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
Board of Zoning Adjustment to be residents and registered voters of the Town? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION P 

Shall Section 2.08(f) “Powers of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to state that no one may serve concurrently on the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the Board of Zoning Adjustment? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION Q 

Shall Section 7.04 “Planning and Zoning Commission” of the charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be amended to change references to “City Zoning Commission” and 
“City Planning Commission” to the “Planning and Zoning Commission?” 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION R 

Shall Section 5.11(1) “Bonds, warrants and other evidences of indebtedness” of the 
Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be renamed to “Bonds, warrants and other debt 
matters”? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION S 

Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to clarify that the Town is 
authorized to issue debt for economic development purposes? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION T 

Shall Section 2.04 “Compensation” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to remove the requirement that the City Council approve at a public meeting, 
any reimbursements to councilmembers for actual expenses incurred in the performance 
of official duties? Expenditures would still be approved by the City Council during the 
budgeting process and records would be available in accordance with open records 
requirements. 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION U 

Shall Section 7.03 “Master plan” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to change the wording “official master plan” to the “Comprehensive Plan” since 
that is the name of the Town’s long-range planning document and to state that the City 
Council may amend the Comprehensive Plan by majority vote of the City Council 
members present at a Council meeting? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION V 

Shall Section 11.26 “Disaster clause” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to remove the references to the “local Chamber of Commerce” and “Board of 
Trustees of the local school district” and instead direct that the Dallas County Judge 
appoint a commission, which shall include all surviving members of the City Council, in 
the event of a disaster when a quorum of the City Council cannot be assembled because 
of death or injury? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 10 of 12 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION W 

Shall Section 2.17 “Induction of Council into office” of the Charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be amended to clarify that the first meeting of the City Council following 
an election of members of the City Council shall be the meeting to canvass the election 
as provided by state law and the first order of business shall be to canvass the election, 
declare the results and seat the newly elected members? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION X 

Shall Section 2.17 “Induction of Council into office” of the Charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be amended to clarify that the first meeting of the City Council following 
an election of members of the City Council shall be the meeting to canvass the election 
as provided by state law and the first order of business shall be to canvass the election, 
declare the results and seat the newly elected members? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION Y 

Shall Section 11.27 “When provisions take effect” on the Charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be deleted because it only applied to the initial Home Rule Charter 
election in 1979 and is now unnecessary? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
TOWN OF ADDISON PROPOSITION Z 

Shall Section 11.30 “Ordinance, rules and regulations validated” of the Charter of the 
Town of Addison, Texas, be deleted because it only applied to the initial Home Rule 
Charter election in 1979 and is now unnecessary? 

□    FOR 
□    AGAINST 
 

 
 
SECTION 6:  EARLY VOTING BY PERSONAL APPEARANCE  
 
Early voting by personal appearance begins on Tuesday, October 13, 2020 and ends on Friday, 
October 30, 2020 during the hours listed below: 
 

Tuesday, October 13, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Wednesday, October 14, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Thursday, October 15, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Friday, October 16, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday, October 17, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Sunday, October 18, 2020 – 1:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Monday, October 19, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, October 20, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Wednesday, October 21, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Thursday, October 22, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Friday, October 23, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Saturday, October 24, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Sunday, October 25, 2020 – 1:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Monday, October 26, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Tuesday, October 27, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Wednesday, October 28, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
Thursday, October 29, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

Friday, October 30, 2020 – 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. 
 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 11 of 12 
 

Early voting by personal appearance shall be held at Addison Fire Station 1- 4798 Airport 
Parkway, Addison, TX 75001-3364. Qualified voters of the City may vote at any of the additional 
early voting locations open under full contract services with the Dallas County Elections 
Administration.  
 
SECTION 7. EARLY VOTING BY MAIL  
The Dallas County Elections Administrator is hereby appointed as Early Voting Clerk. 
Applications for a ballot by mail shall be delivered to the early voting clerk, Toni Pippins-Poole, 
Dallas County Elections Administrator, 1520 Round Table Drive, Dallas, TX 75247. Applications 
for ballots by mail must be received no later than the close of business on October 23, 2020. 
 
SECTION 8. ELECTION OFFICERS  
The election officers for each polling place shall be appointed and compensated pursuant to the 
Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services with the Dallas County Elections 
Administrator for said election on November 3, 2020.  
 
SECTION 9. METHOD OF VOTING  
Voting on the date of the Election and early voting shall be by the use of a lawfully approved 
voting system.  The preparation of the voting equipment to be used in connection with such voting 
system and the official ballots for the Election shall conform to the Texas Election Code (“Code”), 
as amended. The specific voting machines to be used shall be provided by Dallas County in 
accordance with the Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Elections Services with the Dallas 
County Elections Administrator.  
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICE OF ELECTION 
The City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to publish and/or post, in the time and manner 
prescribed by law, all notices required to be so published and/or posted in connection with the 
conduct of this election.  The Special Election Notice is attached hereto as EXHIBIT A. 
 
SECTION 11. GOVERNING LAW 
The election shall be held as set forth by the Charter and the Texas Election Code, and all resident 
registered voters of the City shall be eligible to vote in said Election. The Mayor and the City 
Secretary of the City, in consultation with the City Attorney, are hereby authorized and directed to 
take any and all actions necessary to comply with the provisions of the Texas Election Code and 
any other state or federal law in carrying out and conducting the election, whether or not expressly 
authorized herein. 
 
SECTION 12. EFFECTIVE DATE  
This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage.   
  



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Ordinance No. O20-         Page 12 of 12 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 
TEXAS on this 11th day of AUGUST 2020. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 

              
     Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary  Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 
 

 



NOTICE OF SPECIAL ELECTION 
(AVISO DE ELECCION ESPECIAL) 

 
To the Registered Voters of the Town of Addison Texas: 
(A los votantes registrados de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas:) 
 
Notice is hereby given that the polling places listed below will be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., on 
November 3, 2020, for voting in a Special Election to amend the Home Rule Charter with 26 Propositions. 
(El aviso se da por medio, que las casillas electorales sitadas abajo se abrirán desde las 7:00 a.m. hasta las 7:00 p.m. 
el 3 de noviembre del 2020, para votar en la Elección Especial para modificar la Carta de la Regla de Origen con 26 
Proposicións.) 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON – SPECIAL ELECTION 
(CIUDAD DE ADDISON – ELECCIONES ESPECIALES) 

 
Proposition A:  Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to provide clarification by 
changing “qualified voter” to “registered voter” because “qualified voter” is defined as a “registered voter” in 
the Texas Election Code? 
(Proposición A: ¿Se modificará la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para proporcionar aclaraciones cambiando "votante 
calificado" por "votante registrado" porque "votante calificado" se define como un "votante registrado" en el Código Electoral de 
Texas?) 
 
Proposition B:  Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended in various sections to remove 
specific state law references and instead require that the City Council shall act in accordance with state law? 
(Proposición B: ¿Se modificará la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, en varias secciones para eliminar referencias específicas de 
la ley estatal y en su lugar exigirá que el Concejo Municipal actúe de acuerdo con la ley estatal?) 
 
Proposition C:  Shall Section 5.19 “Power to correct errors” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, 
be renamed to “Power to cancel taxes” to clarify what that section actually addresses? 
(Proposición C: ¿Se cambiará el nombre de la Sección 5.19 "Poder para corregir errores" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, 
Texas, a "Poder para cancelar impuestos" para aclarar lo que esa sección realmente aborda?) 
 
Proposition D:  Shall Section 2.10 “Meetings of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to allow special meetings of the City Council to be called by three (3) councilmembers 
instead of four (4) as currently stated?  
(Proposición D: ¿Se modificará la Sección 2.10 "Reuniones del Concejo Municipal" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, 
para permitir que las reuniones especiales del Concejo Municipal sean convocadas por tres (3) concejales en lugar de cuatro (4) como 
se indica actualmente?) 
 
Proposition E:  Shall Section 2.10 “Meetings of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to allow special meetings of the City Council to be called by the City Manager? 
(Proposición E: ¿Se modificará la Sección 2.10 "Reuniones del Concejo Municipal" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para 
permitir que las reuniones especiales del Concejo Municipal sean convocadas por el Administrador de la Ciudad?) 
 
Proposition F:  Shall Section 11.23 “Rearrangement and numbering” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be renamed to “Non-substantive changes” and amended to provide ongoing authority for the city 
council, by ordinance, to make non-substantive changes for clarity, change terms of gender to gender-neutral 
terms and remove Section 11.18 “Gender clause?” 
(Proposición F: ¿Se cambiará el nombre de la Sección 11.23 "Reorganización y numeración" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, 
Texas, a "Cambios no sustantivos" y se modificará para proporcionar autoridad permanente para que el ayuntamiento, por 
ordenanza, realice cambios no sustantivos para mayor claridad, cambie los términos de género a términos neutrales en cuanto al 
género y elimine la Sección 11.18 "Cláusula de género?") 
 
Proposition G:  Shall Section 5.31 “General powers” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
renamed to “General powers of taxation” to avoid confusion regarding the Town’s ability to levy taxes as 
authorized by state law and make clear it is not intended as a general grant of powers to the City Council? 
(Proposición G: ¿Se cambiará el nombre de la Sección 5.31 "Poderes Generales" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, a 
"Poderes generales de imposición" para evitar confusiones con respecto a la capacidad de la Ciudad de recaudar impuestos según 
lo autorizado por la ley estatal y dejar claro que no está destinada a ser una concesión general de poderes al Ayuntamiento?) 
 
 
Proposition H:  Shall Section 11.15 “Publicity of records” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, 



be deleted because the availability of records to the public is already governed by the Texas Public 
Information Act?  
(Proposición H: ¿Se eliminará la Sección 11.15 "Publicidad de registros" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, porque la 
disponibilidad de registros al público ya está regida por la Ley de Información Pública de Texas?)  
 
Proposition I:  Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to remove outdated forms of 
petitions and simply require that all petitions conform with the requirements of state law?   
(Proposición I: ¿Se modificará la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para eliminar las formas obsoletas de peticiones y 
simplemente exigir que todas las peticiones se ajusten a los requisitos de la ley estatal?)   
 
Proposition J:  Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to require that persons who 
sign a petition for candidacy for office or a ballot measure must include either their date of birth or voter 
registration number, as required by the Texas Election Code? 
(Proposición J: ¿Se modificará la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para exigir que las personas que firmen una solicitud de 
candidatura para un cargo o una medida de votación deben incluir su fecha de nacimiento o número de registro de votante según lo 
requerido por el Código Electoral de Texas?) 
 
Proposition K:  Shall Section 8.03 “Nominations” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended 
to provide that an individual may become a candidate for Mayor or City Council by petition only and remove 
the option for self-nomination? 
(Proposición K: ¿Se modificará la Sección 8.03 "Nominaciones" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para prever que una 
persona pueda convertirse en candidata a Alcalde o Concejal Municipal por petición solamente y eliminar la opción de auto-
nominación?) 
 
Proposition L:  Shall Section 8.03 “Nominations” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended 
to increase to 25, the minimum number of signatures for a petition to place a candidate in nomination for a 
City Council office in accordance with state law? 
(Proposición L: ¿Se modificará la Sección 8.03 "Nominaciones" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para aumentar a 25, el 
número mínimo de firmas para una petición para colocar a un candidato en la nominación para una oficina del Concejo Municipal de 
acuerdo con la ley estatal?) 
 
Proposition M:  Shall Section 8.03 “Nominations” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended 
to increase to 50, the maximum number of signatures for a petition to place a candidate in nomination for a 
City Council office? 
(Proposición M: ¿Se modificará la Sección 8.03 "Nominaciones" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para aumentar a 50, 
el número máximo de firmas para una petición para colocar a un candidato en la nominación para un puesto en el Concejo 
Municipal?) 
 
Proposition N:  Shall Section 11.24 “Town depository” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
deleted because the selection and designation of a depository for the Town is exclusively governed by state 
law? 
(Proposición N: ¿Se eliminará la Sección 11.24 "Depositario de la Ciudad" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, porque la 
selección y designación de un depositario para la Ciudad se rige exclusivamente por la ley estatal?) 
 
Proposition O:  Shall Section 2.08(f) “Powers of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to require members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and Board of Zoning 
Adjustment to be residents and registered voters of the Town? 
(Proposición O: ¿Se modificará la Sección 2.08(f) "Poderes del Concejo Municipal" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, 
para exigir que los miembros de la Comisión de Planificación y Zonificación y la Junta de Ajuste de Zonificación sean residentes y 
votantes registrados de la Ciudad?) 
 
Proposition P:  Shall Section 2.08(f) “Powers of the City Council” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to state that no one may serve concurrently on the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the Board of Zoning Adjustment? 
(Proposición P: ¿Se modificará la Sección 2.08(f) "Poderes del Concejo Municipal" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, 
para indicar que nadie puede servir simultáneamente en la Comisión de Planificación y Zonificación y en la Junta de Ajuste de 
Zonificación?) 
 
Proposition Q:  Shall Section 7.04 “Planning and Zoning Commission” of the charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be amended to change references to “City Zoning Commission” and “City Planning 
Commission” to the “Planning and Zoning Commission?” 
(Proposición Q: ¿Se modificará la Sección 7.04 "Comisión de Planificación y Zonificación" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, 
Texas, para cambiar las referencias a "Comisión de Zonificación Municipal" y "Comisión de Planificación Municipal" a la "Comisión 
de Planificación y Zonificación?") 



 
Proposition R:  Shall Section 5.11(1) “Bonds, warrants and other evidences of indebtedness” of the Charter 
of the Town of Addison, Texas, be renamed to “Bonds, warrants and other debt matters”? 
Proposición R: ¿Se cambiará el nombre de la Sección 5.11(1) "Bonos, garantías y otras evidencias de endeudamiento" de la Carta 
de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, a "Bonos, garantías y otros asuntos de deuda"? 
 
Proposition S:  Shall the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended to clarify that the Town is 
authorized to issue debt for economic development purposes? 
(Proposición S: ¿Se modificará la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para aclarar que la Ciudad está autorizada a emitir deudas 
con fines de desarrollo económico?) 
 
Proposition T:  Shall Section 2.04 “Compensation” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to remove the requirement that the City Council approve at a public meeting, any reimbursements 
to councilmembers for actual expenses incurred in the performance of official duties? Expenditures would 
still be approved by the City Council during the budgeting process and records would be available in 
accordance with open records requirements. 
(Proposición T: ¿Se modificará la Sección 2.04 "Compensación" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para eliminar el 
requisito de que el Concejo Municipal apruebe en una reunión pública cualquier reembolso a los concejales por los gastos reales 
incurridos en la ejecución de sus deberes oficiales? Los gastos seguirían siendo aprobados por el Ayuntamiento durante el proceso 
de presupuestación y los registros estarían disponibles de acuerdo con los requisitos de los registros abiertos?) 
 
Proposition U:  Shall Section 7.03 “Master plan” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be amended 
to change the wording “official master plan” to the “Comprehensive Plan” since that is the name of the Town’s 
long-range planning document and to state that the City Council may amend the Comprehensive Plan by 
majority vote of the City Council members present at a Council meeting? 
(Proposición U: ¿Se modificará la Sección 7.03 "Plan Maestro" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para cambiar el término 
"Plan Maestro Oficial" a "Plan Integral" ya que ese es el nombre del documento de planificación de largo alcance de la Ciudad y 
para indicar que el Concejo Municipal puede modificar el Plan Integral por mayoría de votos de los miembros del Ayuntamiento 
presentes en una reunión del Consejo?) 
 
Proposition V:  Shall Section 11.26 “Disaster clause” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, Texas, be 
amended to remove the references to the “local Chamber of Commerce” and “Board of Trustees of the local 
school district” and instead direct that the Dallas County Judge appoint a commission, which shall include all 
surviving members of the City Council, in the event of a disaster when a quorum of the City Council cannot 
be assembled because of death or injury? 
(Proposición V: ¿Se modificará la Sección 11.26 "Cláusula de Desastre" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para eliminar 
las referencias a la "Cámara de Comercio local" y "Junta de Síndicos del distrito escolar local" y en su lugar dar instrucciones para 
que el Juez del Condado de Dallas nombre una comisión, que incluirá a los miembros supervivientes del Ayuntamiento, en caso de 
desastre cuando un quórum del Ayuntamiento no pueda lograrse a causa de muerte o lesión?) 
 
Proposition W:  Shall Section 2.17 “Induction of Council into office” of the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be amended to clarify that the first meeting of the City Council following an election of members of 
the City Council shall be the meeting to canvass the election as provided by state law and the first order of 
business shall be to canvass the election, declare the results and seat the newly elected members? 
(Proposición W: ¿Se modificará la Sección 2.17 "Inducción del Consejo al cargo" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para 
aclarar que la primera reunión del Concejo Municipal tras las elecciones de los miembros del Ayuntamiento será la reunión para 
sondear las elecciones como lo estipula la ley estatal, y el primer orden del día será sondear las elecciones, declarar los resultados 
y nombrar a los miembros recién elegidos?) 
 
Proposition X:  Shall Section 8.06 “Conducting and canvassing elections” of the Charter of the Town of 
Addison, Texas, be amended to clarify that the first meeting of the City Council following a municipal election 
shall be the meeting to canvass the election and declare the results as provided by state law? 
(Proposición X: ¿Se modificará la Sección 8.06 "Conducir y sondear elecciones" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, Texas, para 
aclarar que la primera reunión del Ayuntamiento después de una elección municipal será la reunión para sondear las elecciones y 
declarar los resultados según lo dispuesto por la ley estatal?) 
 
Proposition Y:  Shall Section 11.27 “When provisions take effect” on the Charter of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, be deleted because it only applied to the initial Home Rule Charter election in 1979 and is now 
unnecessary? 
(Proposición Y: ¿Se eliminará la Sección 11.27 "Cuando las disposiciones entren en vigor" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, 
Texas, porque sólo se aplicaba a las elecciones iniciales de los Estatutos Municipales en 1979 y ahora es innecesaria?) 
 
Proposition Z:  Shall Section 11.30 “Ordinance, rules and regulations validated” of the Charter of the Town 



of Addison, Texas, be deleted because it only applied to the initial Home Rule Charter election in 1979 and 
is now unnecessary? 
(Proposición Z: ¿Se eliminará la Sección 11.30 "Ordenanza, reglas y reglamentos validados" de la Carta de la Ciudad de Addison, 
Texas, porque sólo se aplicaba a las elecciones iniciales de los Estatutos Municipales en 1979 y ahora es innecesaria?) 

            
LOCATION(S) OF ELECTION DAY POLLING PLACES IN THE TOWN OF ADDISON 

(UBICACIÓN DE LOS SITIOS DE VOTACIÓN DEL DÍA DE LAS ELECCIONES EN LA CIUDAD DE ADDISON) 
Fire Station 1:  4798 Airport Parkway, Addison, TX 75001-3364 

(Estación de bomberos 1: 4798 Airport Parkway, Addison, TX 75001-3364) 
Fire Station 2: 3950 Beltway Drive, Addison, TX 75001-4407 

(Estación de bomberos 2: 3950 Beltway Drive, Addison, TX 75001-4407) 
        

LOCATION(S) OF EARLY VOTING BY PERSONAL APPEARANCE IN THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON (UBICACIÓN DE LOS SITIOS DE VOTACIÓN ANTICIPADA EN PERSONA EN LA CIUDAD DE ADDISON)  

Fire Station 1:  4798 Airport Parkway, Addison, TX 75001-3364 
(Estación de bomberos 1: 4798 Airport Parkway, Addison, TX 75001-3364) 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  Dallas County Election Department will utilize countywide Vote Centers, which will 
enable any Addison registered voter in Dallas County to vote at any designated polling location on Election 
Day and during Early Voting by Personal Appearance.  A complete list of Vote Centers as designated by the 
Dallas County Elections Administrator, including the Town of Addison polling places listed above may be 
found at – http//www.dallasountyvotes.org 
(TENGA EN CUENTA QUE: El Departamento Electoral del Condado de Dallas utilizará los Centros de votación del Condado, lo cual permitirá 
que cualquier elector de Addison registrado en el Condado de Dallas pueda votar en cualquier sitio de votación designado, el día de las elecciones y 
durante la votación anticipada por comparecencia en persona.  Una lista completa de los Centros de votación designados por el Administrador 
electoral del Condado de Dallas, incluyendo los sitios de votación de la Ciudad de Addison mencionados anteriormente, se puede encontrar en – 
https//www.dallascountyvotes.org) 

EARLY VOTING DATES AND TIMES 
 

Main Early Voting Location: (Ubicacion principal de votacion adelantada): 
 

Dallas County Elections Department, 1520 Round Table Drive, Dallas, TX 75247 
 
Application for a Ballot by Mail may be downloaded from website: evapplications@dallascounty.org 

(Solicitud para Boleta por Correo se puede descargar de nuestro sitio web):  
 

Information by phone:  Dallas County Elections Department - 469-627-8683 
 (Información por teléfono:  (Departamento de Elecciones del Condado de Dallas  
 
Applications for a Ballot by Mail must be submitted by the close of business on April 21, 2020 to: 

(Solicitudes para una Boleta por Correo pueden ser sometidas hasta el cierre de negocios el 21 de Abril del 2020 a): 
 

Toni Pippins-Poole, Joint Early Voting Clerk  
(Secretario De Votación Adelantada Conjunta)  
Dallas County Elections 
1520 Round Table Drive 
Dallas, TX 75247 

 
ISSUED THIS THE 11th day of AUGUST 2020. 
(Emitido este día 11TH  de AGOSTO del 2020.) 

                
Joe Chow, Mayor (Alcalde) 
Town of Addison, Texas  
(Cuidad de Addison, Texas) 
 

 

mailto:evapplications@dallascounty.org


   

Council Meeting 7.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Excellence in Asset Management

Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Implement the Asset Management Plan

Improve all modes of transportation with infrastructure in an acceptable
condition and well maintained
Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of
Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020.

BACKGROUND:
On November 5, 2019, the Town of Addison had all five bond propositions approved by
voters totaling $70,620,000.  The 2020 General Obligation Bond issuance would
generate $15,135,000 in project funds from the following authorizations: 

 $14,030,000 from the authorized $22,300,000 from Proposition A for street
improvements.  This would fund the design costs associated with the Keller Springs
Road and Airport Parkway reconstruction projects, to which contracts have been
awarded by Council.  The funds also include proceeds for the construction phase of
Keller Springs Road. 
$365,000 of the authorized $6,723,000 from Proposition C for parks and recreation
improvements and facilities.  This would fund the design of improvements to the
Addison Athletic Club, including locker room reconfiguration, gymnasium and track
improvements, and pool modernization.
$140,000 from the authorized $7,395,000 from Proposition D for improvements to
existing municipal buildings.  This would fund the design of the HVAC and roof at
the Addison Athletic Club as well as the boiler replacement, for which the Council
has approved a reimbursement resolution and the project is completed.
$600,000 from the authorized $600,000 from Proposition E for traffic control
systems for which a contract has been awarded by Council.

Certain details concerning the General Obligation Bonds will not be known until the
completion of the sale on August 11, 2020.  This information will be made available at
the Council meeting on August 11, 2020, prior to the discussion of this item.  The
ordinance will be updated at the meeting.  

The Town of Addison's AAA/Aaa bond ratings from Standard and Poor's and Moody's
were reaffirmed as part of this bond sale.



RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Authorization of 2020 General Obligation Bonds 



ORDINANCE

relating to

$___________
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
SERIES 2020

Dated: August 1, 2020

Adopted:  August 11, 2020

 

#6205211.3





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01. Definitions................................................................................................................2
Section 1.02. Findings....................................................................................................................4
Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings..................................................................4
Section 1.04. Interpretation............................................................................................................4

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds..............................................................................................5
Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund........................................................................................5

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE BONDS

Section 3.01. Authorization...........................................................................................................6
Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest..........................................................6
Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.................................................................7
Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds......................................................................8
Section 3.05. Ownership................................................................................................................9
Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange......................................................................9
Section 3.07. Cancellation...........................................................................................................10
Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds...................................................................................................10
Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds...............................................................................................10
Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System.......................................................................................11
Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System.....12
Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co.........................................................................................12

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption.....................................................................................13
Section 4.02. Optional Redemption.............................................................................................13
Section 4.03. Reserved.................................................................................................................13
Section 4.04. Partial Redemption.................................................................................................13
Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners..........................................................................14
Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption...................................................................................14

(i)
#6205211.3



Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption.............................................................................................14
Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption........................................................................14
Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment...................................................................................................15

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.....................................................15
Section 5.02. Qualifications.........................................................................................................15
Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.....................................................................15
Section 5.04. Termination............................................................................................................16
Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners..................................................................................16
Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.........................................................16
Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor..........................................................................16

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section 6.01. Form Generally......................................................................................................16
Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds.................................................................................................17
Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration................................................................................................23
Section 6.04. Legal Opinion........................................................................................................23
Section 6.05. Statement Insurance...............................................................................................23

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement..........................................................................24
Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds..............................................................................24
Section 7.03. Deposit of Proceeds...............................................................................................25

ARTICLE VIII

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS;
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01. Creation of Funds...................................................................................................25
Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund......................................................................................25
Section 8.03. Construction Fund..................................................................................................26
Section 8.04. Security of Funds...................................................................................................26
Section 8.05. Deposit of Proceeds...............................................................................................26
Section 8.06. Investments............................................................................................................26
Section 8.07. Investment Income.................................................................................................26

(ii)
#6205211.3



ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds............................................................................................27
Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants...................................................................27
Section 9.03. Federal Income Tax Matters..................................................................................27
Section 9.04. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.................................29
Section 9.05. No Federal Guaranty..............................................................................................29
Section 9.06. No Hedge Bonds....................................................................................................29
Section 9.07. No Arbitrage..........................................................................................................29
Section 9.08. Arbitrage Rebate....................................................................................................29
Section 9.09. Information Reporting...........................................................................................30
Section 9.10. Record Retention...................................................................................................30
Section 9.11. Registration............................................................................................................30
Section 9.12. Deliberate Actions.................................................................................................30
Section 9.13. Continuing Obligation...........................................................................................31

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.01. Events of Default...................................................................................................31
Section 10.02. Remedies for Default.............................................................................................31
Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive........................................................................................31

ARTICLE XI

DISCHARGE

Section 11.01. Discharge...............................................................................................................32

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 12.01. Annual Reports......................................................................................................32
Section 12.02. Material Event Notices..........................................................................................32
Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments...........................................................34

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS

Section 13.01. Amendments..........................................................................................................35

(iii)
#6205211.3



ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance............................................................................................36
Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity.....................................................................................................36
Section 14.03. No Personal Liability.............................................................................................36

ARTICLE XV

EFFECTIVENESS

Section 15.01. Effectiveness..........................................................................................................36

(iv)
#6205211.3



AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TOWN
OF  ADDISON,  TEXAS,  GENERAL  OBLIGATION  BONDS,
SERIES  2020  IN  THE AGGREGATE  PRINCIPAL AMOUNT
OF  $___________;  AWARDING  THE  SALE  THEREOF;
LEVYING A TAX, AND PROVIDING FOR THE SECURITY
FOR AND PAYMENT OF SAID BONDS; AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION  AND  DELIVERY  OF  A  PAYING
AGENT/REGISTRAR  AGREEMENT;  APPROVING  THE
OFFICIAL STATEMENT;  ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS
RELATING  TO  THE  SUBJECT;  AND  DECLARING  AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison (the “Town”)  intends to issue bonds to finance public
improvements the City Council considers necessary within the Town; and

WHEREAS, the bonds hereinafter authorized were duly and favorably voted, as required
by the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, at elections held in the Town, on May 12,
2012 and November 5, 2019 (the “Elections”); and

WHEREAS, at the Elections, the following are among the purposes and amounts of the
bonds which were authorized, reflecting any amount previously issued pursuant to each voted
authorization, the amount therefrom being issued pursuant to this Ordinance, and the balance that
remains unissued after the issuance of the bonds herein authorized, to wit: and

Purpose Date
Authorized

Amount
Authorized

Amount
Previously
Issued

Amount
Being
Issued(1)

Unissued
Balance

Street Utilities 5/12/2012 $29,500,000 $6,500,000 $-0- $23,000,000
Parking Facilities 5/12/2012    3,000,000 -0- -0-     3,000,000
Keller Springs Road 
and Airport Parkway 
Improvements

11/5/2019 22,300,000 -0- 14,030,000     8,270,000

Quorum Drive and 
Montfort Drive 
Improvements

11/5/2019 33,602,000 -0- -0- 33,602,000

Parks and Recreation 11/5/2019    6,723,000 -0-     365,000     6,358,000
Town Facilities and 
Improvements

11/5/2019    7,395,000 -0-     140,000     7,255,000

Traffic Control 
Systems

11/5/2019       600,000 -0-     600,000      600,000

$103,120,000 $6,500,000 $15,135,000 $81,485,000
___________________

#6205211.3



 Includes premium in the amount of $___________ allocated to voted authorization.

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and in the
best interests of the Town and its citizens that it issue such bonds authorized by this Ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; therefore,

BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON,
TEXAS, THAT:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section I.1. Definitions.

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in
this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or other day on
which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office is located
are required or authorized by law or executive order to close.

“Bond” means any of the Bonds.

“Bonds” means the bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Ordinance and
designated as “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation, Taxable Series 2020.

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and, with respect to a
specific  section  thereof,  such  reference  shall  be  deemed  to  include  (a)  the  Regulations
promulgated under such section, (b) any successor provision of similar import hereafter enacted,
(c)  any  corresponding  provision  of  any  subsequent  Internal  Revenue  Code,  and  (d)  the
Regulations promulgated under the provisions described in (b) and (c).

“Delivery Date” means the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers and designated
as the initial date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) of this Ordinance.

 “Designated  Payment/Transfer  Office”  means  (i)  with  respect  to  the  initial  Paying
Agent/Registrar named herein, its office in Dallas, Texas, or at such other location designated by
the Paying Agent/Registrar and (ii) with respect to any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, the
office of such successor designated and located as may be agreed upon by the Town and such
successor.

- 2 -
#6205211.3



“DTC”  means  The  Depository  Trust  Company  of  New  York,  New  York,  or  any
successor securities depository.

“DTC  Participant”  means  brokers  and  dealers,  banks,  trust  companies,  clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System.

“Event  of  Default”  means  any  event  of  default  as  defined  in  Section 10.01  of  this
Ordinance.

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that
“financial  obligation”  shall  not  include  municipal  securities  (as  defined  in  the  Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule)
has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

“Fiscal  Year”  means  such fiscal  year  as  shall  from time  to  time  be  set  by the  City
Council.

“Initial Bond” means the initial bond authorized by Section 3.04(d) of this Ordinance.

“Interest  and  Sinking  Fund”  means  the  interest  and  sinking  fund  established  by
Section 2.02 of this Ordinance.

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates upon which interest on the Bonds is
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, such dates being
February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing February 15, 2021.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance.

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in
the Register.

“Paying  Agent/Registrar”  means  initially  The  Bank  of  New  York  Mellon  Trust
Company,  National  Association,  Dallas,  Texas,  or  any successor  thereto  as  provided in  this
Ordinance.

“Purchaser(s)” means the initial purchaser(s) of the Bonds as set forth in Section ___.

“Record Date” means  the last  Business  Day of the month  next  preceding an Interest
Payment Date.

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance.

- 3 -
#6205211.3



“Regulations” means the applicable proposed, temporary or final Treasury Regulations
promulgated under the Code or, to the extent applicable to the Code, under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1954, as such regulations may be amended or supplemented from time to time.

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the Town
and DTC.

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b).

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b).

“Town” means the Town of Addison, Texas.

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds as the same come
due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Bonds duly called for redemption prior to
maturity.

Section I.2. Findings.

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble
to  this  Ordinance  are hereby adopted,  restated,  and made  a  part  of  the operative  provisions
hereof. 

Section I.3. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never
be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise.

Section I.4. Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context  requires otherwise,  words of the masculine gender shall  be
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and
words  of  the  singular  number  shall  be  construed  to  include  correlative  words  of  the  plural
number and vice versa.

(b) This  Ordinance  and  all  the  terms  and  provisions  hereof  shall  be  liberally
construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein.

- 4 -
#6205211.3



ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section II.1. Payment of the Bonds.

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State
of  Texas,  there shall  be levied  and there  is  hereby levied  for the current  year  and for each
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the
Town,  at  a  rate  sufficient,  within  the  limit  prescribed  by  law,  to  pay  the  debt  service
requirements of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent per annum (whichever amount is the
greater),  when  due  and  payable,  full  allowance  being  made  for  delinquencies  and  costs  of
collection.

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the Town most recently approved in accordance with
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or
required  hereby  to  be  deposited  to  the  Interest  and  Sinking  Fund  are  hereby  pledged  and
committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as
due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance.

(d) If  the  liens  and  provisions  of  this  Ordinance  shall  be  released  in  a  manner
permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or
appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking
Fund may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds, there shall be subtracted the amount of any
Bonds that have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been deposited with
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such redemption.

Section II.2. Interest and Sinking Fund.

(a) The  Town hereby  establishes  a  special  fund  or  account  to  be  designated  the
“Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, Interest and Sinking Fund”
(the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official depository bank of the
Town separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the Town.

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest
and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of
the Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance.

- 5 -
#6205211.3



ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE BONDS

Section III.1. Authorization.

The  Town’s  bonds  to  be  designated  “Town  of  Addison,  Texas,  General  Obligation
Bonds,  Series  2020”  (the  “Bonds”),  are  hereby  authorized  to  be  issued  and  delivered  in
accordance  with the Constitution  and laws of the State  of Texas,  specifically  Chapter  1331,
Texas Government Code, as amended.  The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal
amount of $__________ for the following purposes, to wit: (i) constructing and improving Keller
Springs  Road and Airport  Parkway,  including sidewalks,  bridges,  landscaping,  streetlighting,
right-of-way protection, and related storm drainage improvements and acquiring rights-of-way in
connection therewith, (ii) acquiring, developing, renovating and improving parks, park facilities,
recreation  facilities,  including  the  Addison  Athletic  Club,  and  open  spaces  for  park  and
recreation  purposes  in  and  for  the  Town,  including  the  acquisition  of  land  therefor,  (iii)
renovating, repairing, improving, and equipping existing Town service, public safety, conference
and  administrative  facilities,  including  repair,  replacement,  and  improvement  of  roofs,
mechanical,  electrical,  plumbing,  air  conditioning,  heating  and  ventilation  equipment  and
systems, façade improvements, and improvements required by the Americans with Disabilities
Act and other applicable laws, (iv) improving, acquiring and equipping advanced traffic control
systems and facilities and (v) paying of the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section III.2. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.

(a) The Bonds shall be dated August 1, 2020.  The Bonds shall be in fully registered
form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall
be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-1.

(b) The Bonds shall mature on February 15 in the years and in the principal amounts
set forth in the following schedule:

Years
Principal
Amount Interest Rate Years

Principal
Amount Interest Rate

2/15/2021 2/15/2031
2/15/2022 2/15/2032
2/15/2023 2/15/2033
2/15/2024 2/15/2034
2/15/2025 2/15/2035
2/15/2026 2/15/2036
2/15/2027 2/15/2037
2/15/2028 2/15/2038
2/15/2029 2/15/2039
2/15/2030 2/15/2040

- 6 -
#6205211.3



(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or
prior  redemption  from the  later  of  the  date  of  delivery  of  the  Bonds  to  the  Purchaser  (the
“Delivery Date”) or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or
provided for at the rates per annum for each maturity specified in the schedule contained in
subsection (b) above.  Such interest shall be payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15
of each year commencing February 15, 2021, and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year of twelve 30-day months.

Section III.3. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.

(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be
paid in lawful money of the United States of America.

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for
such  interest  payment  (a  “Special  Record  Date”)  shall  be  established  by  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the
Town.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due
interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall
be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the Register at the
close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment
Date,  and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar  to each Owner,  first  class United States mail,
postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register, or by such other
customary  banking  arrangement  acceptable  to  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  and  the  Owner;
provided, however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such alternative banking
arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Bonds,
interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date,
whether  at  the  maturity  date  or  the  date  of  prior  redemption  thereof  upon presentation  and
surrender  of  such  Bond  at  the  Designated  Payment/Transfer  Office  of  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a
Saturday,  Sunday,  legal  holiday,  or day on which banking institutions  in  the city  where the
Designated Payment/Transfer  Office of the paying Agent/Registrar  is located are required or
authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next
succeeding  day  which  is  not  a  Saturday,  Sunday,  legal  holiday,  or  day  on  which  banking
institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall
be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due
and payable.

- 7 -
#6205211.3



(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in
trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to
which  the  Unclaimed  Payments  pertain.   Subject  to  Title  6  of  the  Texas  Property  Code,
Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three years after
the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment or payments on
the Bonds thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains after the retirement
of  all  outstanding  Bonds,  shall  be  paid  to  the  Town  to  be  used  for  any  lawful  purpose.
Thereafter, neither the Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, nor any other person shall be liable or
responsible to any Owners of such Bonds for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or
on account of any such Bonds, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.

Section III.4. Execution and Registration of Bonds.

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Town by the Mayor and the City
Secretary,  by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official  seal of the Town shall be
impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the
same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said
officers, and such facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of
the Town had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds.

(b) In the event that any officer of the Town whose manual or facsimile signature
appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before
the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office.

(c) Except as provided below, no Bonds shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose
or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon
the  Certificate  of  Paying  Agent/Registrar  substantially  in  the  form  provided  herein,  duly
authenticated  by manual  execution  by an  officer  or  duly authorized  signatory of  the Paying
Agent/Registrar.   It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the
Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds.  In
lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial  Bonds
delivered  at  the  Closing  Date  shall  have  attached  thereto  the  Comptroller’s  Registration
Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which Certificate shall be
evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas,
that  it  is a valid  and binding obligation of the Town, and that  it  has been registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Bond (the “Initial Bond”) representing the entire
principal  amount  of  all  Bonds,  payable  in  stated  installments  to  the  initial  purchaser,  or  its
designee,  executed by the Mayor and City Secretary of the Town, approved by the Attorney
General,  and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller  of Public Accounts, will  be
delivered to the initial purchaser or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying
Agent/Registrar  shall  cancel  the  Initial  Bond  and  deliver  to  DTC  on  behalf  of  the  initial
purchaser one registered definitive Bond for each year of maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate

- 8 -
#6205211.3



principal  amount  of all  Bonds for such maturity,  registered in  the name of Cede & Co.,  as
nominee of DTC.

Section III.5. Ownership.

(a) The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person
in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of
making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in
whose name such Bond is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable),
and for all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the Town nor the
Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary.

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall
discharge the liability of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent
of the sums paid.

Section III.6. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.

(a) So  long  as  any  Bonds  remain  outstanding,  the  Town shall  cause  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in
which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Ordinance.

(b) The ownership  of  a  Bond may be transferred  only upon the  presentation  and
surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar
with  such  endorsement  or  other  evidence  of  transfer  as  is  acceptable  to  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Bond shall be effective until entered in the Register.

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at
the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of
the same maturity  and interest  rate  and in  a  denomination  or denominations  of  any integral
multiple of $5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of
the  Bonds  presented  for  exchange.   The  Paying  Agent/Registrar  is  hereby  authorized  to
authenticate and deliver Bonds exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section.

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to
the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of
which such exchange Bond is delivered.

(e) No  service  charge  shall  be  made  to  the  Owner  for  the  initial  registration,
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration,
transfer, or exchange of a Bond.

(f) Neither  the  Town  nor  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  be  required  to  issue,
transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar

- 9 -
#6205211.3



days  prior to the date  fixed for redemption;  provided, however,  such limitation shall  not be
applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

Section III.7. Cancellation.

All  Bonds  paid  or  redeemed  before  scheduled  maturity  in  accordance  with  this
Ordinance,  and  all  Bonds  in  lieu  of  which  exchange  Bonds  or  replacement  Bonds  are
authenticated  and delivered  in accordance with this  Ordinance,  shall  be canceled and proper
records  made  regarding  such  payment,  redemption,  exchange,  or  replacement.   The  Paying
Agent/Registrar shall then return such canceled Bonds to the Town or may in accordance with
law dispose of such cancelled Bonds.

Section III.8. Temporary Bonds.

(a) Following  the  delivery  and  registration  of  the  Initial  Bond  and  pending  the
preparation of definitive Bonds, the proper officers of the Town may execute and, upon the
Town’s  request,  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  authenticate  and  deliver,  one  or  more
temporary  Bonds  that  are  printed,  lithographed,  typewritten,  mimeographed,  or  otherwise
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which
they  are  delivered,  without  coupons,  and  with  such  appropriate  insertions,  omissions,
substitutions, and other variations as the officers of the Town executing such temporary Bonds
may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Bonds.

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance.

(c) The Town, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the
Paying  Agent/Registrar  the  Bonds  in  definitive  form;  thereupon,  upon  the  presentation  and
surrender of the Bond or Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in
exchange therefor a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and series, in definitive form, in the
authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bond or Bonds in
temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge
therefor to any Owner.

Section III.9. Replacement Bonds.

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated
Bond,  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  authenticate  and  deliver  in  exchange  therefor  a
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously
outstanding.  The Town or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to
pay a sum sufficient  to cover any tax or other governmental  charge that is authorized to be
imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith.

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence
of  notice  or  knowledge  that  such  Bond  has  been  acquired  by  a  bona  fide  purchaser,  shall
authenticate  and  deliver  a  replacement  Bond  of  like  tenor  and  principal  amount,  bearing  a

- 10 -
#6205211.3



number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that  the Owner first  complies with the
following requirements:

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond;

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to save it and the Town harmless;

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Town and the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) If,  after  the  delivery of  such replacement  Bond,  a  bona fide purchaser  of  the
original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such
original  Bond,  the  Town  and  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  be  entitled  to  recover  such
replacement Bond from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom,
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the Town or the
Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith.

(d) In the event that any such mutilated,  lost,  apparently destroyed,  or wrongfully
taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond when it becomes due and
payable.

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute
an original additional contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and
security  of  this  Ordinance  to  the  same extent  as  the  Bond or  Bonds in  lieu  of  which  such
replacement Bond is delivered.

Section III.10. Book-Entry-Only System.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bond, the
Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds
shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate bond for each of the maturities thereof.

(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC,
the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the
Bonds.   Without  limiting  the  immediately  preceding  sentence,  the  Town  and  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in
the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as
shown  on  the  Register,  of  any  notice  with  respect  to  the  Bonds,  including  any  notice  of

- 11 -
#6205211.3



redemption,  or (iii)  the payment  to any DTC Participant  or any other  person, other  than an
Owner, as shown in the Register of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or
interest on the Bonds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the
Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose
name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose
of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, for the purpose of giving
notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering
transfer  with  respect  to  such  Bond,  and  for  all  other  purposes  whatsoever.   The  Paying
Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or
upon the order of the respective Owners as shown in the Register, as provided in this Ordinance,
or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and
effective  to  fully  satisfy  and  discharge  the  Town’s  obligations  with  respect  to  payment  of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person
other  than  an  Owner,  as  shown  in  the  Register,  shall  receive  a  certificate  evidencing  the
obligation of the Town to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon
delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this
Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the Town, and
applicable to the Town’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds.

Section III.11. Successor  Securities  Depository;  Transfer  Outside  Book-Entry-Only
System.

In  the  event  that  the  Town  or  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  determines  that  DTC  is
incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representations Letter of
the Town to DTC, and that it is in the best interest of the Town and the beneficial owners of the
Bonds that  they be able  to  obtain  certificated  Bonds,  or  in  the event  DTC discontinues  the
services described herein, the Town shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified
to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and
transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC
and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated Bonds and cause the Paying
Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate registered Bonds to DTC Participants having
Bonds credited to their DTC accounts.  In such event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to
being registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be
registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name
or  names  Owners  transferring  or  exchanging  Bonds  shall  designate,  in  accordance  with  the
provisions of this Ordinance.

Section III.12. Payments to Cede & Co.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary,  so long as the
Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect
to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such

- 12 -
#6205211.3



Bonds shall  be made and given, respectively,  in the manner provided in the Representations
Letter of the Town to DTC.

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Section IV.1. Limitation on Redemption.

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in
this Article IV. 

Section IV.2. Optional Redemption.

(a) The  Town  reserves  the  option  to  redeem  Bonds  maturing  on  and  after
February 15, 2030 in whole or any part,  before their  respective scheduled maturity dates,  on
August 15, 2029 or on any date thereafter,  such redemption date or dates to be fixed by the
Town, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption plus accrued
interest to the date fixed for redemption.

(b) If  less  than  all  of  the  Bonds  are  to  be  redeemed  pursuant  to  an  optional
redemption, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed  and  shall  direct  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  to  call  by  lot  the  Bonds,  or  portions
thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption.

(c) The Town, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed.

Section IV.3. Reserved.

Section IV.4. Partial Redemption.

(a) A  portion  of  a  single  Bond  of  a  denomination  greater  than  $5,000  may  be
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If
such a Bond is  to  be partially  redeemed,  the Paying Agent/Registrar  shall  treat  each $5,000
portion of the Bond as though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption.

(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange
Bonds  in  an  aggregate  principal  amount  equal  to  the  unredeemed  portion  of  the  Bonds  so
surrendered, such exchange being without charge.

(c) The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  promptly  notify the  Town in  writing  of  the
principal  amount  to  be  redeemed  of  any Bond as  to  which  only  a  portion  thereof  is  to  be
redeemed.

- 13 -
#6205211.3



Section IV.5. Notice of Redemption to Owners.

(a) The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  give  notice  of  any redemption  of  Bonds by
sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next preceding the
date of mailing such notice.

(b) The notice  shall  state  the  redemption  date,  the  redemption  price,  the  place  at
which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed.

(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

Section IV.6. Payment Upon Redemption.

(a) Before  or  on  each  redemption  date,  the  Town  shall  deposit  with  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar
from the  Town and shall  use  such funds  solely  for  the  purpose  of  paying  the  principal  of,
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Upon  presentation  and  surrender  of  any  Bond  called  for  redemption  at  the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for
redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any,
and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of redemption from the money set aside for such
purpose.

Section IV.7. Effect of Redemption.

(a) Notice  of  redemption  having  been  given  as  provided  in  Section 4.05  of  this
Ordinance, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on
the date fixed for redemption and, unless the Town defaults in its obligation to make provision
for the payment of the principal thereof, redemption premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon,
such Bonds or portions thereof  shall  cease to bear interest  from and after the date  fixed for
redemption, whether or not such Bonds are presented and surrendered for payment on such date.

(b) If  the  Town shall  fail  to  make  provision  for  payment  of  all  sums  due  on  a
redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear
interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same by the
Town.

Section IV.8. Conditional Notice of Redemption.

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds
conditioned  upon  the  occurrence  of  subsequent  events.  Such  notice  may  state  (i)  that  the

- 14 -
#6205211.3



redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no
effect  if  such  moneys  and/or  authorized  securities  are  not  so  deposited  or  if  the  notice  is
rescinded.  The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  give  prompt  notice  of  any such rescission of  a
conditional  notice  of  redemption  to  the  affected  Owners.  Any Bonds  subject  to  conditional
redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and the rescission
of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a conditional
notice  of  redemption,  the  failure  of  the Town to  make  moneys  and or  authorized  securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of
default.

Section IV.9. Lapse of Payment.

Money set aside for the redemption of Bonds and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of
such Bonds shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.03(f) hereof.

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section V.1. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, Dallas, Texas, is
hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds.

Section V.2. Qualifications.

Each Paying Agent/Registrar  shall  be a commercial  bank, a trust  company organized
under the laws of the State of Texas, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve
as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Bonds.

Section V.3. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.

(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Town will maintain a
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is
hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  execute  an  agreement  with  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar
specifying  the  duties  and  responsibilities  of  the  Town  and  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  in
substantially the form presented at this meeting, such form of agreement being hereby approved.
The signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary of the Town.

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the
Town will promptly appoint a replacement.

- 15 -
#6205211.3



Section V.4. Termination.

The Town, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to
be terminated written notice of such termination.

Section V.5. Notice of Change to Owners.

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Town
will  cause notice  of the change to  be sent  to  each Owner by first  class United States  mail,
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section V.6. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.

By  accepting  the  appointment  as  Paying  Agent/Registrar  and  executing  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar  Agreement,  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  is  deemed  to  have  agreed  to  the
provisions  of  this  Ordinance  and  that  it  will  perform  the  duties  and  functions  of  Paying
Agent/Registrar prescribed thereby.

Section V.7. Delivery of Records to Successor.

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar.

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section VI.1. Form Generally.

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller  of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Bond of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment
form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form set forth in this Article,
with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are permitted
or  required  by  this  Ordinance,  and  (ii)  may  have  such  letters,  numbers,  or  other  marks  of
identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities
Identification  Procedures  of  the  American  Bankers  Association)  and  such  legends  and
endorsements  (including any reproduction  of an opinion of  counsel)  thereon as,  consistently
herewith, may be determined by the Town or by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced
by their execution thereof.

(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof,
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds. 

(c) The  definitive  Bonds,  if  any,  shall  be  typewritten,  photocopied,  printed,
lithographed,  or  engraved,  and  may  be  produced  by  any  combination  of  these  methods  or

- 16 -
#6205211.3



produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as
evidenced by their execution thereof.

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced. 

Section VI.2. Form of the Bonds.

The  form  of  the  Bonds,  including  the  form  of  the  Registration  Certificate  of  the
Comptroller  of Public Accounts of the State  of Texas,  the form of Certificate  of the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be substantially as
follows:

- 17 -
#6205211.3



(a) Form of Bond.

REGISTERED
No. _________

REGISTERED
$_________

United States of America
State of Texas

County of Dallas
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND
SERIES 2020

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DELIVERY DATE: CUSIP NUMBER:

______% February 15, ____ September 10, 2020 ______ ___

The Town of Addison (the “Town”), in the County of Dallas, State of Texas, for value
received, hereby promises to pay to

_____________________________

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of

_______________________ DOLLARS

unless this Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal
hereof shall have been provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later
of Delivery Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has
been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been provided for, at the
per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve
30-day months,  such interest  to be paid semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each
year, commencing February 15, 2021.

The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at
the  designated  office  in  Dallas,  Texas,  of  The  Bank of  New York Mellon  Trust  Company,
National Association, as Paying Agent/Registrar (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”), or,
with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of
such successor Paying Agent/Registrar.  Interest on this Bond is payable by check dated as of the
interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner
at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by such
other  customary  banking  arrangement  acceptable  to  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  and  the
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expenses of
such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal
amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on
file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the payment of interest on this Bond,
the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of
business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last business day of the month next preceding
such interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of interest on a

- 18 -
#6205211.3



scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment
(a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds
for the payment  of such interest  have been received from the Town.  Notice of the Special
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment
Date,” which date shall be 15 days after the Special  Record Date) shall  be sent at least five
business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid,
to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at
the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.  

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, legal holiday,  or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by
law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is
not  a  Saturday,  Sunday,  legal  holiday,  or day on which banking institutions  are  required or
authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on
the  original  date  payment  was  due  and  no  additional  interest  shall  be  due  by  reason  of
nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

This  Bond is  dated  August 1,  2020 and  is  one  of  a  series  of  fully  registered  bonds
specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $___________   (herein
referred to as the “Bonds”), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the Town (the “Ordinance”)
for the purpose of providing funds for certain public improvements within the Town as described
in the Ordinance, and to pay for the professional services of attorneys, financial advisors and
other professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the Bonds.

The Town has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after February 15,
2030, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on August 15, 2029,
or on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  If less than all of the Bonds
are to be redeemed, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof
to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot or other customary
method that results in a random selection the Bonds, or portions thereof, within such maturity
and in such principal amounts, for redemption.

Notice of such redemption  or redemptions  shall  be given by first  class  mail,  postage
prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of
each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Notice having been so given, the Bonds or
portions thereof designated for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date
specified in such notice; from and after such date,  notwithstanding that any of the Bonds or
portions thereof so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for payment, interest
on such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to accrue. 

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds
conditioned  upon  the  occurrence  of  subsequent  events.  Such  notice  may  state  (i)  that  the
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town

- 19 -
#6205211.3



retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no
effect  if  such  moneys  and/or  authorized  securities  are  not  so  deposited  or  if  the  notice  is
rescinded.  The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  give  prompt  notice  of  any such rescission of  a
conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional notice
of  redemption  and  such  redemption  has  been  rescinded  shall  remain  Outstanding  and  the
rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a
conditional redemption, the failure of the Town to make moneys and or authorized securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of
default.

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this
Bond  is  transferable  upon  surrender  of  this  Town  for  transfer  at  the  Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence
of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar;  thereupon, one or more new fully
registered Bonds of the same stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate
of  interest,  and  for  the  same  aggregate  principal  amount  will  be  issued  to  the  designated
transferee or transferees.

Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within
45 calendar days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not
be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar,  and any other person may treat the person in
whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered
on the  Record  Date,  or  the  Special  Record  Date,  as  applicable)  and for  all  other  purposes,
whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall
be affected by notice to the contrary. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this  Bond and the
series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law, and has been authorized by a vote of the
properly qualified electors of the Town; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have
happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem
taxes upon all taxable property in the Town have been levied for and pledged to the payment of
the debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total
indebtedness of the Town, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory
limitation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has caused this that the issuance of this Bond and
the series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law, and has been authorized by a vote of the
properly qualified electors of the Town; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have
happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem

- 20 -
#6205211.3



taxes upon all taxable property in the Town have been levied for and pledged to the payment of
the debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total
indebtedness of the Town, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory
limitation.

to  be executed  by the  manual  or  facsimile  signature  of  the Mayor  of  the Town and
countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of
the Town has been duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Bond. 

_____________________________________
Mayor, Town of Addison, Texas

_____________________________________
City Secretary,
Town of Addison, Texas

[SEAL]

(b) Form of  Comptroller’s  Registration  Certificate.   The  following  Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Bonds if such certificate on the Initial
Bond is fully executed.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO. ____________
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required
by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the
State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the Town of Addison, Texas; and
that this Bond has this day been registered by me.

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _____________________.

_____________________________________
Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State of Texas

- 21 -
#6205211.3



(c) Form of  Certificate  of  Paying  Agent/Registrar.   The  following  Certificate  of
Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from each Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration
Certificate appears thereon.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of
Bonds  was  approved  by  the  Attorney  General  of  the  State  of  Texas  and  registered  by  the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred
to in the within-mentioned Ordinance.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 
TRUST COMPANY, 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Paying Agent/Registrar

Dated:  ________________ By: _________________________________

Authorized Signatory

(d) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or
typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):  ___________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________________) the within Bond and all
rights  hereunder  and  hereby  irrevocably  constitutes  and  appoints  ____________________
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof, with full power of
substitution in the premises. 

Dated: __________________

Signature Guaranteed By:

____________________________________

____________________________________
Authorized Signatory

____________________________________

NOTICE:  The Signature on this Assignment
must  correspond  with  the  name  of  the
registered owner as it  appears on the face of
the within Bond in every particular and must
be  guaranteed  in  a  manner  acceptable  to  the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

- 22 -
#6205211.3



(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsections (a) through (d) of this
Section, except for the following alterations: 

(i) immediately  under  the  name  of  the  Bond,  the  headings  “INTEREST
RATE,” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown
Below” and the words “CUSIP NO.” shall be deleted;

(ii) in  the  first  paragraph  of  the  Bond,  the  words  “on  the  Maturity  Date
specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and
the  following will  be inserted:  “on the fifteenth  day of  February in  the years,  in  the
principal  installments  and  bearing  interest  at  the  per  annum  rates  set  forth  in  the
following schedule: 

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate

(Information to be inserted from Section 3.02(c) hereof).

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1.

Section VI.3. CUSIP Registration.

The  Town  may  secure  identification  numbers  through  the  CUSIP  Service  Bureau
managed by S & P Global Market Intelligence on behalf of the American Bankers Association,
and may authorize  the  printing  of  such numbers  on  the  face  of  the  Bonds.   It  is  expressly
provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be of no
significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the Town nor the attorneys
approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly
printed on the Bonds.

Section VI.4. Legal Opinion.

The approving legal opinion of Bracewell LLP, Bond Counsel, may be attached to or
printed on the reverse side of each Bond over the certification of the City Secretary of the Town,
which may be executed in facsimile.

Section VI.5. Statement Insurance.

A statement relating to a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, to be issued for the
Bonds, may be printed on each Bond.

- 23 -
#6205211.3



ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS

Section VII.1. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement.

(a) The Bonds, having been duly advertised and offered for sale at competitive bid,
are  hereby officially sold and awarded to ______________ (the “Purchaser”) for a  purchase
price  equal  to  the  principal  amount  thereof,  plus  a  cash  premium  in  the  amount  of
$_______________, being the bid which produced the lowest true interest cost to the Town. The
Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchaser or its designee.

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda,
supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted and is hereby
deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule
15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The Mayor and City Secretary
are  hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  cause  to  be  prepared  a  final  Official  Statement  (the
“Official Statement”) incorporating applicable pricing information pertaining to the Bonds, and
to  execute  the  same  by  manual  or  facsimile  signature  and  deliver  appropriate  numbers  of
executed copies thereof to the Purchaser.  The Official Statement as thus approved and delivered,
with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the Mayor and the Purchaser, may be
used by the Purchaser in the public offering and sale thereof.   The City Secretary is hereby
authorized  and  directed  to  include  and  maintain  a  copy  of  the  Official  Statement  and  any
addenda, supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this
meeting.  The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preliminary
public offering of the Bonds by the Purchaser, is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

(c) All officers of the Town are authorized to execute such documents, certificates
and receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in
accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with the submission of the
record  of  proceedings  for  the  Bonds  to  the  Attorney  General  of  the  State  of  Texas  for
examination  and  approval  of  such  Bonds,  the  appropriate  officer  of  the  Town  is  hereby
authorized and directed to issue a check of the Town payable to the Attorney General of the State
of Texas as a nonrefundable examination fee in the amount required by Chapter 1202, Texas
Government Code (such amount per series to be the lesser of (i) 1/10th of 1% of the principal
amount of such series of the Bonds or (ii) $9,500.)

(d) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the
Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, bond counsel for
the Town, which opinion shall be dated and delivered the Closing Date.

Section VII.2. Control and Delivery of Bonds.

(a) The Mayor of the Town is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination,
and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of

- 24 -
#6205211.3



Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by,
the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds
shall  be  made  to  the  Purchaser  or  a  representative  thereof  under  and subject  to  the general
supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the Town of all amounts due to the
Town under the terms of sale.

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute
any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for
the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed
by the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively.

Section VII.3. Deposit of Proceeds.

(a) The proceeds of the Bonds received on the Closing Date, shall be deposited to a
special account of the Town, such moneys to be dedicated and used solely for the purposes for
which the Bonds are being issued as herein provided in Section 3.01.  To the extent any of such
amount is not used for such purposes, such excess shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

ARTICLE VIII

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS;
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS

Section VIII.1.Creation of Funds.  

(a) The Town hereby establishes the following special funds or accounts:

(i) The Town of  Addison,  Texas,  General  Obligation  Bonds,  Series  2020,
Interest and Sinking Fund; and

(ii) The  Town  of  Addison,  Texas  General  Obligation  Bonds,  Series  2020
Construction Fund.

(b) These funds or accounts shall be maintained at an official depository of the Town.

Section VIII.2.Interest and Sinking Fund.  

(a) The taxes levied under Section 2.01 shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest
and Sinking Fund at such times and in such amounts as necessary for the timely payment of the
principal of and interest on the Bonds.

(b) If the amount of money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is at least equal to the
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds plus the aggregate amount of interest due

- 25 -
#6205211.3



and that will become due and payable on such Bonds, no further deposits to that fund need be
made.

(c) Money on deposit  in  the  Interest  and Sinking Fund shall  be  used  to  pay the
principal of and interest on the Bonds as such become due and payable.

Section VIII.3.Construction  Fund.     Money  on  deposit  in  the  Construction  Fund,
including investment earnings thereof, shall be used for the purposes specified in Section 3.01 of
this Ordinance.

(a) All amounts remaining in the Construction Fund after the accomplishment of the
purposes  for  which  the  Bonds  are  hereby  issued,  including  investment  earnings  of  the
Construction Fund, shall be deposited into the Interest and Sinking Fund.

Section VIII.4.Security of Funds.  

All moneys on deposit in the funds referred to in this Ordinance shall be secured in the
manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of the State of Texas for the security of
public funds, and moneys on deposit in such funds shall be used only for the purposes permitted
by this Ordinance.

Section VIII.5.Deposit of Proceeds.  

(a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $_____________, (including premium
received on the Bonds in the amount of $____________ allocated to voted authorization), shall
be deposited to the Construction Fund.

(b) Premium generated  on the  Bonds in  the  amount  of  $_____________ shall  be
deposited  to  a  special  fund,  such moneys  to  be  dedicated  and used  for  paying  the  costs  of
issuance.  Any amounts remaining after the payment of the costs of issuance shall be deposited
to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

Section VIII.6.Investments.

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance, at the option
of the Town, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law.

(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and
held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be
timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from the fund from which the
investment was made.

Section VIII.7.Investment Income.

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund be
credited to such fund.

- 26 -
#6205211.3



(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant
to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or
construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income
are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section IX.1. Payment of the Bonds.

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of, redemption
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest
Payment Date, maturity date and, if applicable, on a date of prior redemption.

Section IX.2. Other Representations and Covenants.

(a) The  Town  will  faithfully  perform,  at  all  times,  any  and  all  covenants,
undertakings,  stipulations,  and provisions contained in this  Ordinance and in each Bond; the
Town will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and
interest on each Bond on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such Bond; and the
Town will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be
deposited the amounts of money specified by this Ordinance.

(b) The Town is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the
Bonds;  all  action  on its  part  for  the creation  and issuance  of  the  Bonds has  been duly and
effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and
enforceable obligations of the Town in accordance with their terms.

Section IX.3. Federal Income Tax Matters.  

(a) General.  The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take any action
that, if taken or omitted, would cause the interest on the Bonds to be includable in gross income
for federal income tax purposes. In furtherance thereof, the Town covenants to comply with
sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the provisions set forth in the Federal Tax
Certificate executed by the Town in connection with the Bonds.

(b) No Private Activity Bonds.  The Town covenants that it will use the proceeds of
the Bonds (including investment income) and the property financed, directly or indirectly, with
such proceeds so that  the Bonds will  not be “private  activity  bonds” within the meaning of
section 141 of the Code.  Furthermore, the Town will not take a deliberate action (as defined in
section 1.141-2(d)(3) of the Regulations) that causes the Bonds to be a “private activity bond”
unless it takes a remedial action permitted by section 1.141-12 of the Regulations.

- 27 -
#6205211.3



(c) No Federal Guarantee.  The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take
any action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Bonds to be “federally guaranteed” within
the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by section 149(b)(3) of the Code.

(d) No Hedge Bonds. The Town covenants not to take any action or omit to take
action that, if taken or omitted, would cause the Bonds to be “hedge bonds” within the meaning
of section 149(g) of the Code.  

(e) No Arbitrage  Bonds.  The Town covenants  that  it  will  make such use of  the
proceeds  of  the  Bonds  (including  investment  income)  and  regulate  the  investment  of  such
proceeds of the Bonds so that the Bonds will not be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of
section 148(a) of the Code.  

(f) Required Rebate.  The Town covenants that, if the Town does not qualify for an
exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the Code, the Town will comply with the
requirement that certain amounts earned by the Town on the investment of the gross proceeds of
the Bonds, be rebated to the United States.  

(g) Information Reporting.  The Town covenants to file or cause to be filed with the
Secretary of the Treasury an information statement concerning the Bonds in accordance with
section 149(e) of the Code.

(h) Record Retention.  The Town covenants to retain all material records relating to
the expenditure of the proceeds (including investment income) of the Bonds and the use of the
property financed, directly or indirectly, thereby until three years after the last Bond is redeemed
or paid at  maturity  (or such other  period as provided by subsequent  guidance issued by the
Department of the Treasury)  in a manner that ensures their complete access throughout such
retention period.  

(i) Registration.  If the Bonds are “registration-required bonds” under section 149(a)
(2) of the Code, the Bonds will be issued in registered form.

(j) Favorable Opinion of Bond Counsel.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Town
will not be required to comply with any of the federal tax covenants set forth above if the Town
has received an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such noncompliance will not
adversely affect the excludability of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income
tax purposes.

(k) Continuing Compliance.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance,
the  Town’s  obligations  under  the  federal  tax  covenants  set  forth  above  will  survive  the
defeasance  and  discharge  of  the  Bonds  for  as  long  as  such  matters  are  relevant  to  the
excludability of interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

(l) Official  Intent.   For purposes of  section 1.150-2(d) of  the Regulations,  to  the
extent that an official intent to reimburse has not previously been adopted by the Town, this
Ordinance serves as the Town’s official declaration of intent to use proceeds of the Bonds to
reimburse itself from proceeds of the Bonds issued in the maximum amount authorized by this
Ordinance for certain expenditures paid in connection with the projects set forth herein.  Any

- 28 -
#6205211.3



such reimbursement will only be made (i) for an original expenditure paid no earlier than 60 days
prior to the date hereof and (ii) not later than 18 months after the later of (A) the date the original
expenditure is paid or (B) the date the project to which such expenditure relates is placed in
service or abandoned, but in to event more than three years after the original expenditure is paid.

Section IX.4. No Private Use or Payment and No Private Loan Financing.

The Town covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds,
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate the use of
property financed, directly or indirectly,  with such proceeds, and take such other and further
action as may be required so that  the Bonds will  not be “private  activity bonds” within the
meaning of section 141 of the Code.  Moreover, the Town will certify, through an authorized
officer,  employee  or  agent,  that,  based  upon  all  facts  and  estimates  known  or  reasonably
expected to be in existence on the date the Bonds are delivered, the proceeds of the Bonds will
not be used in a manner that would cause the Bonds to be “private activity bonds” within the
meaning of section 141 of the Code.

Section IX.5. No Federal Guaranty.

The Town covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any
action within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively,  would cause the Bonds to be
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code, except as permitted by
section 149(b)(3) of the Code.  

Section IX.6. No Hedge Bonds. 

The Town covenants and agrees not to take any action, or knowingly omit to take any
action, within its control, that, if taken or omitted, respectively,  would cause the Bonds to be
“hedge bonds” within the meaning of section 149(g) of the Code.  

Section IX.7. No Arbitrage.

The Town covenants and agrees that it will make such use of the proceeds of the Bonds,
including interest or other investment income derived from Bond proceeds, regulate investments
of proceeds of the Bonds, and take such other and further action as may be required so that the
Bonds  will  not  be  “arbitrage  bonds”  within  the  meaning  of  section  148(a)  of  the  Code.
Moreover, the Town will certify, through an authorized officer, employee or agent, based upon
all facts and estimates known or reasonably expected to be in existence on the date the Bonds are
delivered,  that the proceeds of the Bonds will not be used in a manner that would cause the
Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148(a) of the Code.

Section IX.8. Arbitrage Rebate.

If the Town does not qualify for an exception to the requirements of section 148(f) of the
Code relating to the required rebate to the United States, the Town will take all necessary steps to
comply with the requirement that certain amounts earned by the Town on the investment of the
“gross proceeds” of the Bonds (within the meaning of section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code), be
rebated to the federal government.  Specifically, the Town will (i) maintain records regarding the

- 29 -
#6205211.3



investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds as may be required to calculate the amount earned
on the investment of the gross proceeds of the Bonds separately from records of amounts on
deposit in the funds and accounts of the Town allocable to other Bond issues of the Town or
moneys that do not represent gross proceeds of any bond issues of the Town, (ii) determine at
such times as are required by the applicable Regulations, the amount earned from the investment
of the gross proceeds of the Bonds that is required to be rebated to the federal government, and
(iii) pay, not less often than every fifth anniversary date of the delivery of the Bonds, or on such
other dates as may be permitted under applicable Regulations, all amounts required to be rebated
to the federal  government.   Further,  the Town will  not indirectly pay any amount  otherwise
payable to the federal government pursuant to the foregoing requirements to any person other
than the federal government by entering into any investment arrangement with respect to the
gross proceeds of the Bonds that might result in a reduction in the amount required to be paid to
the federal government because such arrangement results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than
would have resulted if the arrangement had been at arm’s length and had the yield on the issue
not been relevant to either party.

Section IX.9. Information Reporting.

The Town covenants and agrees to file or cause to be filed with the Secretary of the
Treasury, not later than the 15th day of the second calendar month after the close of the calendar
quarter in which the Bonds are issued, an information statement concerning the Bonds, all under
and in accordance with section 149(e) of the Code.

Section IX.10. Record Retention.  

The Town will retain all pertinent and material records relating to the use and expenditure
of the proceeds of the Bonds until three years after the last Bond is redeemed or paid at maturity,
or such shorter period as authorized by subsequent guidance issued by the Department of the
Treasury, if applicable.  All records will be kept in a manner that ensures their complete access
throughout the retention period.  For this purpose, it  is acceptable that such records are kept
either as hardcopy books and records or in an electronic storage and retrieval system, provided
that  such electronic system includes  reasonable controls and quality assurance programs that
assure the ability of the Town to retrieve and reproduce such books and records in the event of an
examination of the Bonds by the Internal Revenue Service.

Section IX.11. Registration.  

The Bonds will be issued in registered form.

Section IX.12. Deliberate Actions.  

The Town will not take a deliberate action (as defined in section 1.141-2(d)(3) of the
Regulations) that causes the Bonds to fail to meet any requirement of section 141 of the Code
after the issue date of the Bonds unless an appropriate remedial action is permitted by section
1.141-12 of the Regulations, the Town takes such remedial action, and a Counsel’s Opinion is
obtained that such remedial action cures any failure to meet the requirements of section 141 of
the Code.

- 30 -
#6205211.3



Section IX.13. Continuing Obligation. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the Town’s obligations under the
covenants and provisions of Sections 9.03 through 9.13, inclusive, shall survive the defeasance
and discharge of the Bonds for as long as such matters are relevant to the excludability of interest
on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section X.1. Events of Default.

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is hereby
declared to be an Event of Default:

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if
any, or interest on any of the Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or

(ii) default  in  the  performance  or  observance  of  any  other  covenant,
agreement, or obligation of the Town, which default materially and adversely affects the
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in
accordance with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60)
days after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the Town.

Section X.2. Remedies for Default.

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized
representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed
against the Town for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this
Ordinance by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any
court  of  competent  jurisdiction  for  any  relief  permitted  by  law,  including  the  specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of
such remedies.

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the
equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding.

Section X.3. Remedies Not Exclusive.

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right
to accelerate  the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall  not be available as a remedy under this
Ordinance.

- 31 -
#6205211.3



(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

ARTICLE XI

DISCHARGE

Section XI.1. Discharge.

The  Bonds  may  be  defeased,  discharged  or  refunded  in  any  manner  permitted  by
applicable law.

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section XII.1. Annual Reports.

(a) The Town shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the
end of each fiscal year of the Town, financial information and operating data with respect to the
Town of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being information described in
the Tables numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 15, including financial statements of the Town if
audited financial statements of the Town are then available, and (2) if not provided as part such
financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the Town, when and if
available.  Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles appended to the Official Statement, or such other accounting principles as
the Town may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and
(ii)  audited,  if  the Town commissions  an audit  of such financial  statements  and the audit  is
completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial
statements is not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the Town shall
file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial statements
for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such statements becomes available.

(b) If the Town changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of
the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Town otherwise would be
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

(c) The  financial  information  and  operating  data  to  be  provided  pursuant  to  this
Section may be  set  forth  in  full  in  one  or  more  documents  or  may be  included by specific
referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the
SEC.

Section XII.2. Material Event Notices.

(a) The Town shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10)
Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to
the Bonds:

- 32 -
#6205211.3



(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material;

(iii) Unscheduled  draws  on  debt  service  reserves  reflecting  financial
difficulties;

(iv) Unscheduled  draws  on  credit  enhancements  reflecting  financial
difficulties;

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) Adverse tax opinions,  the issuance  by the Internal  Revenue Service of
proposed or  final  determinations  of  taxability,  Notices  of  Proposed  Issue  (IRS Form
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the
Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;

(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;

(ix) Defeasances;

(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds,
if material;

(xi) Rating changes;

(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town;

(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material; and

(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name
of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material.

(xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement
to  covenants,  events  of  default,  remedies,  priority  rights,  or  other  similar  terms  of  a
financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect security holders, if material; and

(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which
reflect financial difficulties.  

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding clause (xii) is considered
to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar

- 33 -
#6205211.3



officer for the Town in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Town, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority,  or the entry of an
order  confirming  a  plan  of  reorganization,  arrangement,  or  liquidation  by  a  court  or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets of
business  of  the  Town;  and the  Town intends  the  words  used  in  the  immediately  preceding
paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition of financial obligations in those sections to have the
same meanings as when they are used in rule and sec release no. 34-83885, dated August 20,
2018.  

(b) The Town shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the
MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the Town to provide required annual financial
information and notices of material events in accordance with Sections 12.01 and 12.02.  All
documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by identifying
information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section XII.3. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.

(a) The Town shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Town remains an “obligated person” with
respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the Town in any event will give
notice of any redemption calls  and any defeasances that cause the Town to be no longer an
“obligated person.”

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Town undertakes
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which
it  has expressly agreed to provide pursuant  to  this  Article and does not  hereby undertake to
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the
Town’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information
provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The
Town  does  not  make  any  representation  or  warranty  concerning  such  information  or  its
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE TOWN BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY
THE TOWN, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY
COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS  ARTICLE,  BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF
ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH
BREACH  SHALL  BE  LIMITED  TO  AN  ACTION  FOR  MANDAMUS  OR  SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE.

- 34 -
#6205211.3



(c) No default  by the Town in observing or performing its  obligations  under  this
Article shall  constitute  a breach of or default  under the Ordinance for purposes of any other
provisions of this Ordinance.

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise
limit the duties of the Town under federal and state securities laws.

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Town from time to time to
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law,
or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Town, but only if (i) the
provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or
sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account
any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such
changed  circumstances,  and (ii)  either  (A)  the  Owners  of  a  majority  in  aggregate  principal
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or
individual person that is unaffiliated with the Town (such as nationally recognized bond counsel)
determines  that  such amendment  will  not  materially  impair  the  interests  of  the  Owners  and
beneficial owners of the Bonds.  If the Town so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall
include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance
with Section 12.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of
the impact of any change in type of financial information or operating data so provide.

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS

Section XIII.1.Amendments.

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the Town, and
shall not be amended or repealed by the Town so long as any Bond remains outstanding except
as permitted in this Section.  The Town may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, from
time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests
of  the  Owners,  including  the  curing  of  any  ambiguity,  inconsistency,  or  formal  defect  or
omission herein.  In addition,  the Town may,  with the written consent of the Owners of the
Bonds holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, amend,
add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of
all Owners of outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall  extend the
time or times of payment  of the principal of and interest  on the Bonds, reduce the principal
amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify
the terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds,  give any preference to any
Bond over any other Bond, or  reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be
held by Owners for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission.

- 35 -
#6205211.3



ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS

Section XIV.1. Changes to Ordinance.

The  Mayor  and Director  of  Finance,  in  consultation  with  Bond Counsel,  are  hereby
authorized to make changes to the terms of this Ordinance if necessary or desirable to carry out
the purposes hereof or in connection with the approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the
Attorney General of Texas.

Section XIV.2. Partial Invalidity.

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph,
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Ordinance.

Section XIV.3. No Personal Liability.  

No recourse shall be had for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds or for
any claim based thereon, or on this Ordinance, against any official or employee of the Town or
any person executing any Bonds. 

ARTICLE XV

EFFECTIVENESS

Section XV.1. Effectiveness.

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

- 36 -
#6205211.3



APPROVED AND ADOPTED this August 11, 2020.

_____________________________________
Mayor, Town of Addison, Texas

ATTEST:

_______________________________________
City Secretary, Town of Addison, Texas

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: __________________________________
Town Attorney, Town of Addison, Texas

 

Signature Page for Ordinance
Series 2020 General Obligation Bonds

#6205211.3



   

Council Meeting 8.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Finance
Pillars: Gold Standard for Financial Health
Milestones: Continue development and implementation of Long Term Financial Plan

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on an Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of
Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020.

BACKGROUND:
At the June 9, 2020, Council meeting, staff presented a plan to take advantage of a
favorable market environment to refund the 2012 General Obligation Bonds and 2013B
Taxable General Obligation Bonds. Estimates provided at the June 9, 2020, Council
meeting were that the refunding would create $795,088, or 6.50%, in Net Present Value
savings over the remaining life of the debt.

Certain details concerning the General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds will not be
known until the completion of the sale on August 11, 2020.  This information will be
made available at the Council meeting on August 11, 2020, prior to the discussion of this
item.  The ordinance will be updated at the meeting.  

The Town of Addison's AAA/Aaa bond ratings from Standard and Poor's and Moody's
were reaffirmed as part of this bond sale.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Ordinance - Authorization of 2020 General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds 



ORDINANCE

relating to

$___________
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
 TAXABLE SERIES 2020

Dated: August 1, 2020

Adopted:  August 11, 2020

 

#6205349.1





TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section 1.01. Definitions................................................................................................................2
Section 1.02. Findings....................................................................................................................4
Section 1.03. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings..................................................................5
Section 1.04. Interpretation............................................................................................................5

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section 2.01. Payment of the Bonds..............................................................................................5
Section 2.02. Interest and Sinking Fund........................................................................................6

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE BONDS

Section 3.01. Authorization...........................................................................................................6
Section 3.02. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest..........................................................6
Section 3.03. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.................................................................7
Section 3.04. Execution and Registration of Bonds......................................................................8
Section 3.05. Ownership................................................................................................................9
Section 3.06. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange......................................................................9
Section 3.07. Cancellation...........................................................................................................10
Section 3.08. Temporary Bonds...................................................................................................10
Section 3.09. Replacement Bonds...............................................................................................10
Section 3.10. Book-Entry-Only System.......................................................................................11
Section 3.11. Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System.....12
Section 3.12. Payments to Cede & Co.........................................................................................12

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Section 4.01. Limitation on Redemption.....................................................................................13
Section 4.02. Optional Redemption.............................................................................................13
Section 4.03. Reserved.................................................................................................................13
Section 4.04. Partial Redemption.................................................................................................13
Section 4.05. Notice of Redemption to Owners..........................................................................14
Section 4.06. Payment Upon Redemption...................................................................................14

(i)
#6205349.1



Section 4.07. Effect of Redemption.............................................................................................14
Section 4.08. Conditional Notice of Redemption........................................................................14
Section 4.09. Lapse of Payment...................................................................................................15

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section 5.01. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.....................................................15
Section 5.02. Qualifications.........................................................................................................15
Section 5.03. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.....................................................................15
Section 5.04. Termination............................................................................................................16
Section 5.05. Notice of Change to Owners..................................................................................16
Section 5.06. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.........................................................16
Section 5.07. Delivery of Records to Successor..........................................................................16

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section 6.01. Form Generally......................................................................................................16
Section 6.02. Form of the Bonds.................................................................................................17
Section 6.03. CUSIP Registration................................................................................................22
Section 6.04. Legal Opinion........................................................................................................23
Section 6.05. Statement Insurance...............................................................................................23

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS

Section 7.01. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement..........................................................................23
Section 7.02. Control and Delivery of Bonds..............................................................................24

ARTICLE VIII

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS;
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS

Section 8.01. Creation of Funds...................................................................................................24
Section 8.02. Interest and Sinking Fund......................................................................................25
Section 8.03. Security of Funds...................................................................................................25
Section 8.04. Deposit of Proceeds...............................................................................................25
Section 8.05. Investments............................................................................................................25
Section 8.06. Investment Income.................................................................................................25

(ii)
#6205349.1



ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section 9.01. Payment of the Bonds............................................................................................26
Section 9.02. Other Representations and Covenants...................................................................26

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.01. Events of Default...................................................................................................26
Section 10.02. Remedies for Default.............................................................................................27
Section 10.03. Remedies Not Exclusive........................................................................................27

ARTICLE XI

DISCHARGE

Section 11.01. Discharge...............................................................................................................27

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section 12.01. Annual Reports......................................................................................................27
Section 12.02. Material Event Notices..........................................................................................28
Section 12.03. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments...........................................................29

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS

Section 13.01. Amendments..........................................................................................................31

ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 14.01. Changes to Ordinance............................................................................................31
Section 14.02. Partial Invalidity.....................................................................................................31
Section 14.03. No Personal Liability.............................................................................................31

(iii)
#6205349.1



ARTICLE XV

REDEMPTION OF REFUNDED BONDS; ESCROW AGREEMENT; 
PURCHASE OF SECURITIES

Section 15.01. Payment of Paying Agent......................................................................................32
Section 15.02. Subscription for Securities.....................................................................................32
Section 15.03. Escrow Agreement.................................................................................................32
Section 15.04. Payment of Refunded Bonds; Redemption of Refunded Bonds............................32

ARTICLE XVI

EFFECTIVENESS

Section 16.01. Effectiveness..........................................................................................................32

Schedule of Refunded Bonds …………………………………………………………Schedule I

(iv)
#6205349.1



AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TOWN
OF  ADDISON,  TEXAS,  GENERAL  OBLIGATION
REFUNDING  BONDS,  TAXABLE  SERIES  2020  IN  THE
AGGREGATE  PRINCIPAL  AMOUNT  OF  $___________;
AWARDING THE SALE THEREOF; LEVYING A TAX, AND
PROVIDING FOR THE SECURITY FOR AND PAYMENT OF
SAID  BONDS;  AUTHORIZING  THE  EXECUTION  AND
DELIVERY  OF  A  PAYING  AGENT/REGISTRAR
AGREEMENT  AND  AN  ESCROW  AGREEMENT;
APPROVING  THE  OFFICIAL  STATEMENT;  ENACTING
OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE SUBJECT;  AND
DECLARING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, there are presently outstanding certain obligations of the Town of Addison,
Texas (the “Town”), which are secured by and payable from ad valorem taxes levied on property
within the Town in an amount sufficient to pay principal of and interest on such obligations as
they become due within the limits prescribed by law; and

WHEREAS, the Town now desires to refund such obligations described on Schedule I
hereto (such refunded obligations to be hereinafter referred to as the “Refunded Bonds”); and

WHEREAS,  Chapter  1207,  Texas  Government  Code,  as  amended  (“Chapter  1207”)
authorizes  the Town to issue refunding bonds for the purpose of refunding or defeasing the
Refunded Bonds in advance of their maturities, and to accomplish such refunding or defeasance
by depositing directly with a paying agent for the Refunded Bonds (or other qualified escrow
agent), the proceeds of such refunding bonds, together with other available funds, in an amount
sufficient to provide for the payment or redemption of the Refunded Bonds, and provides that
such deposit  shall  constitute  the making of  firm banking and financial  arrangements  for the
discharge and final payment or redemption of the Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 1207 further authorizes the Town to enter into an escrow agreement
with  a  commercial  bank  with  respect  to  the  safekeeping,  investment,  reinvestment,
administration and disposition of any such deposit, upon such terms and conditions as the Town
and such bank may agree, provided that such deposits may be invested and reinvested only in
investments permitted under Chapter 1207 and the ordinances authorizing the Refunded Bonds,
and which shall mature and bear interest payable at such times and in such amounts as will be
sufficient to provide for the scheduled payment or prepayment of the Refunded Bonds; 

WHEREAS, the Town desires to authorize the execution of an escrow agreement in order
to  provide  for  the  deposit  of  proceeds  of  the  refunding  bonds  and,  to  the  extent  specified
pursuant hereto, other lawfully available funds of the Town, to pay the redemption price of the
Refunded Bonds when due; and

#6205349.1



WHEREAS,  the  Escrow  Agreement  hereinafter  authorized  constitutes  an  escrow
agreement of the kind authorized and permitted by said Chapter 1207; 

WHEREAS, upon the issuance of the refunding bonds herein authorized and the deposit
of funds referred to above, the Refunded Bonds shall no longer be regarded as being outstanding,
except for the purpose of being paid pursuant to such deposit, and the pledges, liens, trusts and
all other covenants, provisions, terms and conditions of the orders authorizing the issuance of the
Refunded Bonds shall be, with respect to the Refunded Bonds, discharged, terminated

WHEREAS,  the  City  Council  hereby  finds  and  determines  that  the  issuance  of  the
refunding  bonds  will  result  in  a  net  present  value  debt  service  savings  in  the  amount  of
$______________and that such savings and the refunding contemplated in this Ordinance will
benefit  the  Town  and  that  such  benefit  is  sufficient  consideration  for  the  refunding  of  the
Refunded Bonds; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town hereby finds and determines that the issuance
and delivery of the bonds hereinafter  authorized  is  in  the public  interest  and the use of the
proceeds in the manner herein specified constitutes a valid public purpose; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has found and determined that it is necessary and in the
best interests of the Town and its citizens that it issue such bonds authorized by this Ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended; therefore,

BE  IT  ORDAINED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON,
TEXAS, THAT:

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS

Section I.1. Definitions.

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in
this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below:

“Bond” means any of the Bonds.

“Bonds” means the bonds authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 of this Ordinance and
designated as “Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series
2020.

“Business Day” means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or other day on
which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office is located
are required or authorized by law or executive order to close.

- 2 -
#6205349.1



“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Bonds.

“Code” means the Internal  Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,  including applicable
regulations, published rulings, and court decisions.

“Delivery Date” means the date of delivery of the Bonds to the Purchasers and designated
as the initial date of the Bonds by Section 3.02(a) of this Ordinance.

“Designated  Payment/Transfer  Office”  means  (i)  with  respect  to  the  initial  Paying
Agent/Registrar named herein, its office in Dallas, Texas, or at such other location designated by
the Paying Agent/Registrar and (ii) with respect to any successor Paying Agent/Registrar, the
office of such successor designated and located as may be agreed upon by the Town and such
successor.

“DTC”  means  The  Depository  Trust  Company  of  New  York,  New  York,  or  any
successor securities depository.

“DTC  Participant”  means  brokers  and  dealers,  banks,  trust  companies,  clearing
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants.

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System.

“Escrow Agent” means the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,  N.A. or any
successor thereto.

“Escrow  Agreement”  means  the  Escrow  Agreement  relating  to  the  Bonds,  by  and
between the Escrow Agent and the Town authorized in Article 14.

“Escrow  Fund”  means  the  fund  referred  to  in  Section  14.3  of  this  Ordinance  and
established by the Escrow Agreement to hold cash and securities for the payment of principal
and interest on the Refunded Bonds.

“Event  of  Default”  means  any  event  of  default  as  defined  in  Section 10.01  of  this
Ordinance.

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that
“financial  obligation”  shall  not  include  municipal  securities  (as  defined  in  the  Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule)
has been provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule.

“Fiscal  Year”  means  such fiscal  year  as  shall  from time  to  time  be  set  by the  City
Council.

“Initial Bond” means the initial bond authorized by Section 3.04(d) of this Ordinance.

- 3 -
#6205349.1



“Interest  and  Sinking  Fund”  means  the  interest  and  sinking  fund  established  by
Section 2.02 of this Ordinance.

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates upon which interest on the Bonds is
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, such dates being
February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing February 15, 2021.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.

“Ordinance” means this Ordinance.
 
“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Bond or Bonds, as shown in

the Register.

“Paying  Agent/Registrar”  means  initially  The  Bank  of  New  York  Mellon  Trust
Company,  National  Association,  Dallas,  Texas,  or  any successor  thereto  as  provided in  this
Ordinance.

“Purchaser(s)” means the initial purchaser(s) of the Bonds as set forth in Section ___.

“Record Date” means  the last  Business  Day of the month  next  preceding an Interest
Payment Date.

“Refunded Bonds” means those obligations of the Town set forth in Schedule I hereto.

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance.

“Representations Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the Town
and DTC.

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time.

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b).

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b).

“Town” means the Town of Addison, Texas.

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the
payment of principal of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds as the same come
due and payable or money set aside for the payment of Bonds duly called for redemption prior to
maturity.

- 4 -
#6205349.1



Section I.2. Findings.

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble
to  this  Ordinance  are hereby adopted,  restated,  and made  a  part  of  the operative  provisions
hereof. 

Section I.3. Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.

The table of contents, titles, and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never
be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise.

Section I.4. Interpretation.

(a) Unless the context  requires otherwise,  words of the masculine gender shall  be
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and
words  of  the  singular  number  shall  be  construed  to  include  correlative  words  of  the  plural
number and vice versa.

(b) This  Ordinance  and  all  the  terms  and  provisions  hereof  shall  be  liberally
construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein.

ARTICLE II

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND

Section II.1. Payment of the Bonds.

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and laws of the State
of  Texas,  there shall  be levied  and there  is  hereby levied  for the current  year  and for each
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Bonds or any interest thereon is outstanding and
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the
Town,  at  a  rate  sufficient,  within  the  limit  prescribed  by  law,  to  pay  the  debt  service
requirements of the Bonds, being (i) the interest on the Bonds, and (ii) a sinking fund for their
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent per annum (whichever amount is the
greater),  when  due  and  payable,  full  allowance  being  made  for  delinquencies  and  costs  of
collection.

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against
all property appearing on the tax rolls of the Town most recently approved in accordance with
law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking
Fund.

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or
required  hereby  to  be  deposited  to  the  Interest  and  Sinking  Fund  are  hereby  pledged  and

- 5 -
#6205349.1



committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when and as
due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance.

(d) If  the  liens  and  provisions  of  this  Ordinance  shall  be  released  in  a  manner
permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or
appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking
Fund may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the
aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds, there shall be subtracted the amount of any
Bonds that have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been deposited with
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such redemption.

Section II.2. Interest and Sinking Fund.

(a) The  Town hereby  establishes  a  special  fund  or  account  to  be  designated  the
“Town of Addison, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020, Interest
and Sinking Fund” (the “Interest and Sinking Fund”) said fund to be maintained at an official
depository bank of the Town separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of the Town.

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest
and Sinking Fund shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of
the Bonds when and as due and payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance.

ARTICLE III

AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS
REGARDING THE BONDS

Section III.1. Authorization.

The  Town’s  bonds  to  be  designated  “Town  of  Addison,  Texas,  General  Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020” (the “Bonds”), are hereby authorized to be issued and
delivered  in  accordance  with  the  Constitution  and  laws  of  the  State  of  Texas,  specifically
Chapter 1331, Texas Government Code, as amended.  The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate
principal amount of $__________ to provide funds to (i) refund the Refunded Bonds and (ii) pay
of the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

Section III.2. Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.

(a) The Bonds shall be dated August 1, 2020.  The Bonds shall be in fully registered
form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall
be numbered separately from one upward, except the Initial Bond, which shall be numbered T-1.

(b) The Bonds shall mature on February 15 in the years and in the principal amounts
set forth in the following schedule:

Years
Principal
Amount Interest Rate Years

Principal
Amount Interest Rate

- 6 -
#6205349.1



2/15/2021 2/15/2026
2/15/2022 2/15/2027
2/15/2023 2/15/2031
2/15/2024 2/15/2032
2/15/2025 2/15/2033

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Bond respectively until its maturity or
prior  redemption  from the  later  of  the  date  of  delivery  of  the  Bonds  to  the  Purchaser  (the
“Delivery Date”) or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has been paid or
provided for at the rates per annum for each maturity specified in the schedule contained in
subsection (b) above.  Such interest shall be payable semiannually on February 15 and August 15
of each year commencing February 15, 2021, and shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year of twelve 30-day months.

Section III.3. Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.

(a) The principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be
paid in lawful money of the United States of America.

(b) Interest on the Bonds shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at
the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for
such  interest  payment  (a  “Special  Record  Date”)  shall  be  established  by  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the
Town.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due
interest (the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall
be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the Register at the
close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of and mailed on the Interest Payment
Date,  and sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar  to each Owner,  first  class United States mail,
postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner as it appears in the Register, or by such other
customary  banking  arrangement  acceptable  to  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  and  the  Owner;
provided, however, that the Owner shall bear all risk and expense of such alternative banking
arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal amount of the Bonds,
interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on file with the Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(d) The principal of each Bond shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date,
whether  at  the  maturity  date  or  the  date  of  prior  redemption  thereof  upon presentation  and
surrender  of  such  Bond  at  the  Designated  Payment/Transfer  Office  of  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar.

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds shall be a
Saturday,  Sunday,  legal  holiday,  or day on which banking institutions  in  the city  where the
Designated Payment/Transfer  Office of the paying Agent/Registrar  is located are required or

- 7 -
#6205349.1



authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next
succeeding  day  which  is  not  a  Saturday,  Sunday,  legal  holiday,  or  day  on  which  banking
institutions are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same
force and effect as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall
be due by reason of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due
and payable.

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in
trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to
which  the  Unclaimed  Payments  pertain.   Subject  to  Title  6  of  the  Texas  Property  Code,
Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three years after
the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment or payments on
the Bonds thereafter coming due and, to the extent any such money remains after the retirement
of  all  outstanding  Bonds,  shall  be  paid  to  the  Town  to  be  used  for  any  lawful  purpose.
Thereafter, neither the Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, nor any other person shall be liable or
responsible to any Owners of such Bonds for any further payment of such unclaimed moneys or
on account of any such Bonds, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code.

Section III.4. Execution and Registration of Bonds.

(a) The Bonds shall be executed on behalf of the Town by the Mayor and the City
Secretary,  by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official  seal of the Town shall be
impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Bonds shall have the
same effect as if each of the Bonds had been signed manually and in person by each of said
officers, and such facsimile seal on the Bonds shall have the same effect as if the official seal of
the Town had been manually impressed upon each of the Bonds.

(b) In the event that any officer of the Town whose manual or facsimile signature
appears on the Bonds ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Bonds or before
the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office.

(c) Except as provided below, no Bonds shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose
or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon
the  certificate  of  Paying  Agent/Registrar  substantially  in  the  form  provided  herein,  duly
authenticated  by manual  execution  by an  officer  or  duly authorized  signatory of  the Paying
Agent/Registrar.   It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the
Paying Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Bonds.  In
lieu of the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial  Bonds
delivered  at  the  Closing  Date  shall  have  attached  thereto  the  Comptroller’s  Registration
Certificate substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by his duly authorized agent, which Certificate shall be
evidence that the Bond has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas,
that  it  is a valid  and binding obligation of the Town, and that  it  has been registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

- 8 -
#6205349.1



(d) On the Closing Date, one initial Bond (the “Initial Bond”) representing the entire
principal  amount  of  all  Bonds,  payable  in  stated  installments  to  the  initial  purchaser,  or  its
designee,  executed by the Mayor and City Secretary of the Town, approved by the Attorney
General,  and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller  of Public Accounts, will  be
delivered to the initial purchaser or its designee.  Upon payment for the Initial Bond, the Paying
Agent/Registrar  shall  cancel  the  Initial  Bond  and  deliver  to  DTC  on  behalf  of  the  initial
purchaser one registered definitive Bond for each year of maturity of the Bonds in the aggregate
principal  amount  of all  Bonds for such maturity,  registered in  the name of Cede & Co.,  as
nominee of DTC.

Section III.5. Ownership.

(a) The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person
in whose name any Bond is registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose of
making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in
whose name such Bond is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable),
and for all other purposes, whether or not such Bond is overdue, and neither the Town nor the
Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary.

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall
discharge the liability of the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Bond to the extent
of the sums paid.

Section III.6. Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.

(a) So  long  as  any  Bonds  remain  outstanding,  the  Town shall  cause  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in
which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar
shall provide for the registration and transfer of Bonds in accordance with this Ordinance.

(b) The ownership  of  a  Bond may be transferred  only upon the  presentation  and
surrender of the Bond at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar
with  such  endorsement  or  other  evidence  of  transfer  as  is  acceptable  to  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Bond shall be effective until entered in the Register.

(c) The Bonds shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at
the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Bond or Bonds of
the same maturity  and interest  rate  and in  a  denomination  or denominations  of  any integral
multiple of $5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid principal amount of
the  Bonds  presented  for  exchange.   The  Paying  Agent/Registrar  is  hereby  authorized  to
authenticate and deliver Bonds exchanged for other Bonds in accordance with this Section.

(d) Each exchange Bond delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with
this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to
the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Bond or Bonds in lieu of
which such exchange Bond is delivered.

- 9 -
#6205349.1



(e) No  service  charge  shall  be  made  to  the  Owner  for  the  initial  registration,
subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Bonds.  The Paying
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration,
transfer, or exchange of a Bond.

(f) Neither  the  Town  nor  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  be  required  to  issue,
transfer or exchange any Bond called for redemption, in whole or in part, within 45 calendar
days  prior to the date  fixed for redemption;  provided, however,  such limitation shall  not be
applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

Section III.7. Cancellation.

All  Bonds  paid  or  redeemed  before  scheduled  maturity  in  accordance  with  this
Ordinance,  and  all  Bonds  in  lieu  of  which  exchange  Bonds  or  replacement  Bonds  are
authenticated  and delivered  in accordance with this  Ordinance,  shall  be canceled and proper
records  made  regarding  such  payment,  redemption,  exchange,  or  replacement.   The  Paying
Agent/Registrar shall then return such canceled Bonds to the Town or may in accordance with
law dispose of such cancelled Bonds.

Section III.8. Temporary Bonds.

(a) Following  the  delivery  and  registration  of  the  Initial  Bond  and  pending  the
preparation of definitive Bonds, the proper officers of the Town may execute and, upon the
Town’s  request,  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  authenticate  and  deliver,  one  or  more
temporary  Bonds  that  are  printed,  lithographed,  typewritten,  mimeographed,  or  otherwise
produced, in any denomination, substantially of the tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which
they  are  delivered,  without  coupons,  and  with  such  appropriate  insertions,  omissions,
substitutions, and other variations as the officers of the Town executing such temporary Bonds
may determine, as evidenced by their signing of such temporary Bonds.

(b) Until exchanged for Bonds in definitive form, such Bonds in temporary form shall
be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance.

(c) The Town, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the
Paying  Agent/Registrar  the  Bonds  in  definitive  form;  thereupon,  upon  the  presentation  and
surrender of the Bond or Bonds in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Bonds in temporary form and shall authenticate and deliver in
exchange therefor a Bond or Bonds of the same maturity and series, in definitive form, in the
authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as the Bond or Bonds in
temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made without the making of any charge
therefor to any Owner.

Section III.9. Replacement Bonds.

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated
Bond,  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  authenticate  and  deliver  in  exchange  therefor  a
replacement Bond of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously

- 10 -
#6205349.1



outstanding.  The Town or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the Owner of such Bond to
pay a sum sufficient  to cover any tax or other governmental  charge that is authorized to be
imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected therewith.

(b) In the event that any Bond is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the
Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence
of  notice  or  knowledge  that  such  Bond  has  been  acquired  by  a  bona  fide  purchaser,  shall
authenticate  and  deliver  a  replacement  Bond  of  like  tenor  and  principal  amount,  bearing  a
number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that  the Owner first  complies with the
following requirements:

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Bond;

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying
Agent/Registrar to save it and the Town harmless;

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the Town and the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(c) If,  after  the  delivery of  such replacement  Bond,  a  bona fide purchaser  of  the
original Bond in lieu of which such replacement Bond was issued presents for payment such
original  Bond,  the  Town  and  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  be  entitled  to  recover  such
replacement Bond from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom,
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the Town or the
Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith.

(d) In the event that any such mutilated,  lost,  apparently destroyed,  or wrongfully
taken Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Bond, may pay such Bond when it becomes due and
payable.

(e) Each replacement Bond delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute
an original additional contractual obligation of the Town and shall be entitled to the benefits and
security  of  this  Ordinance  to  the  same extent  as  the  Bond or  Bonds in  lieu  of  which  such
replacement Bond is delivered.

Section III.10. Book-Entry-Only System.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Bond, the
Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Bonds
shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate bond for each of the maturities thereof.

- 11 -
#6205349.1



(b) With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC,
the Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC
Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the
Bonds.   Without  limiting  the  immediately  preceding  sentence,  the  Town  and  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in
the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as
shown  on  the  Register,  of  any  notice  with  respect  to  the  Bonds,  including  any  notice  of
redemption,  or (iii)  the payment  to any DTC Participant  or any other  person, other  than an
Owner, as shown in the Register of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or
interest on the Bonds.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the
Town and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose
name each Bond is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Bond for the purpose
of payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, for the purpose of giving
notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of registering
transfer  with  respect  to  such  Bond,  and  for  all  other  purposes  whatsoever.   The  Paying
Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or
upon the order of the respective Owners as shown in the Register, as provided in this Ordinance,
or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and
effective  to  fully  satisfy  and  discharge  the  Town’s  obligations  with  respect  to  payment  of,
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid.  No person
other  than  an  Owner,  as  shown  in  the  Register,  shall  receive  a  certificate  evidencing  the
obligation of the Town to make payments of amounts due pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon
delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the word “Cede & Co.” in this
Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(c) The Representations Letter previously executed and delivered by the Town, and
applicable to the Town’s obligations delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities
depository, is hereby ratified and approved for the Bonds.

Section III.11. Successor  Securities  Depository;  Transfer  Outside  Book-Entry-Only
System.

In  the  event  that  the  Town  or  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  determines  that  DTC  is
incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein and in the Representations Letter of
the Town to DTC, and that it is in the best interest of the Town and the beneficial owners of the
Bonds that  they be able  to  obtain  certificated  Bonds,  or  in  the event  DTC discontinues  the
services described herein, the Town shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified
to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and
transfer one or more separate Bonds to such successor securities depository; or (ii) notify DTC
and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of certificated Bonds and cause the Paying
Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate registered Bonds to DTC Participants having
Bonds credited to their DTC accounts.  In such event, the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to
being registered in the Register in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be
registered in the name of the successor securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name

- 12 -
#6205349.1



or  names  Owners  transferring  or  exchanging  Bonds  shall  designate,  in  accordance  with  the
provisions of this Ordinance.

Section III.12. Payments to Cede & Co.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary,  so long as the
Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect
to principal of, premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds, and all notices with respect to such
Bonds shall  be made and given, respectively,  in the manner provided in the Representations
Letter of the Town to DTC.

ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OF BONDS BEFORE MATURITY

Section IV.1. Limitation on Redemption.

The Bonds shall be subject to redemption before scheduled maturity only as provided in
this Article IV. 

Section IV.2. Optional Redemption.

(a) The  Town  reserves  the  option  to  redeem  Bonds  maturing  on  and  after
February 15, 2030 in whole or any part,  before their  respective scheduled maturity dates,  on
August 15, 2029 or on any date thereafter,  such redemption date or dates to be fixed by the
Town, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption plus accrued
interest to the date fixed for redemption.

(b) If  less  than  all  of  the  Bonds  are  to  be  redeemed  pursuant  to  an  optional
redemption, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be
redeemed  and  shall  direct  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  to  call  by  lot  the  Bonds,  or  portions
thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in such principal amounts for redemption.

(c) The Town, at least 45 days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period
shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of
such redemption date and of the principal amount of Bonds to be redeemed.

Section IV.3. Reserved.

Section IV.4. Partial Redemption.

(a) A  portion  of  a  single  Bond  of  a  denomination  greater  than  $5,000  may  be
redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If
such a Bond is  to  be partially  redeemed,  the Paying Agent/Registrar  shall  treat  each $5,000
portion of the Bond as though it were a single Bond for purposes of selection for redemption.

(b) Upon surrender of any Bond for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar,
in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange

- 13 -
#6205349.1



Bond  in  an  aggregate  principal  amount  equal  to  the  unredeemed  portion  of  the  Bond  so
surrendered, such exchange being without charge.

(c) The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  promptly  notify the  Town in  writing  of  the
principal  amount  to  be  redeemed  of  any Bond as  to  which  only  a  portion  thereof  is  to  be
redeemed.

Section IV.5. Notice of Redemption to Owners.

(a) The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  give  notice  of  any redemption  of  Bonds by
sending notice by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days before the
date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Bond (or part thereof) to be redeemed, at the
address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next preceding the
date of mailing such notice.

(b) The notice  shall  state  the  redemption  date,  the  redemption  price,  the  place  at
which the Bonds are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Bonds outstanding
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed.

(c) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

Section IV.6. Payment Upon Redemption.

(a) Before  or  on  each  redemption  date,  the  Town  shall  deposit  with  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Bonds to be redeemed on such date
by setting aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying Agent/Registrar
from the  Town and shall  use  such funds  solely  for  the  purpose  of  paying  the  principal  of,
redemption premium, if any, and accrued interest on the Bonds being redeemed.

(b) Upon  presentation  and  surrender  of  any  Bond  called  for  redemption  at  the
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar on or after the date fixed for
redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of, redemption premium, if any,
and accrued interest on such Bond to the date of redemption from the money set aside for such
purpose.

Section IV.7. Effect of Redemption.

(a) Notice  of  redemption  having  been  given  as  provided  in  Section 4.05  of  this
Ordinance, the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on
the date fixed for redemption and, unless the Town defaults in its obligation to make provision
for the payment of the principal thereof, redemption premium, if any, or accrued interest thereon,
such Bonds or portions thereof  shall  cease to bear interest  from and after the date  fixed for
redemption, whether or not such Bonds are presented and surrendered for payment on such date.

(b) If  the  Town shall  fail  to  make  provision  for  payment  of  all  sums  due  on  a
redemption date, then any Bond or portion thereof called for redemption shall continue to bear

- 14 -
#6205349.1



interest at the rate stated on the Bond until due provision is made for the payment of same by the
Town.

Section IV.8. Conditional Notice of Redemption.

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds
conditioned  upon  the  occurrence  of  subsequent  events.  Such  notice  may  state  (i)  that  the
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no
effect  if  such  moneys  and/or  authorized  securities  are  not  so  deposited  or  if  the  notice  is
rescinded.  The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  give  prompt  notice  of  any such rescission of  a
conditional  notice  of  redemption  to  the  affected  Owners.  Any Bonds  subject  to  conditional
redemption and such redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding and the rescission
of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a conditional
notice  of  redemption,  the  failure  of  the Town to  make  moneys  and or  authorized  securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of
default.

Section IV.9. Lapse of Payment.

Money set aside for the redemption of Bonds and remaining unclaimed by the Owners of
such Bonds shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.03(f) hereof.

ARTICLE V

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

Section V.1. Appointment of Initial Paying Agent/Registrar.

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, Dallas, Texas, is
hereby appointed as the initial Paying Agent/Registrar for the Bonds.

Section V.2. Qualifications.

Each Paying Agent/Registrar  shall  be a commercial  bank, a trust  company organized
under the laws of the State of Texas, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve
as and perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Bonds.

Section V.3. Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.

(a) At all times while any of the Bonds are outstanding, the Town will maintain a
Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.  The Mayor is
hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  execute  an  agreement  with  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar
specifying  the  duties  and  responsibilities  of  the  Town  and  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  in

- 15 -
#6205349.1



substantially the form presented at this meeting, such form of agreement being hereby approved.
The signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary of the Town.

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the
Town will promptly appoint a replacement.

Section V.4. Termination.

The Town, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to
be terminated written notice of such termination.

Section V.5. Notice of Change to Owners.

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the Town
will  cause notice  of the change to  be sent  to  each Owner by first  class United States  mail,
postage prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change
and the name and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar.

Section V.6. Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.

By  accepting  the  appointment  as  Paying  Agent/Registrar  and  executing  the  Paying
Agent/Registrar  Agreement,  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  is  deemed  to  have  agreed  to  the
provisions  of  this  Ordinance  and  that  it  will  perform  the  duties  and  functions  of  Paying
Agent/Registrar prescribed thereby.

Section V.7. Delivery of Records to Successor.

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent
books and records relating to the Bonds to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar.

ARTICLE VI

FORM OF THE BONDS

Section VI.1. Form Generally.

(a) The Bonds, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller  of Public
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Bond of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment
form to appear on each of the Bonds, (i) shall be substantially in the form set forth in this Article,
with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are permitted
or  required  by  this  Ordinance,  and  (ii)  may  have  such  letters,  numbers,  or  other  marks  of
identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the Committee on Uniform Securities
Identification  Procedures  of  the  American  Bankers  Association)  and  such  legends  and
endorsements  (including any reproduction  of an opinion of  counsel)  thereon as,  consistently
herewith, may be determined by the Town or by the officers executing such Bonds, as evidenced
by their execution thereof.

- 16 -
#6205349.1



(b) Any portion of the text of any Bonds may be set forth on the reverse side thereof,
with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Bonds. 

(c) The  definitive  Bonds,  if  any,  shall  be  typewritten,  photocopied,  printed,
lithographed,  or  engraved,  and  may  be  produced  by  any  combination  of  these  methods  or
produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Bonds, as
evidenced by their execution thereof.

(d) The Initial Bond submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be
typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced. 

Section VI.2. Form of the Bonds.

The  form  of  the  Bonds,  including  the  form  of  the  Registration  Certificate  of  the
Comptroller  of Public Accounts of the State  of Texas,  the form of Certificate  of the Paying
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Bonds, shall be substantially as
follows:

(a) Form of Bond.

REGISTERED
No. _________

REGISTERED
$_________

United States of America
State of Texas

County of Dallas
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND
TAXABLE SERIES 2020

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DELIVERY DATE: CUSIP NUMBER:

______% February 15, ____ September 10, 2020 ______ ___

The Town of Addison (the “Town”), in the County of Dallas, State of Texas, for value
received, hereby promises to pay to

_____________________________

or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of

_______________________ DOLLARS

unless this Bond shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the principal
hereof shall have been provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount from the later
of Delivery Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to which interest has
been paid or provided for until payment of such principal amount has been provided for, at the
per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve

- 17 -
#6205349.1



30-day months,  such interest  to be paid semiannually on February 15 and August 15 of each
year, commencing February 15, 2021.

The principal of this Bond shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Bond at
the  designated  office  in  Dallas,  Texas,  of  The  Bank of  New York Mellon  Trust  Company,
National Association, as Paying Agent/Registrar (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”), or,
with respect to a successor paying agent/registrar, at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of
such successor Paying Agent/Registrar.  Interest on this Bond is payable by check dated as of the
interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered owner
at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by such
other  customary  banking  arrangement  acceptable  to  the  Paying  Agent/Registrar  and  the
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expenses of
such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal
amount of the Bonds, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner on
file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the payment of interest on this Bond,
the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of
business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last business day of the month next preceding
such interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of interest on a
scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest payment
(a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when funds
for the payment  of such interest  have been received from the Town.  Notice of the Special
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment
Date,” which date shall be 15 days after the Special  Record Date) shall  be sent at least five
business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class, postage prepaid,
to the address of each Owner of a Bond appearing on the books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at
the close of business on the last business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice.  

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Bond shall be a Saturday,
Sunday, legal holiday,  or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by
law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day that is
not  a  Saturday,  Sunday,  legal  holiday,  or day on which banking institutions  are  required or
authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on
the  original  date  payment  was  due  and  no  additional  interest  shall  be  due  by  reason  of
nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable.

This  Bond is  dated  August 1,  2020 and  is  one  of  a  series  of  fully  registered  bonds
specified in the title hereof issued in the aggregate principal amount of $___________   (herein
referred to as the “Bonds”), issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the Town (the “Ordinance”)
for the purpose of refunding a portion of the Town’s outstanding debt and to pay the costs and
expenses associated with issuing the Bonds.

The Town has reserved the option to redeem the Bonds maturing on or after February 15,
2030, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on February 15, 2029,
or on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds so called for
redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  If less than all of the Bonds

- 18 -
#6205349.1



are to be redeemed, the Town shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof
to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot or other customary
method that results in a random selection the Bonds, or portions thereof, within such maturity
and in such principal amounts, for redemption.

Notice of such redemption  or redemptions  shall  be given by first  class  mail,  postage
prepaid, not less than 30 days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner of
each of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Notice having been so given, the Bonds or
portions thereof designated for redemption shall become due and payable on the redemption date
specified in such notice; from and after such date,  notwithstanding that any of the Bonds or
portions thereof so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for payment, interest
on such Bonds or portions thereof shall cease to accrue. 

The Town reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Bonds
conditioned  upon  the  occurrence  of  subsequent  events.  Such  notice  may  state  (i)  that  the
redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an amount
equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, or such
other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date, or (ii) that the Town
retains the right to rescind such notice at any time on or prior to the scheduled redemption date if
the Town delivers a certificate of the Town to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying
Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice and such notice and redemption shall be of no
effect  if  such  moneys  and/or  authorized  securities  are  not  so  deposited  or  if  the  notice  is
rescinded.  The Paying  Agent/Registrar  shall  give  prompt  notice  of  any such rescission of  a
conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners. Any Bonds subject to conditional notice
of  redemption  and  such  redemption  has  been  rescinded  shall  remain  Outstanding  and  the
rescission of such redemption shall not constitute an event of default. Further, in the case of a
conditional redemption, the failure of the Town to make moneys and or authorized securities
available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of
default.

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this
Bond  is  transferable  upon  surrender  of  this  Town  for  transfer  at  the  Designated
Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence
of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar;  thereupon, one or more new fully
registered Bonds of the same stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate
of  interest,  and  for  the  same  aggregate  principal  amount  will  be  issued  to  the  designated
transferee or transferees.

Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or
exchange any Bond called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur within
45 calendar days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such limitation shall not
be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal balance of a Bond.

The Town, the Paying Agent/Registrar,  and any other person may treat the person in
whose name this Bond is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond is registered
on the  Record  Date,  or  the  Special  Record  Date,  as  applicable)  and for  all  other  purposes,

- 19 -
#6205349.1



whether or not this Bond be overdue, and neither the Town nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall
be affected by notice to the contrary. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this  Bond and the
series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law, and has been authorized by a vote of the
properly qualified electors of the Town; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have
happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem
taxes upon all taxable property in the Town have been levied for and pledged to the payment of
the debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total
indebtedness of the Town, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory
limitation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town has caused this that the issuance of this Bond and
the series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law, and has been authorized by a vote of the
properly qualified electors of the Town; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done
precedent to and in the issuance of the Bonds have been properly done and performed and have
happened in regular and due time, form and manner, as required by law; and that ad valorem
taxes upon all taxable property in the Town have been levied for and pledged to the payment of
the debt service requirements of the Bonds, within the limit prescribed by law; and that the total
indebtedness of the Town, including the Bonds, does not exceed any constitutional or statutory
limitation.

to  be executed  by the  manual  or  facsimile  signature  of  the Mayor  of  the Town and
countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of
the Town has been duly impressed or placed in facsimile on this Bond. 

_____________________________________
Mayor, Town of Addison, Texas

_____________________________________
City Secretary,
Town of Addison, Texas

[SEAL]

- 20 -
#6205349.1



(b) Form of  Comptroller’s  Registration  Certificate.   The  following  Comptroller’s
Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Bonds if such certificate on the Initial
Bond is fully executed.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO. ____________
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §

I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney
General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Bond has been examined by him as required
by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws of the
State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the Town of Addison, Texas; and
that this Bond has this day been registered by me.

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _____________________.

_____________________________________
Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State of Texas

(c) Form of  Certificate  of  Paying  Agent/Registrar.   The  following  Certificate  of
Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from each Initial Bond if the Comptroller’s Registration
Certificate appears thereon.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Bond of this series of
Bonds  was  approved  by  the  Attorney  General  of  the  State  of  Texas  and  registered  by  the
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Bonds referred
to in the within-mentioned Ordinance.

THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 
TRUST COMPANY, 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as Paying Agent/Registrar

Dated:  ________________ By: _________________________________

Authorized Signatory

- 21 -
#6205349.1



(d) Form of Assignment.

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or
typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):  ___________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________
(Social Security or other identifying number: ____________________) the within Bond and all
rights  hereunder  and  hereby  irrevocably  constitutes  and  appoints  ____________________
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the books kept for registration hereof, with full power of
substitution in the premises. 

Dated: __________________

Signature Guaranteed By:

____________________________________

____________________________________
Authorized Signatory

____________________________________

NOTICE:  The Signature on this Assignment
must  correspond  with  the  name  of  the
registered owner as it  appears on the face of
the within Bond in every particular and must
be  guaranteed  in  a  manner  acceptable  to  the
Paying Agent/Registrar.

(e) The Initial Bond shall be in the form set forth in subsections (a) through (d) of this
Section, except for the following alterations: 

(i) immediately  under  the  name  of  the  Bond,  the  headings  “INTEREST
RATE,” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As Shown
Below” and the words “CUSIP NO.” shall be deleted;

(ii) in  the  first  paragraph  of  the  Bond,  the  words  “on  the  Maturity  Date
specified above, the sum of ____________________ DOLLARS” shall be deleted and
the  following will  be inserted:  “on the fifteenth  day of  February in  the years,  in  the
principal  installments  and  bearing  interest  at  the  per  annum  rates  set  forth  in  the
following schedule: 

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate

(Information to be inserted from Section 3.02(c) hereof).

(iii) the Initial Bond shall be numbered T-1.

Section VI.3. CUSIP Registration.

The  Town  may  secure  identification  numbers  through  the  CUSIP  Service  Bureau
managed by S & P Global Market Intelligence on behalf of the American Bankers Association,
and may authorize  the  printing  of  such numbers  on  the  face  of  the  Bonds.   It  is  expressly

- 22 -
#6205349.1



provided, however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be of no
significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the Town nor the attorneys
approving said Bonds as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly
printed on the Bonds.

Section VI.4. Legal Opinion.

The approving legal opinion of Bracewell LLP, Bond Counsel, may be attached to or
printed on the reverse side of each Bond over the certification of the City Secretary of the Town,
which may be executed in facsimile.

Section VI.5. Statement Insurance.

A statement relating to a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, to be issued for the
Bonds, may be printed on each Bond.

ARTICLE VII

SALE AND DELIVERY OF BONDS; 
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; FLOW OF FUNDS

Section VII.1. Sale of Bonds; Official Statement.

(a) The Bonds, having been duly advertised and offered for sale at competitive bid,
are  hereby officially sold and awarded to ______________ (the “Purchaser”) for a  purchase
price  equal  to  the  principal  amount  thereof,  plus  a  cash  premium  in  the  amount  of
$_______________, being the bid which produced the lowest true interest cost to the Town. The
Initial Bond shall be registered in the name of the Purchaser or its designee.

(b) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda,
supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted and is hereby
deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule
15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The Mayor and City Secretary
are  hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  cause  to  be  prepared  a  final  Official  Statement  (the
“Official Statement”) incorporating applicable pricing information pertaining to the Bonds, and
to  execute  the  same  by  manual  or  facsimile  signature  and  deliver  appropriate  numbers  of
executed copies thereof to the Purchaser.  The Official Statement as thus approved and delivered,
with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the Mayor and the Purchaser, may be
used by the Purchaser in the public offering and sale thereof.   The City Secretary is hereby
authorized  and  directed  to  include  and  maintain  a  copy  of  the  Official  Statement  and  any
addenda, supplement or amendment thereto thus approved among the permanent records of this
meeting.  The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preliminary
public offering of the Bonds by the Purchaser, is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

(c) All officers of the Town are authorized to execute such documents, certificates
and receipts as they may deem appropriate in order to consummate the delivery of the Bonds in
accordance with the terms of sale therefor.  Further, in connection with the submission of the
record  of  proceedings  for  the  Bonds  to  the  Attorney  General  of  the  State  of  Texas  for

- 23 -
#6205349.1



examination  and  approval  of  such  Bonds,  the  appropriate  officer  of  the  Town  is  hereby
authorized and directed to issue a check of the Town payable to the Attorney General of the State
of Texas as a nonrefundable examination fee in the amount required by Chapter 1202, Texas
Government Code (such amount per series to be the lesser of (i) 1/10th of 1% of the principal
amount of such series of the Bonds or (ii) $9,500.)

(d) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Bonds is subject to the
Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bracewell LLP, bond counsel for
the Town, which opinion shall be dated and delivered the Closing Date.

Section VII.2. Control and Delivery of Bonds.

(a) The Mayor of the Town is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Bond
and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination,
and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the Comptroller of
Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange or transfer by,
the Paying Agent/Registrar.

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Bonds
shall  be  made  to  the  Purchaser  or  a  representative  thereof  under  and subject  to  the general
supervision and direction of the Mayor, against receipt by the Town of all amounts due to the
Town under the terms of sale.

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute
any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for
the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed
by the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively.

ARTICLE VIII

CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS;
DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS

Section VIII.1.Creation of Funds.  

(a) The Town hereby establishes the following special funds or accounts:

(i) The  Town  of  Addison,  Texas,  General  Obligation  Refunding  Bonds,
Taxable Series 2020, Interest and Sinking Fund 

(b) This fund or account shall be maintained at an official depository of the Town.

- 24 -
#6205349.1



Section VIII.2.Interest and Sinking Fund.  

(a) The taxes levied under Section 2.01 shall be deposited to the credit of the Interest
and Sinking Fund at such times and in such amounts as necessary for the timely payment of the
principal of and interest on the Bonds.

(b) If the amount of money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is at least equal to the
aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Bonds plus the aggregate amount of interest due
and that will become due and payable on such Bonds, no further deposits to that fund need be
made.

(c) Money on deposit  in  the  Interest  and Sinking Fund shall  be  used  to  pay the
principal of and interest on the Bonds as such become due and payable.

Section VIII.3.Security of Funds.  

All moneys on deposit in the funds referred to in this Ordinance shall be secured in the
manner and to the fullest extent required by the laws of the State of Texas for the security of
public funds, and moneys on deposit in such funds shall be used only for the purposes permitted
by this Ordinance.

Section VIII.4.Deposit of Proceeds.  

(a) Proceeds of the Bonds in the amount of $_____________, plus lawfully available
funds of the Town in the amount of $_________, shall be deposited to the Escrow Fund pursuant
to  the  Escrow  Agreement  to  refund  the  Refunded  Bonds,  and,  to  the  extent  not  otherwise
provided for,  to  pay all  expenses  arising  in  connection  with  the  refunding of  the  Refunded
Bonds.

(b) Premium generated on the Bonds in the amount of $176,645.41 shall be deposited
to a special fund, such moneys to be dedicated and used for paying the costs of issuance.  Any
amounts remaining after the payment of the costs of issuance shall be deposited to the Interest
and Sinking Fund.

Section VIII.5.Investments.

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance, at the option
of the Town, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law.

(b) Any securities or obligations in which such money is so invested shall be kept and
held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be
timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from the fund from which the
investment was made.

Section VIII.6.Investment Income.

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund be
credited to such fund.

- 25 -
#6205349.1



(b) Interest and income derived from investment of the funds to be deposited pursuant
to Section 7.03(b) hereof shall be credited to the account where deposited until the acquisition or
construction of said projects is completed and thereafter, to the extent such interest and income
are present, such interest and income shall be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

ARTICLE IX

PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

Section IX.1. Payment of the Bonds.

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Bonds and while any of the Bonds are
outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, out of the
Interest and Sinking Fund, money sufficient to pay such interest on and principal of, redemption
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest
Payment Date, maturity date and, if applicable, on a date of prior redemption.

Section IX.2. Other Representations and Covenants.

(a) The  Town  will  faithfully  perform,  at  all  times,  any  and  all  covenants,
undertakings,  stipulations,  and provisions contained in this  Ordinance and in each Bond; the
Town will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and
interest on each Bond on the dates and at the places and manner prescribed in such Bond; and the
Town will, at the times and in the manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be
deposited the amounts of money specified by this Ordinance.

(b) The Town is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the
Bonds;  all  action  on its  part  for  the creation  and issuance  of  the  Bonds has  been duly and
effectively taken; and the Bonds in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid and
enforceable obligations of the Town in accordance with their terms.

ARTICLE X

DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section X.1. Events of Default.

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is hereby
declared to be an Event of Default:

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if
any, or interest on any of the Bonds when the same becomes due and payable; or

(ii) default  in  the  performance  or  observance  of  any  other  covenant,
agreement, or obligation of the Town, which default materially and adversely affects the
rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in
accordance with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60)
days after notice of such default is given by any Owner to the Town.

- 26 -
#6205349.1



Section X.2. Remedies for Default.

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized
representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed
against the Town for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this
Ordinance by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any
court  of  competent  jurisdiction  for  any  relief  permitted  by  law,  including  the  specific
performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing
that may be unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of
such remedies.

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the
equal benefit of all Owners of Bonds then outstanding.

Section X.3. Remedies Not Exclusive.

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Bonds or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the right
to accelerate  the debt evidenced by the Bonds shall  not be available as a remedy under this
Ordinance.

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a
waiver of any other available remedy.

ARTICLE XI

DISCHARGE

Section XI.1. Discharge.

The  Bonds  may  be  defeased,  discharged  or  refunded  in  any  manner  permitted  by
applicable law.

ARTICLE XII

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

Section XII.1. Annual Reports.

(a) The Town shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six months after the
end of each fiscal year of the Town, financial information and operating data with respect to the
Town of the general type included in the final Official Statement, being information described in
the Tables numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 15, including financial statements of the Town if
audited financial statements of the Town are then available, and (2) if not provided as part such
financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the Town, when and if
available.  Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) prepared in accordance with the

- 27 -
#6205349.1



accounting principles appended to the Official Statement, or such other accounting principles as
the Town may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and
(ii)  audited,  if  the Town commissions  an audit  of such financial  statements  and the audit  is
completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such financial
statements is not complete within 12 months after any such fiscal year end, then the Town shall
file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial statements
for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such statements becomes available.

(b) If the Town changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of
the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the Town otherwise would be
required to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section.

(c) The  financial  information  and  operating  data  to  be  provided  pursuant  to  this
Section may be  set  forth  in  full  in  one  or  more  documents  or  may be  included by specific
referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is
available from the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the
SEC.

Section XII.2. Material Event Notices.

(a) The Town shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10)
Business Days after the occurrence of the event, of any of the following events with respect to
the Bonds:

(i) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(ii) Non-payment related defaults, if material;

(iii) Unscheduled  draws  on  debt  service  reserves  reflecting  financial
difficulties;

(iv) Unscheduled  draws  on  credit  enhancements  reflecting  financial
difficulties;

(v) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(vi) Adverse tax opinions,  the issuance  by the Internal  Revenue Service of
proposed or  final  determinations  of  taxability,  Notices  of  Proposed  Issue  (IRS Form
5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the
Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

(vii) Modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;

(viii) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;

(ix) Defeasances;

- 28 -
#6205349.1



(x) Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds,
if material;

(xi) Rating changes;

(xii) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Town;

(xiii) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the
Town or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Town, other than in the
ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an
action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than
pursuant to its terms, if material; and

(xiv) Appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar or change in the name
of the Paying Agent/Registrar, if material.

(xv) incurrence of a financial obligation of the Town, if material, or agreement
to  covenants,  events  of  default,  remedies,  priority  rights,  or  other  similar  terms  of  a
financial obligation of the Town, any of which affect security holders, if material; and

(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or
other similar events under the terms of a financial obligation of the Town, any of which
reflect financial difficulties.  

For these purposes, any event described in the immediately preceding clause (xii) is considered
to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, or similar
officer for the Town in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Town, or if such jurisdiction has
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority,  or the entry of an
order  confirming  a  plan  of  reorganization,  arrangement,  or  liquidation  by  a  court  or
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets of
business  of  the  Town;  and the  Town intends  the  words  used  in  the  immediately  preceding
paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition of financial obligations in those sections to have the
same meanings as when they are used in rule and sec release no. 34-83885, dated August 20,
2018.  

(b) The Town shall provide to the MSRB, in an electronic format as prescribed by the
MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure by the Town to provide required annual financial
information and notices of material events in accordance with Sections 12.01 and 12.02.  All
documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Section shall be accompanied by identifying
information as prescribed by the MSRB.

Section XII.3. Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.

(a) The Town shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in
this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the Town remains an “obligated person” with

- 29 -
#6205349.1



respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule, except that the Town in any event will give
notice of any redemption calls  and any defeasances that cause the Town to be no longer an
“obligated person.”

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial
owners of the Bonds, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any
legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The Town undertakes
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which
it  has expressly agreed to provide pursuant  to  this  Article and does not  hereby undertake to
provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the
Town’s financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information
provided in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The
Town  does  not  make  any  representation  or  warranty  concerning  such  information  or  its
usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Bonds at any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE TOWN BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER OR
BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR
TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY
THE TOWN, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY
COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS  ARTICLE,  BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OF
ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH
BREACH  SHALL  BE  LIMITED  TO  AN  ACTION  FOR  MANDAMUS  OR  SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE.

(c) No default  by the Town in observing or performing its  obligations  under  this
Article shall  constitute  a breach of or default  under the Ordinance for purposes of any other
provisions of this Ordinance.

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise
limit the duties of the Town under federal and state securities laws.

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the Town from time to time to
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law,
or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the Town, but only if (i) the
provisions of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or
sell Bonds in the primary offering of the Bonds in compliance with the Rule, taking into account
any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such
changed  circumstances,  and (ii)  either  (A)  the  Owners  of  a  majority  in  aggregate  principal
amount (or any greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes
such an amendment) of the Outstanding Bonds consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or
individual person that is unaffiliated with the Town (such as nationally recognized bond counsel)
determines  that  such amendment  will  not  materially  impair  the  interests  of  the  Owners  and
beneficial owners of the Bonds.  If the Town so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall
include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance
with Section 12.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of
the impact of any change in type of financial information or operating data so provide.

- 30 -
#6205349.1



ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS

Section XIII.1.Amendments.

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the Town, and
shall not be amended or repealed by the Town so long as any Bond remains outstanding except
as permitted in this Section.  The Town may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, from
time to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests
of  the  Owners,  including  the  curing  of  any  ambiguity,  inconsistency,  or  formal  defect  or
omission herein.  In addition,  the Town may,  with the written consent of the Owners of the
Bonds holding a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, amend,
add to, or rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of
all Owners of outstanding Bonds, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall  extend the
time or times of payment  of the principal of and interest  on the Bonds, reduce the principal
amount thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify
the terms of payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds,  give any preference to any
Bond over any other Bond, or  reduce the aggregate principal amount of Bonds required to be
held by Owners for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission.

ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS

Section XIV.1. Changes to Ordinance.

The  Mayor  and Director  of  Finance,  in  consultation  with  Bond Counsel,  are  hereby
authorized to make changes to the terms of this Ordinance if necessary or desirable to carry out
the purposes hereof or in connection with the approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the
Attorney General of Texas.

Section XIV.2. Partial Invalidity.

If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any reason be
held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph,
clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of the Ordinance.

Section XIV.3. No Personal Liability.  

No recourse shall be had for payment of the principal of or interest on any Bonds or for
any claim based thereon, or on this Ordinance, against any official or employee of the Town or
any person executing any Bonds. 

- 31 -
#6205349.1



ARTICLE XV

REDEMPTION OF REFUNDED BONDS; ESCROW AGREEMENT; 
PURCHASE OF SECURITIES

Section XV.1. Payment of Paying Agent.

Prior  to  the  Closing  Date,  the  Town  shall  ascertain  from  the  paying  agent  for  the
Refunded Bonds the amount of all future fees and expenses for its paying agent services with
respect to the Refunded Bonds.  Concurrently with the sale and delivery of the Bonds, the Town
shall cause an amount sufficient to pay such future fees and expenses to be paid to each such
paying agent.

Section XV.2. Subscription  for  Securities.   The  Mayor  and  Director  of  Finance  are
authorized to make necessary arrangements for and to execute such documents and agreements
in connection with the purchase of the Authorized Securities required by and referenced in the
Escrow Agreement, if any, as may be necessary for the Escrow Fund and the application for the
acquisition of the Authorized Securities is hereby approved and ratified.

Section XV.3. Escrow Agreement.

The  Escrow Agreement,  in  substantially  the  form presented  at  this  meeting,  and  its
execution and delivery by the Mayor is hereby authorized and approved.  The signature of the
Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary.

Section XV.4. Payment of Refunded Bonds; Redemption of Refunded Bonds.  Following
the deposit to the Escrow Fund as herein specified, the Refunded Bonds shall be payable solely
from and secured by the cash and securities on deposit in the Escrow Fund for the purpose of
refunding the Refunded Bonds and shall cease to be payable from ad valorem taxes, and firm
banking and financial arrangements shall have been made for the discharge and final payment or
redemption of the Refunded Bonds pursuant to Chapter 1207.  The Refunded Bonds are hereby
called for redemption prior to maturity on the dates and at the redemption prices set forth in the
Schedule I attached hereto.  The City Secretary hereby authorized and directed to cause to be
delivered to the paying agent/registrar for the Refunded Bonds a certified copy of this Ordinance
calling the Refunded Bonds for redemption.  The delivery of this Ordinance to the paying agent
for the Refunded Bonds shall constitute the giving of notice of redemption to the paying agent
for the Refunded Bonds and such paying agent is hereby authorized and directed to give notice
of redemption to the owners of the Refunded Bonds in accordance with the requirements of the
ordinance authorizing the issuance thereof.

ARTICLE XVI

EFFECTIVENESS

Section XVI.1. Effectiveness.

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage.

- 32 -
#6205349.1



APPROVED AND ADOPTED this August 11, 2020.

_____________________________________
Mayor, Town of Addison, Texas

ATTEST:

_______________________________________
City Secretary, Town of Addison, Texas

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: __________________________________
Town Attorney, Town of Addison, Texas

 

Signature Page for Ordinance
Taxable Series 2020 General Obligation Refunding Bonds





SCHEDULE I

SCHEDULE OF REFUNDED BONDS
General Obligation Refunding & Improvement Bonds, Series 2012

Original Dated Date: 8/15/2012

Maturity Date Interest Rate

Principal
Amount

Outstanding

Principal
Amount

Refunded

2/15/2023    5.000% $ 910,000 $ 910,000
2/15/2024 5.000 955,000 955,000
2/15/2025 5.000 1,010,000 1,010,000
2/15/2026 5.000 1,060,000 1,060,000
2/15/2027 5.000 1,115,000 1,115,000
2/15/2028 5.000 1,170,000 1,170,000
2/15/2029 5.000 1,230,000 1,230,000
2/15/2030 5.000 1,295,000 1,295,000
2/15/2031 5.000 1,350,000 1,350,000
2/15/2032 3.125 1,385,000 1,385,000

$ 11,480,000 $ 11,480,000

The 2023 – 2032 maturities will be redeemed prior to original maturity on February 15, 2022 at 
par.

General Obligation Bonds, Taxable Series 2013B

Original Dated Date: 7/15/2013

Maturity Date Interest Rate
Principal Amount

Outstanding
Principal Amount

Refunded

2/15/2024(1)    5.000% $ 60,000 $ 60,000
2/15/2025(1) 5.000   65,000   65,000
2/15/2026(1) 5.000   65,000   65,000
2/15/2027(1) 5.000  70,000  70,000
2/15/2028(1) 5.000  75,000  75,000
2/15/2029(1) 5.000  75,000  75,000
2/15/2030(1) 5.000  80,000  80,000
2/15/2031(1) 5.000  85,000  85,000
2/15/2032(1) 5.000  90,000  90,000
2/15/2033(1) 5.000  95,000  95,000

$ 760,000 $ 760,000

The 2033 maturity will be redeemed prior to original maturity on February 15, 2023 at par.

(1) Represents a Term Bond with a final maturity of February 15, 2033.

__________

#6205349.1



   

Council Meeting 9.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss and Consider Action on Change Order #2 to the Contract with JC
Commercial, Inc. for Costs Related to Unforeseen Site Conditions for the United
States Customs and Border Protection Facility at Addison Airport and Authorize
the City Manager to Execute the Change Order  in an Amount Not to Exceed
$141,881.10. 

BACKGROUND:
On August 27, 2019, the Addison City Council approved a contract with JC Commercial,
Inc. for the construction of the U.S Customs and Border Protection and Airport
Administration facility at Addison Airport in the amount of $6,223,949. 

Change Order #1, dated February 28, 2019 approved a cost increase of $22,215.16,
thereby increasing the contract amount to $6,246,209.16. Change order #1 included
North Texas Tollway Authority irrigation modifications, an Oncor utility relocation, the
installation of bollards around the  Customs and Border Protection generators, and the
removal of an abandoned water line. Change order #1  was not taken to Council because
the amount was less than $50,000 and less than 25% of the contract price.  Change order
#1 did not add additional days to the contract.  

Change Order #2 includes the following additional items that were not anticipated or
known at the time of the original contract. Staff determined that it was prudent, efficient
and effective to address the following issues as part of the on-going work: 

Additional concrete pier depths for the building foundation due to a variable depth
rock layer that was deeper than anticipated. Additional pier depths ranged from 1.5
to 3.5 feet in depth and occurred outside the known rock layer depth provided in the
geotechnical report. The pricing provided by JC Commercial Inc. is consistent with
industry standards for costs per linear foot of pier depth for the additional labor and
materials.
Changes in the erection of steel for the elevator. Page, the project architect, and
AG&E , the structural engineer, have both reviewed the proposal submitted by JC
Commercial, Inc. and agree the additional steel and erection costs is justified and
necessary. The steel modification required a high degree of detail and precision and
the contractor is required to complete the modifications associated with the elevator
installation.
The site design earthwork quantity in the bid documents was calculated before the
site demolition of the old hangar and removal of old pavements. JC Commercial



performed a topographic survey of the site to verify existing conditions before
construction began and notified the project team that elevations for the site were
lower than the existing survey provided in the design documents.
As requested by U.S Customs and Border Protection, hold room toilets and lavatory
were revised from separate toilets and lavatory to combination toilet/lavatory
fixtures in order to comply with U.S. Customs and Border Protection requirements.

The following table summarizes the effect of change order #2 on the contract price: 
Description Original Price Amount
     
Additional Foundation Pier Depths   $11,466.65
Change to Elevator Steel Structure   $20,067.30
Additional Fill   $107,056.95
CBP Hold Room Combination Toilet/Lavatory Revision   $3,290.20
Subtotal   $141,881.10
     
Amount of this Change Order   $141,881.10
Original Contract Amount   $6,223,949.00
Overall Contract (Including Previous Change Order)   $6,246,209.16
Revised Contract Amount   $6,388,090.26
Total % Increase (including change orders #1 and #2)   2.57%

This change order requires council approval because the total amount is greater than
$50,000.

The following table summarizes the effect of change order #2 on the contract time: 
Description Calendar Days
Additional Foundation Pier Depths 5
Change to Elevator Steel Structure 10
Additional Fill 10
Subtotal 25
   
Original Contract Start Date September 30, 2019
Original Contract Time 450
Previously Approved Contract Time Extension 0
Approved Contract Time Extensions this Change Order 25
New Contract Time 475



New Contract Completion Date January 17, 2021

Funding for these improvements is from the 7.3% contingency allowance included in the
original contract with JC Commercial, Inc. The total contingency allowance for the
project is $559,978.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
U.S Customs and Border Protection Facility - Change Order #2 
U.S Customs and Border Protection Facility - Change Order #1 







Digitally Signed 05/29/2020







































































































































   

Council Meeting 10.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: Infrastructure- Development Services
Pillars: Excellence in Transportation Systems

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on a Resolution to Approve a Ground Lease
Agreement Between the Town of Addison and Mercury Air Center - Addison, Inc,
(Doing Business As Atlantic Aviation) in the Proximity of 4400 Glenn Curtiss Drive
and Authorize the City Manager to Execute the Agreement.

BACKGROUND:
Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc., doing business as Atlantic Aviation, is requesting
that the Town of Addison execute a new, 40 year lease between itself and the Town of
Addison. Atlantic Aviation has operated as a fixed base operator at Addison Airport for
13 years and currently has a license agreement to sell fuel to the aviation public. The
proposed new ground lease consolidates their current leases which are all set to expire
within the next 2 ¼ years, the most recent expiring in September of this year. The
consolidated ground lease will total approximately 11.49 acres.

The following properties are included in the proposed lease: 

4451 Glenn Curtiss1.
4453 Glenn Curtiss2.
4480 Glenn Curtiss3.
4400 Glenn Curtiss4.
4540 Glenn Curtiss5.
4532 Glenn Curtiss6.
4530 Glenn Curtiss7.

 The proposed ground lease includes the following: 

A new ground lease with an initial term of 7 years to encompass multiple existing
improvements; and

1.

Atlantic Aviation is to make a minimum investment of $14 million over the initial
13 years to obtain a full 40 year term:

2.

Extended Term #1:  7 Year Base Term (2027) plus 13 years (until 2040) upon
completion of the demolition of the existing hangar at 4451 Glenn Curtiss and
construction of a larger $6 million dollar jet hangar to be completed 4 years
following commencement date (2024)
Extended Term #2:  Extended Term #1 plus 15 years (until 2055) upon completion
of $5.5 million renovation of the FBO terminal and new apron by end of 2027



of $5.5 million renovation of the FBO terminal and new apron by end of 2027
Extended Term #3: 5 years (until 2060) upon completion of a $2.5
million renovation of the hangar at 4453 Glenn Curtiss and construction of parking
improvements at 4532 Glenn Curtiss and 4530 Glenn Curtiss by end of 2033.

3.  Atlantic Aviation pays the Town of Addison for the existing improvements over the
term of the lease.

Terms and conditions of the proposed ground lease include: 

The annual ground rental is $1.23 per square foot, or $615,620 annually;1.
The Base Rent is subject to a biennial adjustment (every two years) based upon the
percentage change in the Consumers’ Price Index; and  

2.

The proposed Ground Lease is subject to the early termination of the leases for 4451
Glenn Curtiss, 4453 Glenn Curtiss, 4480 Glenn Curtiss, and 4400 Glenn Curtiss. A 
Memorandum of Lease will be recorded for each lease, showing their early
termination and the proposed ground lease taking effect in its place. 

3.

The total estimated revenue to the airport is summarized below: 
 

Description Estimated Revenue
Total Annual Ground Rent Revenue $615,620
   
Estimated Revenue Over Term $32,404,420

The total estimated value to the airport is summarized below:
  
     

Description  Required
Investment

Estimated
Value

7 Year Base Term subject to 3 Term Extensions as
outlined below:

   

Extension Term #1 (13 year extension spend
in years 1-4) $6,000,000

 

Extension Term #2 (15 year extension spend
in years 1-7) $5,500,000

 

Extension Term #3 (5 year extension spend in
years 1-13) $2,500,000

 



Total Capital Investment Spend   $14,000,000
     
Estimated Net Present Value @ 9% Discount Rate   $7,512,687
     
Total Estimated Leasehold Value (Today's Dollar)   $21,512,687
 
 
The proposed lease supports the Town’s strategic objectives for the airport by enhancing
the overall value of the airport with new development, increased revenue over the lease
term and the recognition of the existing improvements’ reversion value. The proposed
use is consistent with the Airport’s 2016 Airport Master Plan.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution - Atlantic Aviation Ground Lease 
Presentation - Atlantic Aviation Ground Lease 
Recommendation Memo 
Map - Location of Atlantic Aviation 



 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 1 of 67 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
APPROVING A GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 
ADDISON AND MECURY AIR CENTER – ADDISON, INC.  IN PROXIMITY OF 
4400 GLENN CURTISS DRIVE AS FURTHER DESCRIBED BELOW, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc. (Mercury Air Center) is currently leasing 
property Addison Airport property generally located at 4400, 4451, 4480, 4540, 4530 and 4532 
Glenn Curtiss Drive, all of which are set to expire in 2020 or 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Mercury Air Center and the Town agree to early terminate or allow each of 
the Mercury’s leases with the Town to expire, whichever occurs first, so there effectively is no 
lapse of time between the termination or expiration of each Mercury’s lease and the 
commencement of the new Ground Lease Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein, for approximately 11.49 acres located generally in the same area as the 
existing leases. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The Ground Lease between The Town of Addison and Mercury Air Center  
– Addison, Inc for public fixed-base operations and other commercial aviation use on property 
located in proximity of 4400 Glenn Curtiss Drive, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution 
as Exhibit A, is hereby approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the Ground Lease 
Agreement and any other Agreement connected therewith, including the early termination 
agreements, as required by the Ground Lease. 
 
 SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 
 
 DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 11th day of AUGUST 2020. 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
             

Joe Chow, Mayor 
 
 

 

 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 2 of 67 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Irma Parker, City Secretary Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 
 



EXHIBIT A 

Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 3 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 4 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 5 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 6 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 7 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 8 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 9 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 10 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 11 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 12 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 13 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 14 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 15 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 16 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 17 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 18 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 19 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 20 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 21 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 22 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 23 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 24 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 25 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 26 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 27 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 28 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 29 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 30 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 31 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 32 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 33 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 34 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 35 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 36 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 37 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 38 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 39 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 40 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 41 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 42 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 43 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 44 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 45 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 46 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 47 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 48 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 49 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 50 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 51 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 52 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 53 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 54 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 55 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 56 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 57 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 58 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 59 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 60 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 61 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 62 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 63 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 64 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 65 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 66 of 67 



Town of Addison, Texas 
Resolution No. ________         Page 67 of 67 

 



Atlantic Aviation Ground Lease
July 14, 2020

1



2

Overview

▪ Party

▪ Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc. (Doing business as Atlantic Aviation)

▪ Consolidating 2 ground leases, 1 long-term commercial lease and 3 short-term 
commercial leases to a single 40-year ground lease

▪ Area

▪ 11.5 acres of airport land

▪ 6 parcels already improved with Fixed Base Operator (FBO) terminal and 7 
aircraft hangars w/ 200K Square Feet of apron

▪ Lease Term 

▪ Base Term - 7 years

▪ 3 Term Extension Options up to 40-years with a minimum $14 million capital 
investment 

▪ Lease Rate

▪ Ground Rent $1.235/Square Feet of Land



3

Overview



Summary of Ground Lease Proposal

▪ Base Ground Rental begins at $1.235/SFL

▪ Rate represents $.725/SF land plus $.505/SFL in residual value and 

accrued interest over term

▪ $615,620 annual rental subject to biennial CPI adjustment

▪ Atlantic to expend a minimum $14M in new capital investment

▪ Extended Term #1: 7 Year Base Term (2027) plus 13-years (until 2040) upon 

completion of $6M on new executive jet hangar to be completed 4-years 

following commencement date (2024)

▪ Extended Term #2:  Extended Term #1 plus 15-years (until 2055) upon 

completion of $5.5M renovation of FBO terminal and new apron by end of 2027

▪ Extended Term #3: 5-years (until 2060) upon completion of $2.5M renovation of 

hangar and off-street parking by end of 2033

4



Benefits to the Town of Addison

▪ Retains Atlantic Aviation, largest FBO in country, at Addison Airport

▪ Shifts capital and market risk from Airport to Atlantic

▪ In addition to ground rent, amortizing reversion value substantially 
increases Airport revenue over the term

▪ Significantly improves the quality of the aeronautical facilities with private 
capital

▪ Increase Town tax base by converting exempted Town-owned assets to 
taxable assets

▪ Consistent with 2013 Strategic Plan and 2016 Airport Master Plan

5



Recommendation

▪ Staff recommends that the Council approve the Atlantic Ground Lease as 

proposed and authorize the City Manager to execute the Ground Lease 

and other such documents necessary to the transaction

▪ The City Attorney has reviewed the Ground Lease and other such 

agreements and find them acceptable for the Town’s purposes

6



Questions

7



 
 

 

 

 
- M E M O R A N D U M -  
 

To: Ashley Mitchell, Deputy City Manager 

From: Bill Dyer, Airport Real Estate Manager 

CC: Joel Jenkinson, Airport Director 

Date: June 19, 2020 

Re: A Request for the Consideration and Consent of the Town of Addison for a Proposed 

Ground Lease with Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc. d.b.a. Atlantic Aviation FBO at 

Addison Airport, Texas 

 

 

Requested Action: 

Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc., d.b.a. Atlantic Aviation, ("Mercury") is requesting the 

Town of Addison's consent to a proposed ground lease agreement (the "Ground Lease"), which 

includes 11.49 acres of airport land located in the vicinity of 4400 Glenn Curtiss Drive at 

Addison Airport. The premises subject to the lease are currently improved with seven building 

structures, totaling 108,509 building square feet (BSF) of aircraft hangar space and 32,514 BSF 

of office/shop space. 

 

The proposed Ground Lease has a base term of seven years with three consecutive lease-term 

extension options (described in more detail below) providing an additional 23 years for a 

maximum lease term not to exceed the 40-year statutory limit. 

 

Airport Management recommends the City Council give its consent to the proposed Ground 

Lease and authorize the City Manager to execute the Ground Lease and other related documents 

necessary to fully consummate the transaction as advised by the City Attorney. The City 

Attorney has reviewed the proposed Ground Lease and related documents and finds each 

acceptable to form for the City's purposes. 

 

Background Information: 
Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc., d.b.a. Atlantic Aviation, is one of two operating fixed based 

William M. Dyer 
Real Estate Manager 
16051 Addison Road 
Suite #220 
Addison, Texas 75001 
 
Main:   972-392-4850 
Direct:  972-392-4856 
Fax:       972-788-9334 
bill.dyer@addisonairport.net 



2 | P a g e  
 

operators (FBOs) currently licensed to sell fuel to the aviation public at Addison Airport.1 

Mercury's current leasehold consists of two ground leases and one commercial office/hangar 

lease agreement, each subject to a long-term term and are practically coterminous to one another 

(Mercury's "Primary Leasehold"). The three leases are due to expire between June 2021 and June 

2022.  Mercury's Primary Leasehold includes the land and buildings located at 4451, 4453, 4480, 

and 4400 Glenn Curtiss (within the red boundary drawn in the aerial below). The agreements 

originated between 1981 and 1996 by and between Town of Addison and Beech Holdings, 

Inc./Three River Gypsum, Inc and were assigned by Beech Holdings/Three River Gypsum to 

California-based Mercury Air Group, Inc. in 1996.  In 2007, Macquarie FBO Holdings, a wholly 

owned subsidiary of Macquarie Infrastructure Company Trust (NYSE – MIC), acquired all the 

assets of Mercury Air Center Group (approximately 20 domestic FBOs) and merged the Mercury 

assets with Macquarie's existing FBO holdings that operate as Atlantic Aviation FBOs.  Atlantic 

Aviation currently operates 70 FBO locations nationwide, including the Mercury Air Group 

facilities. 

 

 
Figure 1 Mercury's Primary Leasehold outlined in red.  The city-owned hangars, subject to short-term leases, are outlined in 

yellow. 

In addition to the above-described Primary Leasehold, Mercury also commercially leases three 

city-owned aeronautical facilities located at 4540, 4352, and 4530 Glenn Curtiss subject to one-

year lease terms at prevailing market rental rates ranging between $6.00 to $7.06 per building 

square foot. 

 
1 Million Air Dallas is the second operating FBO.  Galaxy FBO is currently under construction and is expected to begin 

operations mid-calendar year 2021.  



3 | P a g e  
 

 

In total, Mercury currently leases 11.49 acres of airport land improved with 108,000 BSF of 

office and aircraft hangar improvements.  Mercury currently pays $664,000 in annual rental to 

the Airport in 12 monthly installments of $55,300, subject to periodic adjustments tied to 

changes in the consumer price indices. 

 

 
 

Summary of Proposed Ground Lease Terms: 
Mercury approached airport management staff with its proposal to early terminate each of the 

above-described lease agreements in favor of a new single 40-year term ground lease.  The initial 

lease term (or "Base Year Term") would be seven years. Mercury has the option to extend the 

lease term as follows: 

 

Extension Term #1 – Provided Mercury completes,2 within the first four years of the lease term, 

the demolition of the hangar located at 4451 Glenn Curtiss and constructs a new executive 

hangar in the same location to be larger and with a 28' hangar door clearance with a  minimum 

capital investment of $6 million, the Based Lease Term would be extended an additional 13 

years or until 20403. 

 

Extension Term #2 –  Provided Mercury also completes, within the first seven years of the lease 

term, the renovation of their main terminal building located at 4400 Glenn Curtiss and 

 
2 "Complete" is defined in the lease agreement as substantial completion or upon the issuance of a certificate of occupancy.  

Therefore, the improvements must be started and substantially completed prior to the stipulated deadline. 

3 The Base Term and the extension dates are assuming an 8/1/2020 lease commencement date. 



4 | P a g e  
 

reconstructs 203,000 square feet of aircraft apron with a minimum capital investment of $5.5 

million, the already-modified Lease Term would be extended an additional 15-years or until 

2055. 

 

Extension Term #3 –  Provided Mercury completes, within the first 13 years of the lease term, 

the renovation of the hangar at 4453 Glenn Curtiss and construct off-street parking 

improvements where the hangars at 4532 and 4530 now stand with a minimum capital 

investment of $2.5 million, the modified Lease Term would be extended an additional five years 

or until 2060. 

 

In total, Mercury may extend their initial seven-year lease term an additional 33 years on the 

condition it expends $14 million in new capital investment in its existing facilities within the first 

13 years of the lease term.  Mercury may complete the phased improvements any time before the 

prescribed completion date. Should Mercury fail to complete the improvements as required, 

including the stipulated minimum capital investment, Mercury shall forego the extension and all 

subsequent extension options. 

 

Other Terms and Conditions: The other terms and conditions of the Ground Lease are 

generally consistent with the Town's prevailing ground lease terms including Addendum #1: 

"Tenant's Leasehold Minimum Maintenance and Repair Standards and Practices" adopted by 

the Town in 2018. 

 

Other salient terms and condition of the proposed ground lease include: 

1. Effective Date: The date the ground lease agreement is executed by the Town. 

2. Commencement Date: The first day of the calendar month following the Effective  

Date. 

3. Expiration Date: Base Term is seven years from the Commencement Date or until 2027, 

subject to three extension options outlined above. 

4. Demised Premises: 11.49 acres as described in Exhibit 3 – Property Survey prepared by 

Sparr Surveys dated March 19, 2020. 

5. Title to Building Improvements: Mercury will hold title to all building improvements 

made to the Demised Premises throughout the Term. 

6. Base Rental: The annual ground rental is $1.23 per square foot of gross land area within 

the Demised Premises or $615,620 (500,504 SFL x $1.23), due payable in 12 equal 

monthly installments of $51,302 with the first installment due on or before the 

Commencement Date and then the first day of each calendar month thereafter. 

7. Adjustment of Rent: The Base Rent is subject to biennial adjustments (every two years) 

based upon the percentage change in the Consumers’ Price Index as defined in the ground 

lease. 

8. Use of the Demised Premises: for Fixed Base Operations (“FBO”) including but not 

limited to the sale of aircraft goods and services to the public, including without 

limitation, providing storage of transient aircraft in aircraft hangars and on the adjacent 

ramp area, and the dispensing of aviation fuel in accordance with and subject to the 

ordinances and regulations issued by the Town of Addison from time to time and/or the 



5 | P a g e  
 

Airport Governing Documents. 

9. Capital Repairs & Improvements: All capital repairs and improvements shall be 

approved in advance and in writing by the City and shall be performed in a first-class 

manner in accordance with all applicable local, state, and federal building codes, 

ordinances, and regulations. 

 

10. Termination of Existing Leases: The proposed Ground Lease is subject to and on the 

condition the Parties each enter into and make effective simultaneously, and without 

interruption, the early termination of the Mercury Primary Leaseholds located at 4400, 

4451, and 4453 Glenn Curtiss.  A fully executed Memorandum of  Lease Agreement 

will be publicly recorded for each evidencing the early terminations and the new Ground 

Lease taking effect in their place. Each of the short-term leases affecting the three city-

owned properties will be early-terminated by written notice as provided for in each lease 

agreement. 

The following matrix is a summary of the entire Mercury leasehold interests subject to the 

proposed Ground Lease.  

 

Mercury Air Center – Addison, Inc. Proposed Consolidated Leasehold 

Subject to Ground Lease 

  



6 | P a g e  
 

Economic Impact and Justification of Proposal: 
 

The Mercury Ground Lease proposal meets or exceeds the targeted highest and best use for the 

subject properties as identified in the 2016 Airport Master Plan, which contemplates the 

redevelopment of the Taxiway Tango Neighborhood. The Airport Master Plan assumes the 

airport would continue to gain control of all properties within the "neighborhood" (as the existing 

ground leases expire) and commercially lease them subject to market rents until 2025-2026, at 

which time many of the hangars would be demolished and cleared from the airport to make room 

for a major redevelopment initiative.  A major component of the Taxiway Tango redevelopment 

would be the reconstruction and realignment of Taxiway Tango to parallel more closely with the 

existing Addison Airport Tollway easement to the south and Glenn Curtiss Drive would be 

widened and improved to city standards. The airport land fronting Taxiway Tango would then be 

made available for third-party redevelopment subject to new long-term ground leases requiring 

legal off-street parking, dedicated aircraft apron constructed to airport standards, and fewer but 

larger office/hangar facilities suitable for aircraft maintenance, cargo, and aeronautical charter 

operations. 

 

A cashflow model was developed for each of the six parcels included in the Mercury Ground 

Lease proposal based upon the Airport Master Plan's Taxiway Tango Neighborhood scenario. 

Various assumptions and conditions believed to be reasonable were used in developing these 

variable cashflow streams over a 40-year holding period, being the same duration as the 

proposed Mercury Ground Lease, should all extension options be exercised. These assumptions 

included but are not limited to (i) projected ground rental and commercial lease rates subject to 

periodic cost-of-living escalations; (ii) building size and use; (iii) remaining economic life; (iv) 

projected capital repair and improvement costs; (v) demolition costs, and (vi) the sale price of the 

certain city-owned building improvements subject to a new long-term ground lease. Once 

completed, each cashflow's net present value (NPV)4 was calculated using a 9% discount rate5. 

The NPV for each parcel was added to the others for a combined NPV for the entire leasehold. 

 

A second set of cashflow models were developed for each of the same parcels reflecting the 

Mercury proposal using the same market ground rental for the 11.49 acres as assumed in the 

Airport Master Plan scenarios. Additionally, it is recognized that if Mercury is taking title and 

ownership of the building improvements under the Ground Lease, then Mercury must 

compensate the City for its "reversion value" the City would otherwise be entitled to under the 

Airport Master Plan scenario. In rather simplistic terms, the reversion value would be that value 

or values needed to cause the Mercury Proposal cashflow NPV to equal the combined Airport 

Master Plan NPV in excess of market ground rent. 

 

 

 
4 Net Present Value (NPV) is a financial analytical technique used to discount all anticipated future (variable) cashflows 

back to their present value, or what they would be worth today given the time-value of money. This technique allows for 

the comparison of the outcome of multiple investment alternatives. 

5 A fixed interest rate used to calculate a future cashflow stream's present value. For the purpose here a 9% rate was 

assumed using the weighted average of debt to equity: 60% @ 4.5% cost of debt and 40% ROE of 16% 

(2.7%+6.3%=9.0%). 



7 | P a g e  
 

 
            Figure 2: Solving so the two Alternatives Equal 

 
The above analysis resulted in a beginning ground lease rate of $.725 plus a reversionary interest 

payable to the City in an amount equal to $3,758,197.  So that the reversionary component does 

not take away from Mercury's available capital to put towards the building improvements, 

Mercury requested the reversionary component be amortized over the lease term at a 9% interest 

per annum payable in monthly installments as additional rent.  This resulted in a blended annual 

ground lease rate of $1.23 per square foot, or $615,619 in annual rent beginning with YR-1, 

subject to biennial adjustments tied to the percentage of change in the Consumers Price Index as 

provided for in the Ground Lease. 

 

For the 40-year lease term, the total projected cash flow is $32,404,420 resulting in an NPV of 

$7,512,687 in today's dollars. Including the value of the proposed capital improvements of $14 

million, the total Mercury Proposal is valued at $21.5 million. 

 

Another economic consideration and benefit for the City is the conversion of the city-owned 

hangars to private ownership that will allow the building improvements to be eligible for ad 

valorem taxes, thus  contributing to the City's tax base. 

 

As proposed, the Mercury Ground Lease proposal represents a significant and stable long-term 

source of revenue for the Airport for many years to come.  Assuming Mercury completes the $14 

million in capital repairs and improvements, it will have also contributed to the further 

enhancement and quality of aeronautical facilities at Addison Airport, a major objective of the 

2013 Strategic Plan and 2016 Airport Master Plan. 

 

Conclusion and Recommendation: 
 

The proposed Mercury Ground Lease represents to the City and Airport a significant contribution to the 

long-term growth and success of Addison Airport.  The Mercury Proposal: 

 

• Is consistent with 2013 Strategic Plan and 2016 Airport Master Plan. 

• Allows the Airport the opportunity to retain Atlantic Aviation, the largest FBO in country, 

as a major tenant at Addison Airport for many years to come. 

• Shifts a significant amount of capital and market risk from the Airport to Mercury. 

Master Plan 

Mercury 

 Proposal 

Mkt. Ground Rent 

+ Commercial Rent 

+ Remaining                         

   Economic Life 

- Project Cash       

   Outlays 

+ Projected Sale                           

   Proceeds 
 

Net Present Value 

Mkt. Ground Rent 

+ Reversion Value 
 

Net Present Value 



8 | P a g e  
 

• Provides for the amortizing of the value of the City's reversion interests over the lease 

term, which provides a substantial increase in Airport revenue over the lease term. 

• Significantly improves the quality of the aeronautical facilities at the Airport with private 

capital. 

• Allows Mercury to remain competitive with the other FBOs at the Airport. 

• Increases the City's  tax base by converting exempted, city-owned assets to taxable assets. 

• Represents exceptional value and opportunity for the Town and Addison Airport. 

Based upon the foregoing, Airport Management and Town Staff strongly encourage the 

City Council to accept the Mercury Ground Lease as proposed and authorize the City 

Manager to execute the Ground Lease and other related documents necessary for the 

transaction. The City Attorney has reviewed the Ground Lease and other related 

agreements and finds them acceptable for the Town’s purposes. 



This is the To-Be image of Atlantic on the field.  



   

Council Meeting 11.           
Meeting Date: 08/11/2020  

Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, and Consider Action on the Second Reading of an Ordinance of the
Town of Addison, Texas Granting to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, Its
Successors and Assigns, an Electric Power Franchise.

BACKGROUND:
On February 22, 2005, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “Town”) adopted Ordinance No.
005-0100 which granted a non-exclusive franchise to Oncor Electric Delivery Company
LLC, a Texas Corporation and its successors and assigns (“Oncor” or “Company”), an
electric power franchise to use the present and future streets, avenues, alleys, roads,
highways, sidewalks, easements, and public ways and other public property of the Town
for the purposes of constructing and operating an electric distribution and transmission
system and for delivering electricity to Town residents and businesses.
 
The current franchise authority granted by the Addison City Council was set to expire on
July 31, 2019, and said franchise was extended by Ordinance No.019-26, which was
adopted on June 24, 2019. This extension was requested because of possible regulatory
and statutory changes that were taking place that could have impacted details of the
franchise. The franchise being proposed accounts for the regulatory and statutory
changes that were enacted. This franchise closely mirrors the one negotiated and enacted
between the City of Plano and Oncor.
 
Town Charter Section 6.02 requires all Ordinances granting, renewing, amending or
extending franchises for public utilities to be read at two (2) separate regular meetings of
the City Council. The first required reading was held on June 23, 2020. Today's agenda
item fulfills the second reading requirement.  The Charter additionally requires the full
text of the Ordinance to be published once a week for four (4) consecutive weeks in the
official newspaper with the expense borne by Oncor. This has been accomplished.  The
Charter also requires that at least thirty (30) days must pass between the first reading and
passage of the Ordinance. This has also occurred.  Lastly, the Charter requires that the
Ordinance shall not take effect until thirty (30) days after its final passage.  
 
It is to the mutual advantage of both the Town and Oncor to enter into a new franchise
establishing the conditions under which Oncor will operate its system of electric power
lines, with all necessary or desirable appurtenances for delivering such electric power
including underground conduits, poles, towers, wires, transmission lines, and other
structures, equipment, and facilities in the Town.



 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.  

Attachments
Ordinance - Electric Power Franchise - Oncor 



 

Page 1 of 16 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS GRANTING TO 
ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC, ITS SUCCESSORS 
AND ASSIGNS, AN ELECTRIC POWER FRANCHISE TO USE THE 
PRESENT AND FUTURE STREETS, ALLEYS, HIGHWAYS, PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENTS, AND PUBLIC WAYS AND OTHER PUBLIC 
PROPERTY OF ADDISON, TEXAS, PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION 
THEREFOR, PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION, PROVIDING FOR 
WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE OF THIS FRANCHISE, PROVIDING FOR 
THE REPEAL OF ALL EXISTING FRANCHISE ORDINANCES TO 
ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC, ITS PREDECESSORS 
AND ASSIGNS, FINDING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH THIS 
ORDINANCE IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC, AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND A TERM OF SAID FRANCHISE. 

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2005, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “Town” or “City”) 

adopted Ordinance No. 005-0100 which granted a non-exclusive franchise to Oncor Electric 
Delivery Company LLC, a Texas Corporation and its successors and assigns (“Oncor” or 
“Company”), an electric power franchise to use the present and future streets, avenues, alleys, 
roads, highways, sidewalks, easements, and public ways and other public property of the Town for 
the purposes of constructing and operating an electric distribution and transmission system and for 
delivering electricity to Town residents and businesses; and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to such grant of authority, Oncor is now and has been engaged in 
the electric utility business in the State of Texas and the Town of Addison and, in furtherance 
thereof, has erected and maintained portions of its physical plant in the Town; and 
 

WHEREAS, the current franchise authority granted by the Addison City Council was set 
to expire on July 31, 2019, and said franchise was extended by Ordinance No. 019-26, which was 
adopted on June 24, 2019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town of Addison hereby finds that it is to the mutual 
advantage of both the Town and Oncor to enter into a new franchise establishing the conditions 
under which Oncor will operate its system of electric power lines, with all necessary or desirable 
appurtenances for delivering such electric power including underground conduits, poles, towers, 
wires, transmission lines, and other structures, equipment, and facilities in the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 2 and 6 of the City's Charter, the City Council hereby 

determines that a grant of this Ordinance is in the best interests and will inure to the benefit of the 
Town and its citizens. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 



 

Page 2 of 16 
 

 SECTION 1.  GRANT OF AUTHORITY. 
 
A. Subject to all the terms and conditions contained herein, the Town hereby grants Oncor a 
Franchise agreement with the non-exclusive right to construct, extend, maintain and operate in, 
along, under and across its Electric Distribution and Transmission System in the present and future 
public streets, alleys, highways, public utility easements, public ways and other public property 
(the “Public Rights-of-Way”) of Town, including electric power lines, with all necessary or 
desirable appurtenances (including underground conduits, poles, towers, wires, transmission lines, 
telephone and communication lines and other structures for Oncor’s own use), (herein called 
“Facilities”) for the purpose of delivering electricity to the Town, the inhabitants thereof, and 
persons, firms, and corporations beyond the corporate limits thereof, for the term set out in Section 
8. 
 
B. Oncor must get written approval from the Town prior to installing Oncor facilities in a 
Town park or Town property other than public utility easements, streets, alleys, or highway Public 
Rights-of-Way. 
 
C.  Oncor may not use any portion of its Electric Distribution and Transmission System in the 
Town’s Public Rights-of-way for any purpose other than the delivery of electric service (or in the 
support of Oncor’s Distribution and Transmission System), including renting, licensing or 
otherwise sharing use of facilities with third parties, including third parties receiving electric 
service, without first entering into a separate agreement with the Town for Oncor ancillary service; 
however, Oncor is hereby expressly permitted as required by Federal law to allow 
Telecommunication Companies (e.g. telephone, and cable) to attach to Oncor Facilities so long as 
Federal laws and Oncor requirements are met, which includes the allowed attachment fees.  
 
D. Subject to Subsection 1C above, Oncor agrees to notify other persons, firms, or 
corporations that desire to attach facilities to Oncor’s Electric Distribution and Transmission 
System located within the Town that they have to obtain all legally required franchises, licenses, 
waivers, consents, easements, rights of way, and permits needed to construct and operate its 
equipment within the Town.  However, in no event is Oncor responsible or liable to Town or any 
other person or entity if the persons, firms, or corporations that desire to attach to Oncor’s Electric 
Distribution and Transmission System fails to obtain anything required by Town.  Town may 
request a list of persons or corporations who have a contract to attach facilities to Oncor equipment 
within the City limits, and Oncor shall provide such information within a reasonable time after the 
Town’s request. 
 
 SECTION 2.  PLACEMENT OF FIXTURES. 
 
A. Poles, towers, and other structures shall be so erected as not to unreasonably interfere with, 
at the time said Facilities are installed:  1) present and planned (if City notifies Oncor of said plan 
prior to Oncor erecting or installing the Facilities in question) vehicular and pedestrian traffic over 
streets, alleys, highways, and sidewalks; 2) present and planned (if City notifies Oncor of said plan 
prior to Oncor erecting or installing the Facilities in question) gas, electric, or telephone fixtures; 
or 3) present and planned (if City notifies Oncor of said plan prior to Oncor erecting or installing 
the Facilities in question) water hydrants or mains, drainage facilities or sanitary sewer facilities.  



 

Page 3 of 16 
 

All poles, towers and other structures must be reasonably required for Electric Distribution and 
Transmission purposes and not primarily for providing facilities for third-parties or other uses.    
 
B. Oncor acknowledges that, by this Franchise Agreement, it obtains no rights to, or further 
use of, the Public Rights-of-Way other than those expressly granted herein and also granted by 
state and federal laws, rules, and regulations, including any amendments thereto.  Oncor further 
acknowledges and accepts at its own risk, provided that Town has the legal authority for the use 
or uses in question, that Town may make use in the future of the Public Rights-of-Way in which 
the Electric Distribution and Transmission System is located and, in that event, Oncor shall only 
be entitled to compensation or reimbursement from Town as provided by Section 3 or any 
applicable state and federal laws, rules, and regulations including Tariffs and any amendments 
thereto. 
 
C.     Oncor must share trench space for cables or ducts with another person, firm, or corporation 
for the placement of cables or wires underground; provided, however, Oncor has no obligation to 
comply if said person, firm or corporation does not agree with Oncor’s terms and requirements for 
sharing trench space including cost sharing of trench and including any required contract or 
agreement with Oncor. All terms and requirements for sharing trench space and any required 
contract or agreement therefrom must be reasonable as per industry standards and any Federal or 
State laws, rules, or regulations. Oncor may require another person, firm, or corporation to furnish 
evidence of adequate insurance and provide indemnity covering Oncor and adequate bonds 
covering the performance of the person, firm or corporation sharing the trench space.  Oncor’s 
requirement for such insurance and indemnity must be reasonable. Ducts, cables or wires shall be 
placed in trenches in compliance with applicable National Electrical Safety Code (NESC) 
requirements and in a manner that does not interfere with Oncor’s cables and wires. Each person, 
firm, or corporation that is permitted to share Oncor trench space must acquire their own permits 
from the Town and must have any necessary Franchise, license, or contract as required by the 
Town; and Oncor’s sole responsibility regarding this provision is the same responsibility as stated 
in Section 1.D of this franchise. 
 
D.        Oncor will cooperate with Town, regarding the selection of the location of poles, towers 
and other structures, provided, however, that the Town and Oncor recognize that Oncor must meet 
all legally imposed requirements and may avail itself of legally permitted procedures for 
determining the location of such facilities.  Further, the parties recognize that Oncor may rely upon 
reasonable safety requirements in determining the appropriate location of such facilities. 
 
Town may request a list of persons or corporations who have a contract to attach facilities to Oncor 
equipment within the City limits, and Oncor shall provide such information within a reasonable 
time after the Town’s request.  

 
SECTION 3. CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OPERATION AND 
RELOCATION.   

 
A. In constructing, maintaining and operating the Electric Distribution and Transmission 
System, Oncor shall act in a good and workmanlike manner. 

 



 

Page 4 of 16 
 

B. Use of the Public Rights-of-Way by Oncor shall be governed by the Town’s Charter, 
ordinances, rules and regulations and state and federal laws, rules and regulations, including the 
NESC and any amendments thereto.  Nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit Oncor from 
asserting a claim before the Addison City Council, another regulatory agency, or a court having 
jurisdiction to contest any requirements of the Town’s Charter, ordinances, rules and regulations 
that Oncor believes is unconstitutional, conflicts with this Franchise agreement, or conflicts with 
any other state and federal laws, rules, and regulations or any NESC standard adopted by Oncor. 
 
C. The Town reserves the right to lay, and permit to be laid, storm, sewer, gas, water, 
wastewater, and other pipe lines, cables, and conduits, or other improvements, and to do and permit 
to be done any underground or overhead work that may be necessary or proper in, across, along, 
over, or under Public Rights-of-Way occupied by Oncor.  The Town also reserves the right to 
change in any manner any curb, sidewalk, highway, alley, public way, street, utility lines, storm 
sewers, drainage basins, drainage ditches, and the like. 
 
D.        Town-requested relocations of Oncor Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way shall be at 
Oncor’s expense; provided however, if the Town is the end use Retail Customer (customer who 
purchases electric power or energy and ultimately consumes it) requesting the removal or 
relocation of Oncor Facilities for its own benefit, or the Town’s project requiring the relocation is 
solely aesthetic/beautification in nature, it will be at the total expense of the Town.  
 
E. Town shall provide Oncor with at least thirty (30) days’ notice when requesting Oncor to 
relocate Facilities and shall specify a new location for such Facilities along the Public Rights-of-
Way. Oncor shall proceed to relocate Facilities without unreasonable delay. Provided further, if 
the relocation request includes, or is for, Oncor to relocate above-ground facilities to an 
underground location, Town shall be fully responsible for the additional cost of placing the 
facilities underground.  
 
F. If any other corporation or person (other than Town) requests Oncor to relocate Oncor 
Facilities located in Public Rights-of-Ways, Oncor shall not be bound to make such changes until 
such other corporation or person shall have undertaken, with good and sufficient bond, to 
reimburse Oncor for any costs, loss, or expense which will be caused by, or arises out of such 
change, alteration, or relocation of Oncor’s Facilities.  Town may not request Oncor to pay for any 
relocation which has already been requested, and paid for, by any entity other than Town. The 
Town shall never be liable for such reimbursement, due to Oncor, from such other corporation or 
person.  
  
G. Oncor shall, except in cases of emergency conditions or work incidental in nature, obtain 
a permit, if required by Town Ordinance, prior to performing work in the Public Rights-of-Way, 
except in no instance shall Oncor be required to pay fees or bonds related to these permits, licenses, 
or other approval processes required for placing Facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way.   
 
 
H. If Town abandons any Public Rights-of-Way in which Oncor has Facilities, such 
abandonment shall be conditioned on Oncor's right to maintain its use of the former Rights-of-
Way and on the obligation of the party to whom the Public Rights-of-Way is abandoned to 



 

Page 5 of 16 
 

reimburse Oncor for all removal or relocation expenses if Oncor agrees to the removal or relocation 
of its Facilities following abandonment of the Public Rights-of-Way.  If the party to whom the 
Public Rights-of-Way is abandoned requests Oncor to remove or relocate its Facilities and Oncor 
agrees to such removal or relocation, such removal or relocation shall be done within a reasonable 
time at the expense of the party requesting the removal or relocation.  If relocation cannot 
practically be made to another Public Rights-of-Way, the expense of any Public Rights-of-way 
acquisition shall be considered a relocation expense to be reimbursed by the party requesting the 
relocation. 
 
I. Oncor may permit the wires of the Town to be attached to the poles or use of spare conduit 
in duct systems owned and maintained by Oncor, under separate agreement, upon securing an 
Oncor “Pole Attachment/Duct Use” agreement which specifies the requirements and 
compensation for said use.  Oncor does not warrant or guarantee there will be space made available 
on Oncor poles or spare conduits in Oncor duct systems for the Town’s use.  Oncor may require 
the Town to furnish evidence of adequate insurance, provide indemnity covering Oncor, and 
provide adequate bonds covering the performance of the Town or Town’s contractor prior to 
attaching wires to Oncor's poles and prior to Town’s use of conduit in Oncor’s duct systems. 
 
J. Oncor shall have in place Vegetation Management Guidelines, and shall provide Town 
with a current copy of same, upon request. If the Town requests a current copy of Oncor’s 
Vegetation Management Guidelines, release of such shall be pursuant to the same confidential 
protection process identified in Section 9.E of this Franchise.  Oncor shall conduct its tree-
trimming activities in accordance with its Vegetation Management Guidelines, including as 
amended by Oncor from time to time, and will address concerns or complaints with regard to its 
tree-trimming activities upon reasonable request by the Town. Except in emergency situations or 
in response to outages, and in accordance with Oncor Vegetation Management Guidelines, Oncor 
shall notify affected property owners and the Town prior to beginning planned Distribution tree-
trimming activities within City limits. 

K. Town shall have the ability at any time to require Oncor to repair, remove or abate any 
distribution pole, wire, cable, or other distribution structure in Town’s Public Rights-of-Way that 
is determined to be unnecessarily dangerous to life or property. After receipt of notice, Oncor shall 
either cure said dangerous condition within a reasonable time, or provide Town with facts 
defending its position that said condition is not a condition that is unnecessarily dangerous to life 
or property. In the event Town finds that Oncor has not sufficiently addressed said dangerous 
condition by either of the aforementioned methods, Town shall be entitled to immediately exercise 
the remedies in Section 11.  

SECTION 4. INDEMNITY. 
 
A.      IN CONSIDERATION OF THE GRANTING OF THIS FRANCHISE, ONCOR AGREES 

TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE TOWN, ITS, OFFICERS, 
AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL SUITS, ACTIONS OR 
CLAIMS OF INJURY TO ANY PERSON OR PERSONS, OR DAMAGES TO ANY 
PROPERTY BROUGHT OR MADE FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY DEATH, INJURIES 
TO, OR DAMAGES RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR 



 

Page 6 of 16 
 

FOR DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF, OR OCCASIONED BY 
ONCOR’S INTENTIONAL AND/OR NEGLIGENT ACTS OR OMISSIONS IN 
CONNECTION WITH ONCOR’S OPERATIONS; EXCEPT THAT THE INDEMNITY 
PROVIDED FOR IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY LIABILITY 
DETERMINED BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION TO HAVE RESULTED 
FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OR INTENTIONAL ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THE 
TOWN, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES.  IN THE EVENT OF JOINT AND 
CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT OF BOTH ONCOR AND THE TOWN, 
RESPONSIBILITY AND INDEMNITY, IF ANY, SHALL BE APPORTIONED 
COMPARATIVELY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS 
WITHOUT, HOWEVER, WAIVING ANY GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY AVAILABLE 
TO THE TOWN UNDER TEXAS LAW AND WITHOUT WAIVING ANY OF THE 
DEFENSES OF THE PARTIES UNDER TEXAS LAW.  FURTHER, IN THE EVENT OF 
JOINT AND CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OR FAULT OF BOTH ONCOR AND THE 
TOWN, RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL COSTS OF DEFENSE SHALL BE APPORTIONED 
BETWEEN THE TOWN AND ONCOR BASED UPON THE COMPARATIVE FAULT OF 
EACH. 

B.      In fulfilling its obligation to defend and indemnify Town, Oncor shall have the right to 
select defense counsel, subject to Town’s approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld.   
Oncor shall retain defense counsel within seven (7) business days of Town’s written notice 
that Town is invoking its right to indemnification under this Contract.  If Oncor fails to retain 
Counsel within such time period, Town shall have the right to retain defense counsel on its 
own behalf, and Oncor shall be liable for all defense costs incurred by Town, except as set out 
in Section 4.A. 

 
SECTION 5.  LIABILITY INSURANCE. 
  

           Oncor shall, at its sole cost and expense, obtain, maintain, or cause to be maintained, and 
provide, throughout the term of this Franchise, insurance in the amounts, types and coverages in 
accordance with the following requirements.  Such insurance may be in the form of self-insurance 
to the extent permitted by applicable law or by obtaining insurance, as follows: 

 
1.  Commercial, general or excess liability on an occurrence or claims-made basis 

with minimum limits of five million dollars ($5,000,000) per occurrence and ten 
million dollars ($10,000,000) aggregate.  This coverage shall include the 
following: 

a. Products/completed operations to be maintained for the warranty period 
or two years, whichever is less. 

b. Personal and advertising injury. 
c. Contractual liability. 
d. Explosion, collapse, or underground (XCU) hazards. 

 
2. Automobile liability coverage with a minimum policy limit of one million dollars 

($1,000,000) combined single limit each accident.  This coverage shall include all 
owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. 

 



 

Page 7 of 16 
 

3. Workers compensation and employer’s liability coverage.  Statutory coverage 
limits for Coverage A and five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) bodily injury 
each accident, five hundred thousand ($500,000) each employee bodily injury by 
disease, and five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) policy limit bodily injury 
by disease Coverage B employers’ liability are required.  Oncor must provide the 
Town with a waiver of subrogation for worker’s compensation claims. 

 
4. Oncor must name the Town, which includes all authorities, commissions, divisions 

and departments, as well as elected and appointed officials, agents, and volunteers, 
as an additional insured under the coverage required herein, except Worker’s 
Compensation Coverage.  The certificate of insurance must state that the Town is 
an additional insured. 

 
5. Oncor will require its contractors and subcontractors to maintain, at their sole cost 

and expense, a minimum of three million dollars ($3,000,000) each occurrence or 
each accident general liability and automobile liability throughout the course of 
work performed.  Also, contractors and subcontractors will be required to maintain 
statutory workers’ compensation benefits in accordance with the regulations of the 
State of Texas or state of jurisdiction as applicable.  The minimum limits for 
employers’ liability insurance will be five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) 
bodily injury each accident, five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) each 
employee bodily injury by disease, five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) 
policy limit bodily injury by disease.   

 
6. Oncor will provide proof of insurance in accordance with this Franchise 

Agreement within 30 days of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement and 
annually thereafter. Oncor will not be required to furnish separate proof when 
applying for permits. 

 
 SECTION 6. NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE.   
 

This franchise is not exclusive, and nothing herein contained shall be construed so as to 
prevent the Town from granting other privileges and franchises to any other person, firm, or 
corporation.  This Franchise Agreement does not establish any priority for the use of the Public 
Rights-of-Way by Oncor or by any present or future recipients of franchise agreements, 
franchisees, or other permit holders.  
 
 SECTION 7. PAYMENTS TO TOWN.    
 
A. In consideration of the grant of said right, privilege and franchise by the Town and as full 
payment for the right, privilege and franchise of using and occupying the Public Rights-of-Way, 
and in lieu of any and all occupation taxes, assessments, municipal charges, fees, easement taxes, 
franchise taxes, license, permit and inspection fees or charges, street taxes, bonds, street or alley 
rentals, and all other taxes, charges, levies, fees, and rentals of whatsoever kind and character 
which the Town may impose or hereafter be authorized or empowered to levy and collect, 
excepting only the usual general or special ad valorem taxes which the Town is authorized to levy 



 

Page 8 of 16 
 

and impose upon real and personal property, sales and use taxes, and special assessments for public 
improvements, Oncor shall pay to the Town the following: 
 

1. A final quarterly payment was made on or before May 1, 2020, for the privilege 
period of February 1, 2021 through April 30, 2021 in accordance with the 
provisions in the previous franchise.   
 

2. As authorized by Section 33.008(b) of PURA, the original franchise fee factor 
calculated for the Town in 2002 was 0.002544 (the “Base Factor”), multiplied by 
each kilowatt hour of electricity delivered by Oncor to each retail customer whose 
consuming facility’s point of delivery is located within the City’s municipal 
boundaries for determining franchise payments going forward.  

 
Due to a 2006 agreement between Oncor and the Town (the Agreement to Resolve 
Outstanding Franchise Issues between Oncor and the Steering Committee of Cities) 
the franchise fee factor was increased to a franchise fee factor of 0.002671 (the 
“Current Factor”), multiplied by each kilowatt hour of electricity delivered by 
Oncor to each retail customer whose consuming facility’s point of delivery is 
located within the City’s municipal boundaries on a quarterly basis.        

However, consistent with the 2006 agreement, should the Public Utility Commission of Texas 
(PUC) at any time disallow Oncor’s recovery through rates of the higher franchise payments made 
under the Current Factor as compared to the Base Factor, then the franchise fee factor shall 
immediately revert to the Base Factor of 0.002544.    

B. Oncor shall make quarterly pre-pay payments as follows: 

Payment Due Date Basis Period (period 
immediately prior to 
Payment Due Date) 

Privilege Period 
(period immediately 
following Payment Due 
Date) 

August 1 April 1 – June 30 May 1 – July 31 
November 1 July 1 – September 30 August 1 – October 31 
February 1 October 1 – December 31 November 1 – January 31 
May 1 January 1– March 31 February 1 – April 30 

 
1.  The first quarterly payment hereunder shall be due and payable on or before 

August 1, 2020, and will cover the basis period of April 1, 2020, through 
June 30, 2020, and the privilege period of May 1, 2021, through July 31, 
2021.  If this Franchise Agreement is not effective prior to the first 
quarterly payment date, Oncor will pay any payments due within 30 
days of the effective date of this agreement. The final payment under this 
Franchise Agreement is due on or before May 1, 2039, and covers the basis 
period of January 1, 2039, through March 31, 2039, and the privilege period 
of February 1, 2040, through April 30, 2040. 

 



 

Page 9 of 16 
 

2. After the final payment date of May 1, 2039, Oncor may continue to make 
additional quarterly payments in accordance with the above schedule unless 
the parties enter into a new franchise. Town acknowledges that such 
continued payments will correspond to privilege periods that extend beyond 
the term of this Franchise Agreement and that such continued payments will 
be recognized in any subsequent Franchise as full payment for the relevant 
quarterly periods. 

 
C.   Oncor shall additionally pay a sum equal to four percent (4%) of gross revenues received 
by Oncor from services identified as DD1 through DD24 in Section 6.1.2 “Discretionary Service 
Charges,” in Oncor’s Tariff for Retail Delivery Service (Tariff), effective 1/1/2002, that are for the 
account and benefit of an end-use retail electric consumer.  Oncor’s obligation to pay on services 
identified as DD1 through DD24 will continue even if Tariff modifications have been made that 
have subdivided certain portions of DD1 through DD24 into multiple services with their own 
numbered charges (e.g. SD charges) or have renumbered the charge, provided that the service is 
encompassed within the original agreed-to types of Discretionary Service Charges, and further 
provided that if any service has been removed from Oncor’s approved Tariffs, then no payment is 
due.  Oncor will, upon request by Town, provide a cross reference to Discretionary Service Charge 
numbering changes that are contained in Oncor’s current approved Tariff. 
 

1. The franchise fee amounts based on “Discretionary Service Charges” shall 
be calculated on an annual calendar year basis, i.e. from January 1 through 
December 31 of each calendar year. 

 
2. The franchise fee amounts that are due based on “Discretionary Service 

Charges” shall be paid at least once annually on or before April 30 each 
year based on the total “Discretionary Service Charges”, as set out in 
Section 7C, received during the preceding calendar year.  The initial 
Discretionary Service Charge franchise fee amount will be paid on or before 
April 30, 2021 and will be based on the calendar year January 1 through 
December 31, 2020. The final Discretionary Service Charge franchise fee 
amount will be paid on or before April 30, 2041 and will be based on the 
calendar months of January 1, 2040, through April 30, 2040. 

 
3. Oncor may file a tariff or tariff amendment(s) to provide for the recovery of 

the franchise fee on Discretionary Service Charges. 
 

4. Town agrees:  (i) to the extent the Town acts as regulatory authority, to 
adopt and approve that portion of any tariff which provides for 100% 
recovery of the franchise fee on Discretionary Service Charges; (ii) in the 
event the Town intervenes in any regulatory proceeding before a federal or 
state agency in which the recovery of the franchise fees on such 
Discretionary Service Charges is an issue, the Town will take an affirmative 
position of support for the 100% recovery of such franchise fees by Oncor; 
and (iii) in the event of an appeal of any such regulatory proceeding in 
which the Town has intervened, the Town will take an affirmative position 



 

Page 10 of 16 
 

of support in any such appeal for the 100% recovery of such franchise fees 
by Oncor. 

 
5. Town agrees that it will take no action, nor cause any other person or entity 

to take any action, to prohibit the recovery of such franchise fees by Oncor. 
 

6. In the event of a regulatory disallowance of the recovery of the franchise 
fees on the Discretionary Service Charges, Oncor will not be required to 
continue payment of such franchise fees. 

 
D.    With each payment of compensation required in Section 7.A. and 7.B., Oncor shall furnish to 
the Town a statement that provides the franchise basis period, the total amount of kilowatt hours 
of electricity delivered during the franchise basis period by Oncor to retail customers whose 
consuming facility’s point of delivery is located within the City’s municipal boundaries, and the 
privilege period covered by that payment. 
 
E. With each payment of compensation required in Section 7.C., Oncor shall furnish to the 
Town a statement reflecting the total amount of gross revenues received by Oncor within the City’s 
municipal boundaries for services identified in its “Tariff of Retail Delivery Service” as described 
in Section 7.C. 
 
F. Should any payment due date required by this Franchise Agreement fall on a weekend or 
declared bank holiday, payment shall be delivered to the Town no later than the close of business 
on the working day prior to any specifically required due date contained within this Franchise 
Agreement. 
 
G.    If either party discovers that Oncor has failed to pay the entire or correct amount of 
compensation due, the correct amount shall be determined by mutual agreement between the 
Town and Oncor and the Town shall be paid by Oncor within thirty (30) calendar days of such 
determination.  Any overpayment by Oncor to the Town through error or otherwise will, at the 
option of the Town, either be refunded within thirty (30) days of discovery or be offset against the 
next payment due from Oncor.  Acceptance by either party of any payment due under this Section 
shall not be deemed to be a waiver by either party of any breach of this Franchise Agreement, nor 
shall the acceptance by either party of any such payments preclude either party from later 
establishing that a larger amount was actually due or from collecting any balance due. Nothing in 
this Section shall be deemed a waiver by either party of its rights under laws, rules, 
regulations, or equity. 
 
H.    Interest on late payments shall be calculated in accordance with the interest rate for 
customer deposits established by the Public Utility Commission of Texas in accordance with Texas 
Utilities Code Section 183.003 including any amendments thereto.  
 
I.    The franchise fee payable to the Town pursuant to Section 7.A., except as agreed to by 
Oncor and the Town in Section 7.G, shall not be offset by any payment by Oncor to the Town 
relating to ad valorem taxes. 
 



 

Page 11 of 16 
 

J.   This subsection applies only if, after the effective date of this Franchise Agreement, Oncor 
enters into a new municipal Franchise agreement or renews an existing municipal Franchise 
agreement with another municipality that provides for a different method of calculation of 
franchise fees for use of the Public Rights-of-Way than the calculation under 33.008(b) of PURA, 
which, if applied to the Town, would result in a greater amount of franchise fees owed to the Town 
than under this Franchise Agreement. 

 
1.      Town shall have the option to: 
 

(a) Have Oncor select, within 30 days of the Town's request, any or all 
portions of the franchise agreement with the other municipality or 
comparable provisions that, at Oncor's sole discretion, must be considered 
in conjunction with the different method of the calculation of franchise fees 
included in that other Franchise agreement; and 
 
(b) Modify this franchise to include both the different method of 
calculation of Franchise fee found in the Franchise agreement with the other 
municipality and all of the other provisions identified by Oncor pursuant to 
Section 7.J.1.(a).  In no event shall Town be able to modify the Franchise 
to include the different method of calculation of Franchise fee found in the 
Franchise agreement with the other municipality without this Franchise also 
being modified to include all of the other provisions identified by Oncor 
pursuant to Section 7.J.1.(a). 
 

2. Town may not exercise the option provided in Section 7.J.1 if any of the 
provisions that would be included in this Franchise are, in Oncor's sole 
reasonable opinion, inconsistent with or in any manner contrary to any then-
current rule, regulation, ordinance, law, Code, or City Charter. 

 
3. In the event of a regulatory disallowance of the increase in Franchise fees 

paid pursuant to Town's exercise of its option under this Section, then at any 
time after the regulatory authority's entry of an order disallowing recovery 
of the additional Franchise fee expense in rates, Oncor shall have the right 
to cancel the modification of the Franchise made pursuant to this Section, 
and terms of the Franchise shall immediately revert to those in place prior 
to Town's exercise of its option under this Section. 

 
4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Franchise Agreement, should 

the Town exercise the option provided in Section 7.J, and then adopt any 
rule, regulation, ordinance, law, Code, or Charter of Town that, in Oncor's 
sole reasonable opinion,  is inconsistent  with or in any manner contrary to 
the provisions included in this Franchise pursuant to Section 7.J., then 
Oncor shall have the right to cancel all of the modifications to this Franchise 
Agreement made pursuant to this Section and, effective as of the date of the 
Town's adoption of the inconsistent provision, the terms of the Franchise 
shall revert to those in place prior to Town's exercise of its option under this 



 

Page 12 of 16 
 

Section. 
 
5. The provisions of this Section apply only to the amount of the Franchise fee 

to be paid and do not apply to other Franchise fee payment provisions, such 
as the timing of such payments.  The provisions of this Section do not apply 
to differences in the Franchise-fee factor that result from the application of 
the methodology set out in Section 33.008(b) of PURA or any successor 
methodology. 

  
SECTION 8. ACCEPTANCE & TERM.  

 
This Ordinance and Franchise Agreement shall become effective upon Oncor’s written 

acceptance hereof, said written acceptance to be filed by Oncor with the Town within sixty (60) 
days after final passage and publication by Town as required by City Charter.  Oncor will pay the 
reasonable expense for publishing the full text of this Franchise Ordinance in the official 
newspaper of the Town of Addison, once a week for four (4) consecutive weeks, in compliance 
with the requirements of the City Charter.  The right, privilege and franchise granted hereby shall 
expire on April 30, 2040; provided that, unless written notice of cancellation is given by either 
party hereto to the other not less than sixty (60) days before the expiration of this Franchise 
Agreement, it shall be automatically renewed for an additional period of six (6) months from such 
expiration date and shall be automatically renewed thereafter for like periods until cancelled by 
written notice given not less than sixty (60) days before the expiration of any such renewal period. 
This agreement, however, will terminate no later than 25 years from its effective date.  
 
 SECTION 9. ACCOUNTING MATTERS. 
 
A.  Maintenance of Records. Oncor shall keep accurate books of account at its principal office 
for the purpose of determining the amount due to the Town under this Franchise Agreement. 

 
B. Audit. Pursuant to Section 33.008(e) of the Texas Utilities Code, the Town may conduct 
an audit or other inquiry in relation to a payment made by Oncor less than two (2) years before the 
commencement of such audit or inquiry.  The Town may, if it sees fit, and upon reasonable notice 
to Oncor, have the books and records of Oncor examined by a representative of Town to ascertain 
the correctness of the reports agreed to be filed herein.  

 
C. Access to Records. Oncor agrees to cooperate in such audit and shall provide responses to 
inquiries within thirty (30) calendar days of a written request, unless otherwise agreed to by the 
Town and Oncor. Oncor shall make available to the auditor during Oncor’s regular business hours 
and upon reasonable notice, such personnel and records that the Town may, in its reasonable 
discretion, request in order to complete such audit, and shall make no charge to the Town therefore. 
 
D. Refunds/Credits. 
 

1. If as the result of any Town audit, Oncor is refunded/credited for an 
overpayment or pays the Town for an underpayment of the Franchise Fee, such 
refund/credit or payment shall be made pursuant to the terms established in 



Page 13 of 16 

Sections 7.B and 7.C. 

2. If, as a result of a subsequent audit, initiated within two years of an audit
which resulted in Oncor making a payment to the Town due to an
underpayment of the Franchise Fee of more than 5%, Oncor makes
another payment to the Town due to an underpayment of the Franchise
Fee of more than 5%, the Town may immediately treat this
underpayment as an Uncured Event of Default and exercise the
remedies provided for in Section 11.C.

E. If Oncor provides confidential or proprietary information to the Town, Oncor shall be
solely responsible for identifying such information with markings reasonably calculated to bring
the Town’s attention to the proprietary or confidential nature of the information. The Town agrees
to maintain the confidentiality of any non-public information obtained from Oncor so designated
to the extent allowed by law. When a court or regulatory agency (other than Town) order requires
the Town to release non-public information, Town shall provide notice to Oncor prior to releasing
the information so as to allow Oncor adequate time to pursue available remedies for protection. If
the Town receives a request under the Texas Public Information Act that includes Oncor’s
proprietary information, Town will notify the Texas Attorney General of the proprietary nature of
the document(s). The Town shall also provide Oncor a copy of the official notification in writing,
and thereafter Oncor is responsible for establishing that an exception under the Act allows the
Town to withhold the information. If the Texas Attorney General requires release, the Town has
no liability to Oncor for such release.

SECTION 10.  RIGHT OF RENEGOTIATION. 

A. Should either Oncor or the Town have cause to believe that a change in circumstances
relating to the terms of this franchise may exist, it may request that the other party provide it with
a reasonable amount of information to assist in determining whether a change in circumstances has
taken place.

B. Should either party hereto determine that, based on a change in circumstances, it is in the
best interest to renegotiate all or some of the provisions of this Franchise Agreement, then the other
party agrees to enter into good faith negotiations. Said negotiations shall involve reasonable,
diligent, and timely discussions about the pertinent issues and a resolute attempt to settle those
issues.  The obligation to engage in such negotiations does not obligate either party to agree to an
amendment to the Franchise as a result of such negotiations.  A failure to agree does not show a
lack of good faith.  If, as a result of renegotiation, the Town and Oncor agree to a change in a
provision of this Ordinance, the change shall become effective upon passage of an ordinance by the
Town in accordance with the City Charter and written acceptance of the amendment by Oncor.

SECTION 11.  DEFAULT, REMEDIES, AND TERMINATION. 

A. Events of Default.  The occurrence, at any time during the term of the Franchise
Agreement, of any one or more of the following events, shall constitute an Event of Default by
Oncor under this Franchise:



Page 14 of 16 

1. The failure of Oncor to pay the payments required in Section 7 on or before the due
dates specified herein.

2. Oncor’s material breach or material violation of any material terms, covenants,
representations or warranties contained herein.

B. Uncured Events of Default.

1. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default which can be cured by the immediate
payment of money to Town, Oncor shall have thirty (30) calendar days from receipt
of written notice from Town of an occurrence of such Event of Default to cure same
before Town may exercise any of its rights or remedies provided for in Section 11.C.

2. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by Oncor which cannot be cured by the
immediate payment of money to Town, Oncor shall have sixty (60) calendar days (or
such additional time as may be agreed to by the Town) from receipt of written notice
from Town of an occurrence of such Event of Default to cure same before Town may
exercise any of its rights or remedies provided for in Section 11.C.

3. If the Event of Default is not cured within the time period allowed for curing the Event
of Default as provided for herein, such Event of Default shall, without additional
notice, become an Uncured Event of Default, which shall entitle Town to exercise the
remedies provided for in Section 11.C.

C. Remedies.  The Town shall notify Oncor in writing of an alleged Uncured Event of Default
as described in Section 11.B, which notice shall specify the alleged failure with reasonable
particularity.  Oncor shall, within thirty (30) business days after receipt of such notice or such
longer period of time as the Town may specify in such notice, either cure such alleged failure or
in a written response to the Town either present facts and arguments in refuting or defending such
alleged failure or state that such alleged failure will be cured and set forth the method and time
schedule for accomplishing such cure.  In the event that such cure is not forthcoming, Town shall
be entitled to exercise any and all remedies as allowed by law.

The rights and remedies of Town and Oncor set forth in this Franchise Agreement shall be in 
addition to, and not in limitation of, any other rights and remedies provided by law or in equity. 
Town and Oncor understand and intend that such remedies shall be cumulative to the maximum 
extent permitted by law and the exercise by Town of any one or more of such remedies shall not 
preclude the exercise by Town, at the same or different times, of any other such remedies for the 
same failure to cure.  However, notwithstanding this Section or any other provision of this 
Franchise, Town shall not recover both liquidated damages and actual damages for the same 
violation, breach, or noncompliance, either under this Section or under any other provision of this 
Franchise. 

D. Termination.  In accordance with the provisions of Section 11.C, this Franchise may be



Page 15 of 16 

terminated upon thirty (30) business day’s prior written notice to Oncor by Town.  Town shall 
notify Oncor in writing at least fifteen (15) business days in advance of the Town Council meeting 
at which the question of forfeiture or termination shall be considered, and Oncor shall have the 
right to appear before the City Council in person or by counsel and raise any objections or defenses 
Oncor may have that are relevant to the proposed forfeiture or termination.  The final decision of 
the City Council may be appealed to any court or regulatory authority having jurisdiction.  Upon 
timely appeal by Oncor of the City Council's decision terminating the Franchise, the effective date 
of such termination shall be either when such appeal is withdrawn or an order upholding the 
termination becomes final and unappealable. Until the termination becomes effective the 
provisions of this Franchise shall remain in effect for all purposes. The Town recognizes Oncor’s 
right and obligation to provide service in accordance with the Certificate of Convenience and 
Necessity authorized by the Public Utility Commission of Texas in accordance with the Texas 
Utilities Code. 

SECTION 12.  ASSIGNMENT.  The rights granted by this Franchise Agreement inure to 
the benefit of the Oncor and any parent, subsidiary, affiliate or successor entity now or hereafter 
existing. The rights shall not be assignable without the express written consent, by Ordinance, of 
the City Council of the Town, unless otherwise superseded by state laws, rules, or regulations or 
Public Utility Commission of Texas action, and such consent by Town shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed, except Oncor may assign its rights under this Franchise Agreement to a 
parent, subsidiary, affiliate or successor entity without consent, so long as such parent, subsidiary, 
affiliate or successor entity assumes all obligations of Oncor hereunder, and is bound to the same 
extent as Oncor hereunder. Oncor shall give the Town written notice within ninety (90) days of 
any such assignment to a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or successor entity. 

SECTION 13.  SUPERSEDENCE.  This Ordinance shall supersede any and all other 
Franchises granted by the Town to Oncor, its predecessors and assigns. 

SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.  The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses 
and phrases of this Ordinance are severable.  If any portion of this Ordinance is declared illegal or 
unconstitutional by the valid final non-appealable judgment or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such illegality or unconstitutionality shall not affect the legality and enforceability of 
any of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 15. NOTICE. Any notices required or desired to be given from one party to the 
other party to this Ordinance shall be in writing and shall be given and shall be deemed to have 
been served and received if: (i) delivered in person to the address set forth below; (ii) deposited in 
an official depository under the regular care and custody of the United States Postal Service located 
within the confines of the United States of America and sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and addressed to such party at the address hereinafter specified; or (iii) delivered to such 
party by courier receipted delivery.  Either party may designate another address within the confines 
of the continental United States of America for notice, but until written notice of such change is 
actually received by the other party, the last address of such party designated for notice shall 
remain such party’s address for notice. 



Page 16 of 16 

Town 
City Manager 
Town of Addison 
5300 Belt Line Road 
Dallas, TX 75254 

ONCOR 
Regulatory Affairs 
Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC 
1616 Woodall Rodgers Fwy., 6th Floor  
Dallas, TX 75202-1234 

Upon request, Oncor shall provide the Town with current contact information for the Town’s use 
in forwarding customer inquiries and complaints to Oncor. 

SECTION 16.  SAVINGS CLAUSE.  The repeal of any Ordinance or part of Ordinances 
effectuated by the enactment of this Ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any action, 
claims or penalties under any such prior Ordinance by either party, subject to applicable statute of 
limitations. 

SECTION 17.  PUBLIC HEARINGS.  It is hereby officially found that the meeting at 
which this Ordinance is passed is open to the public and that due notice of this meeting was posted 
by Town, all as required by law. 

SECTION 18.  GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE.  This Franchise Ordinance shall be 
construed and governed by the laws of the State of Texas.  Town and Oncor agree that venue for 
any action between the Town and Oncor concerning this Ordinance will be filed in the state of 
Texas.   

PASSED AND APPROVED the 1st reading at a regular meeting of the City Council of Addison, 
Texas, on this the 23rd day of June, 2020. 

PASSED AND APPROVED the 2nd and final reading at a regular meeting of the City Council of 
Addison, Texas, on this the 11th day of August, 2020. 

_______________________________  
Joe Chow, MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Irma Parker, CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

__________________________ 
Brenda McDonald, CITY ATTORNEY 


	Agenda
	AI_3668__3668
	    Social Distancing Recommendations
	    Minimum Standard Health Protocols
	    State of Texas Executive Order No. GA 29 Effective July 2, 2020
	AI_3634_Residential and Facility Trash Contract Negotiations
	    Presentation - Refuse and Recycling Request for Proposals 2020
	Residential Refuse and Recycling
	History
	Request for Proposals (RFP)
	Evaluation Process and Scoring
	Cost Summaries
	Committee’s Selected Provider
	Customer Service
	Town Owned Facility Services
	CWD Proposed Cost Breakdown
	Rate Comparison
	Residential Services
	Bulk Trash & Unbundled Brush - Alternate
	Bulk and Unbundled Brush Options
	Bulk and Brush Collection Cost Breakdown
	Council Direction
	Slide Number 16

	AI_3663_Public Safety Discussion Regarding Oaks North Neighborhood
	    Presentation - Oaks North Public Safety
	Oaks North Neighborhood Public Safety Discussion
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Overview
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Calls for Service
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Self-Initiated Activity
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Major Crimes
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Theft of Motor Vehicles
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Robberies
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Burglary of Residences
	Oaks North Neighborhood: Burglary of Vehicles
	Crime Prevention: Police Efforts
	Crime Prevention: Community Policing
	Crime Prevention: Community Policing
	Crime Prevention: Suspicious Activity
	Crime Prevention: Oaks North Neighborhood
	Crime Prevention: Oaks North Neighborhood

	AI_3654_June 15, 2020 & July 15, 2020
	    Minutes - June 15, 2020 Regular Meeting
	Pillar One: Entrepreneurship and Business Hub
	 Milestone: Implement the Asset Management Plan in accordance with the Asset Management Policy, utilizing information systems.

	Pillar Four: Gold Standard in Customer Service
	Pillar Five: Gold Standard in Financial Health
	No suggestions or amendments were made.  The Council believed that much progress was being made on this pillar and the milestone.
	Pillar Six: Gold Standard in Public Safety
	No suggestions or amendments were made.  The Council believed that much progress was being made on this pillar and the milestone; however, there is a perception in some neighborhoods that they are not as safe as they were in the past.
	Pillar Seven: Optimize Addison Brand
	Adjourn Meeting


	    Minutes - July 14, 2020 Regular Meeting
	AI_3638_PUBLIC HEARING Case 1815-SUP Pie Tap
	    Ordinance - Pie Tap 1815 SUP 
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	    1815-SUP Staff Report
	1815-SUP Map
	1815-SUP Staff Report
	1815-SUP Commission Findings

	    1815-SUP Plans
	1815-SUP Plans
	Pie Tap_A004-SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	Pie Tap_siteplan_sup-SITE PLAN (3)



	Pie Tap_FFE _A201-7-15-2020 (1)
	Sheets and Views
	Pie Tap_FFE _A201-Layout2 (2)


	1815-SUP Plans
	Pie Tap_ExtElevation_A301 (1)
	Sheets and Views
	Pie Tap_ExtElevation_A301-Layout2 (3)




	AI_3672_Charter Election Timing Discussion
	    Letter - Request to Hold a Special Election in May 2021
	    Ordinance - Ordering a Special Election for November 2020
	ORDINANCE NO.  O20-
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:
	SECTION 1.  The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this Ordinance are hereby found and declared to be true and correct.
	ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:


	    Exhibit A - Notice of Special Election
	NOTICE OF SPECIAL ELECTION
	(AVISO DE ELECCION ESPECIAL)

	Dallas County Elections Department, 1520 Round Table Drive, Dallas, TX 75247

	AI_3657_2020 General Obligation Bonds
	    Ordinance - Authorization of 2020 General Obligation Bonds
	AI_3659_Ordinance - Authorization of 2020 General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds
	    Ordinance - Authorization of 2020 General Obligation Taxable Refunding Bonds
	AI_3670_CO for JC Commercial
	    U.S Customs and Border Protection Facility - Change Order _2
	    U.S Customs and Border Protection Facility - Change Order _1
	AI_3588_Approval of a ground lease with Mercury Air Center, dba Atlantic Aviation at Addison Airport
	    Resolution - Atlantic Aviation Ground Lease
	TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
	ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	    Presentation - Atlantic Aviation Ground Lease
	    Recommendation Memo
	    Map - Location of Atlantic Aviation
	AI_3603_Oncor Franchise Agreement 2nd Reading and Consider Action 
	    Ordinance - Electric Power Franchise - Oncor

